POLK CITY

City Commission Workshop
February 21, 2023 Polk City Government Center 6:00 P.M.
123 Broadway Blvd., SE

¥

CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Joe LaCascia

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Joe LaCascia

ROLL CALL — Assistant City Manager Sheandolen Dunn
ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM

AGENDA

1. City Manager Evaluation Form and Goals

ADJOURNMENT




2022
City Manager
Performance Evaluation

Completed By:

Date:




2022 City Manager Performance Evaluation

Performance Evaluation Scale

1 =Immediate 2 =Below |3 =Average 4 = Meets 5 = Exceeds
Improvement Average Performance Expectations | Expectations
Performance Dimension Score | Supporting Comments

Evaluate each performance dimension from 1 to 5 using the scale below. Add supporting comments

when appropriate.

. FISCAL MANAGEMENT

Thorough and effective budget

preparation/manageme

nt

Timely updates to City Commission regarding

financial conditions

Financial assets properly safeguarded and the value

maximized

Assists City Commission in establishing long-term

goals

Il. PROFESSIONALISM

Deals effectively and appropriately with the public

and other organizations

Demonstrates high ethical standards within the

organization

Works to keep “politics” and personal perspectives

out of the decision-making process

Stays active in professional organizations

lll. POLICY AND PLANNING

Effectively assists Commission in establishing long

range goals

Demonstrates the ability to anticipate the needs of
the City and recommends options to appropriately

respond to those needs

Provide unbiased advice/alternative to facilitate

decision making

IV. COMMUNITY RELATIONS

Maintains City’s image for service and

professionalism

Maintains a liaison with private, non-governmental
agencies, groups, and organizations involved in areas




2022 City Manager Performance Evaluation

relating to the City

V. COMMUNICATION

Verbal: conducted in open, responsive and courteous
manner

Written: Understandable, succinct and audience-
appropriate

Facilitates flow of information to the various
constituencies

Plan/organize appropriate responses to
requests/complaints/concerns

Timely, forthright, and encourages two-way feedback

VI. RELATIONSHIPS WITH CITY
COMMISSION MEMBERS

Prompt and appropriate response to requests

Works to resolve problems at the administrative level
to avoid unnecessary action from the City
Commission

Informs the City Commission of administrative
developments

Vii. MANAGEMENT STYLE

Sound Judgment (rational, reflects the known facts)

Creative (proactive, initiates out-of-the-box thinking)

Decisive (through, timely, strategic perspective, etc.)

Impartial/open (objective, unbiased, encourages
collaboration

1) During the past two years what can the City Manager take the greatest pride in? What
do you feel are the strongest points and finest accomplishments?

2) What areas do you feel most needs improvement? Why?
constructive, positive ideas on how the City Manager can improve in these areas?

Do you have any




§ C-16 POLK CITY CODE

B. Reduction of appropriations. If at any time during the fiscal year it appears probable
to the Manager that the revenues available will be insufficient to meet the amount
appropriated, he shall report to the Commission without delay, indicating the estimated
amount of the deficit, any remedial action taken by him and his recommendations as to any
other steps to be taken. The Commission shall then take such further action as it deems
necessary to prevent or minimize any deficit, and for that purpose it may, by ordinance,
reduce one (1) or more appropriations.

C. Limitations; effective date. No appropriation for debt service may be reduced or
transferred and no appropriation may be reduced below any amount required by law to be
appropriated or by more than the amount of the unencumbered balance thereof. The
supplemental and emergency appropriations and reduction or transfer of appropriations
authorized by this section may be made effective immediately upon adoption.

(Ord. No. 2014-02, § 4, 2-17-2014, ref. 4-1-2014)

§ C-17. Authentication; recording.

A. Authentication. The presiding officer of the Commission and the person charged with
keeping the official records (Mayor-Commissioner and City Clerk), shall authenticate, by
their signatures, all ordinances and resolutions adopted by the Commission. In addition,
when the electors have approved Charter amendments, the presiding officer of the
Commission and the person charged with keeping the official records shall authenticate by
their signatures, the Charter amendment, and such authentication to reflect the approval of
the Charter amendment by the electorate.

B. Recording. The person charged with keeping the journal shall keep properly indexed
books in which shall be recorded, in full, all ordinances and resolutions passed by the
Commission. Ordinances shall, at the direction of the Commission, be periodically codified.
The person charged with keeping the journal shall also maintain the City Charter in current
form and shall enter all Charter amendments and send a copy of the revised Charter
incorporating amendments to the Secretary of State's office.

C. Printing. The Commission shall, by ordinance, establish procedures for making all
resolutions, ordinances, technical codes adopted by reference and this Charter available to
the people of the City for public inspection and available for purchase at a reasonable price.
(Ord. No. 1052, § 1, 2-17-2005, ref. 4-5-2005; Ord. No. 2014-02, § 4, 2-17-2014, ref. 4-1-2014)

State law reference—Procedure for adoption of ordinances, FS. § 166.041.

ARTICLE V. ADMINISTRATION

§ C-18. City Manager/City Clerk; establishment.

There shall be a City Manager/City Clerk, who shall be the chief administrative officer of
the City. He or she shall be responsible to the Commission for the administration of all city

affairs placed in his/her charge by or under this Charter.
(Ord. No. 2014-02, §§ 3, 4, 2-17-2014, ref. 4-1-2014; Ord. No. 2015-06, § 3, 12-21-2015, ref.

4-5-2016)

Supp. No. 11 CHT:10



CHARTER § C-21

§ C-19. Appointment, removal, compensation, employment contract.

A. Appointment. The Commission shall appoint a City Manager for a term stated in an
employment contract with appropriate extensions as voted by a super majority four (4) of five
(5) Commissioners.

B. Removal. The Commission may remove the Manager by a super majority vote of four
(4) of five (5) Commissioners.

C. Compensation. The compensation and benefits package for the Manager shall be fixed
by the Commission and shall be defined by contract, approved by a majority of three (3)
Commissioners.

D. Terms of employment contract. The contract shall define at a minimum, compensation,
benefits and a termination process, plus any other special conditions of employment.
(Ord. No. 1053, § 1, 2-17-2005, ref. 4-5-2005; Ord. No. 2014-02, § 4, 2-17-2014, ref. 4-1-2014)

§ C-20. Acting City Manager.

A. By letter filed with the Commission, the Manager shall designate, subject to approval
of the Commission, a qualified City administrative officer to exercise the powers and perform
the duties of Manager during his temporary absence or disability. During such absence or
disability, the Commission may revoke such designation at any time and appoint an elected
official of the City to serve until the Manager shall return or his disability shall cease.

B. In the event that, by reason of death, sickness, resignation, absence or discharge of the
City Manager, the office of City Manager shall be temporarily vacant, the City Commission
shall appoint an Acting Manager to act pending the filling of the vacancy, and such Acting
Manager shall have temporarily the powers hereby vested in a City Manager for a period of
thirty (30) days. The initial thirty-day vacancy may be renewable for additional thirty (30)
day periods as necessary to fill the vacancy of City Manager. Any member of the City
Commission may serve, temporarily, as Acting City Manager while serving as a Commis-
sioner.

(Ord. No. 1054, § 1, 2-17-2005, ref. 4-5-2005; Ord. No. 2014-02, §§ 3, 4, 2-17-2014, ref.
4-1-2014)

§ C-21. Powers and duties of City Manager.

A. The City Manager shall:

(1) Appoint and, when he deems it necessary for the good of the City, suspend or remove
all City employees and appointive administrative officers provided for by or under
this Charter, except as otherwise provided by law, this Charter or personnel rules
adopted pursuant to this Charter. He may authorize any administrative officer who
is subject to his direction and supervision to exercise these powers with respect to
subordinates in that officer's department, office or agency.

Supp. No. 11 CHT:11



§ C-21 POLK CITY CODE

(2) Direct and supervise the administration of all other departments, offices and
agencies of the City, except as otherwise provided by this Charter or by law.

(3) Attend all Commission meetings and shall have the right to take part in discussion
but may not vote.

(4) See that all laws, provisions of this Charter and acts of the Commission, subject to
enforcement by him or by officers subject to his direction and supervision, are
faithfully executed.

(5) Prepare and submit the annual budget, budget message and capital program to the
Commission in a form provided by ordinance.

(8) Submit to the Commission and make available to the public a complete report on the
finances and administrative activities of the City as of the end of each fiscal year.

(7) Make such other reports as the Commission may require concerning the operations
of City departments, offices and agencies subject to his direction and supervision.

(8) Keep the Commission fully and continuously advised as to the financial condition
and future needs of the City and make such recommendations to the Commission
concerning the affairs of the City as he deems desirable.

(9) Sign contracts on behalf of the City pursuant to the provisions of appropriations
ordinances.

(10) Perform such other duties as are specified in this Charter or may be required by the
Commission.

B. The City Manager must have Commission approval for any outside employment.
(Ord. No. 95-3, 8-1-1995; Ord. No. 1055, § 1, 2-17-2005, ref. 4-5-2005; Ord. No. 2014-02, §§ 3,
4, 2-17-2014, ref. 4-1-2014)

§ C-22. Duties of City Clerk.
A. The office and duties of City Clerk are hereby merged into the office of City Manager.

B. The City Manager/City Clerk shall, in addition to the duties specified in § C-21 keep
and have the care and custody of the financial books, records, papers, legal documents and
journals of proceedings of the City Commission and shall carry out such additional duties as

may be required by the Commission.
(Ord. No. 1056, § 1, 2-17-2005, ref. 4-5-2005; Ord. No. 2014-02, § 4, 2-17-2014, ref. 4-1-2014;
Ord. No. 2015-06, § 3, 12-21-2015, ref. 4-5-2016)

§ C-22A. Duties of City Attorney.

The City Attorney is appointed by City Commission per contract and serves at the
pleasure of the Commission. Said attorney will provide legal counsel and guidance to
Commission, the

Supp. No. 11 CHT:12



POLK CITY
City Commission Meeting (7pm)

February 21, 2023 Polk City Government Center
123 Broadway Blivd., SE

ﬁ——_—

CALL TO ORDER — Mayor Joe LaCascia
INVOCATION — Pastor Walter Lawlor, New Life Community Church
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Joe LaCascia
ROLL CALL - Assistant City Manager Sheandolen Dunn
ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA
PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS
1) Proclamation for Irish American Heritage Month

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT - ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA (limit comments to 3
minutes)

AGENDA

1. PUBLIC HEARING - Ordinance 2022-11 — An Ordinance of the City Commission of Polk
City, Florida; voluntarily annexing property into the corporate limits of Polk City, Florida,
pursuant to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes; Amending the City Boundary to include
said property; providing findings; providing for notice by publication of the proposed
annexation; filing a certified copy of this ordinance as provided by law; providing for
conflicts, severability, and an effective date. Second and Final Reading

2. PUBLIC HEARING - Ordinance 2022-12 - An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida; amending
the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan by changing the Future Land
Use designation of approximately 1.37 acres from Polk County Convenience Center-X
(CC-X) to City Convenience Center-X (CCX) in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State
Concern; transmitting said amendment to the Florida Department of Economic
Opportunity for finding of compliance; providing for findings, severability, conflicts and an
effective date; Second and Final Reading

3. PUBLIC HEARING - Ordinance 2022-13 — An Ordinance of Polk City, Florida, amending
the official Zoning Map of Polk City, Florida, to change the Zoning for approximately 1.27
acres from Polk County Convenience-X (CCX) in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State

Concern, providing findings, severability, conflicts, and an effective date; Second and
Final Reading

4. Cattle Grazing Lease Agreement with TJC&D Management
5. Resolution 2023-01 - Polk City Employee Handbook

6. City Commission Vacancy — Commissioner Randy Carroll - District #2



CITY MANAGER ITEMS

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS

COMMISSIONER ITEMS
Commissioner Nichols
Commissioner Blethen
Commissioner Carroll
Vice Mayor Harper
Mayor LaCascia

ANNOUNCEMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

Pleasa nole; Pursuant to Section 2880105, Flonda Slu!utw If & persan decides to appeal any decision made by the City Commission with respect to any matter considered dunng this meeling he or she will need

to ensure thal & im record of tha mado, which recard includes the testimony an evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. In with the ‘with Disabilties Act, a parson
with disabilities needing any special i to icipate in city ings should contact the Office of tha City Clark, Polk City Gavemnment Center, 123 Broadway, Polk Cnty Flotida 33553 Telaphuﬂu
(B63) 984-1375, The City of Polk City may lee action nn any matter during this meeimg inchuding rtsms that are not ot forth within this agenda. Minutea of the City C may be oblained from
tha City Clork’s office. The minutes are d, but &re not r0Ns ipt may arrange with the City Clerk to duplicate the recardings, or armange to have a oourt

raporior present at the meeting. The cost uqupHcauon and/or court reporter will be at the expense nﬁhe requesting party.



CONSENT AGENDA
February 21, 2023

MAY ALL BE APPROVED BY ONE VOTE OF COMMISSION TO ACCEPT CONSENT
AGENDA. Commission Members may remove a specific item below for discussion and add it
to the Regular Agenda under New or Unfinished Business, whichever category best applies to
the subject.

A. CITY CLERK
1. January 17, 2023 — Regular City Commission Meeting

B. REPORTS
Building Permits Report — January 2023

Code Enforcement Report — January 2023
Financial Report — January 2023

Library Report — January 2023

Polk Sheriff's Report — January 2023
Public Works Report — January 2023
Utilities Report — January 2023

Utility Billing Report — January 2023

ONOORWN =

(2]
o}

ER



City Commission Meeting
February 21, 2023

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Accept minutes for:

January 17, 2023 - City Commission Meeting

INFORMATION ONLY
X __ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: Minutes attached for review and approval

ATTACHMENTS:

January 17, 2023 - City Commission Meeting
ANALYSIS: N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Minutes




CITY COMMISSION MINUTES
January 17, 2023

I

Mayor LaCascia called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

Pastor Lawlor, New Life Community Church gave the invocation.

Those present recited the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor LaCascia.
ROLL CALL — Assistant City Manager Sheandolen Dunn

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Wayne Harper, Commissioner Micheal
T. Blethen, Commissioner Charles Nichols and City Manager Patricia
Jackson, City Attorney Thomas Cloud

Absent: Commissioner Randy Carroll

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA

Motion by Vice Mayor Harper to approve the December 21, 2022 (Regular City
Commission Meeting), as well as the Reports and Other items on the Consent Agenda;
this motion was seconded by Commissioner Blethen.

Approved by Voice Vote 4/0.

PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS - None

PUBLIC COMMENT - None

ORDER OF BUSINESS

Holston Development LLC Postponement of Proportionate Share Payment - The
Landings @ Mt. Olive

City Manager Jackson discussed the letter received from Robert Holston regarding
postponing the proportionate share payment until 2024.

City Attorney Cloud stated this is a minor amendment. He will amend the agreement to
reflect the due date of 2024 instead of 2023.

Motion by Vice Mayor Harper to approve the requested postponement of the
proportionate Share Payment from Holston Properties; this motion was seconded by
Commissioner Nichols.

Motion caried 3/1 by Voice Vote.
Lakeland Electric Base Rate Study Presentation

Gina Jacobi, Assistant General Manager of Fiscal Operations with Lakeland Electric
provided a thorough presentation regarding the upcoming rate increase for services that




will impact Polk City. She addressed questions and concerns from the Commission. No
public comment.

Polk City Employee Handbook
This item was tabled until the February 2023 City Commission Meeting.

CITY MANAGER ITEM

Cemetery — The gentleman that Mrs. Jackson has been speaking with is not in
attendance tonight to provide additional details on this cemetery, so, this item will be
postponed until he can attend.

CDBG — Scott Modesitt has returned any calls or emails. Not sure what is going on with
Scott. We have called DEO for guidance with reporting that is due. Will keep you posted.

CITY ATTORNEY - None

COMMISSIONER ITEMS
Vice Mayor Harper — None

Commissioner Nichols — None

Commissioner Blethen — Patrolling the streets for speeders and Workshop Schedule
for City Manager Evaluation form discussion.

City Manager Jackson will put together several dates and email to you for a selection.
The traffic concerns have been passed on to Deputy Poindexter.

Deputy Poindexter responded a Traffic Unit will be visiting Polk City.
Mayor LaCascia — None

ANNOUNCEMENTS — None

ADJOURNMENT - 8:12 pm

Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor



City Commission Meeting
February 21, 2023

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Department Monthly Reports

INFORMATION ONLY
X__ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: Department Reports attached for review and approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

Monthly Department Reports for:

Building Permits Report — January 2023
Code Enforcement Report — January 2023
Financial Report — January 2023

Library Report — January 2023

Polk Sheriff's Report — January 2023
Public Works Report — January 2023
Utilities Report — January 2023

Utility Billing Report — January 2023

PN R WN =

ANALYSIS:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Department Reports via Consent Agenda




Polk City Permits Added
From: 01/01/23 To: 01/31/2023

MECHANICAL
Permit Number Address Declared Value  Date Added
BT-2023-1026 8863 HINSDALE HEIGHTS DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 13,774.00 01/16/2023
BT-2023-1842 534 N CITRUS GROVE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 8,578.50 01/24/2023
Subtotal: $22,352.50
PERMITSEARCHREQUEST
Permit Number Address Declared Value Date Added
BPS-2023-7 398 NOLANE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 0.00 01/03/2023
Subtotal: $0.00
RE-ROOF
Permit Number Address Declared Value Date Added
BT-2023-1176 120 SUNSET BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 25,900.00 01/17/2023
BT-2023-1406 468 MARKLEN LOOP, POLK CITY, FL 33868 7,000.00 01/19/2023
BT-2023-2221 504 1ST ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868 6,200.00 01/30/2023
BT-2023-2248 667 MEANDERING WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868 25,820.00 01/30/2023
BT-2023-952 709 4TH ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868 11,000.00 01/13/2023
Subtotal: W
RESIDENTIAL.
Permit Number Address Declared Value Date Added
BR-2023-103 222 CARTER BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,500.00 01/05/2023
BR-2023-249 384 NOLANE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 9,000.00 01/10/2023
BR-2023-597 136 CLEARWATER CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868 500.00 01/18/2023
BR-2023-606 420 BASCOM CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868 2,300.00 01/18/2023
BR-2023-738 132 V MATT WILLIAMS BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,500.00 01/24/2023
BR-2023-748 194 LAYNEWADE RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 54,800.00 01/24/2023
BR-2023-95 598 MARKLEN LOOP, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,267.00 01/05/2023
Subtotal: $70,867.00

Grand Total: $169,139.50

) SEL To Dbl
»,/)/(ngj Dl p

Polk Clty Permits Page 1 of 1 2/1/2023 8.07 AM



Code Enforcement Report

JANUARY 2023
SNIPE SIGNS REMOVED 30
LIEN SEARCHES 11
INSPECTIONS 58
CLOSED OUT CASES 15
SPECIAL MAGISTRATE CASES 7
COUNTY REF. o
MET WITH CITIZEN 17
CLOSED OUT SPECIAL MAGISTRATE CASES 3

CASE SUBIJECTS

DISABLE VEHICLES 3
BUILDING WITHOUT PERMIT 6
OVERGROWTH 3
HOUSE NUMBERS 0
BUSINESS LICENSE 1
FENCE 4
JUNK AND DEBRIS 5
RV/TRAILER PARKING 3
OPEN STRUCTURE 1
PLACED LIEN 1
NOISE 0
CLOSE OUT LIEN 0
YARD SALE 2
ANIMAL 5
POSTINGS 7
EXTENDED CASES 7
ACCESSORY USE 0
POOLS 0




02/0212023 08:27 Simple Bpgllélr(lgcle“éheet Page 1 of 5
gb614_pg.php/Job No: 93193 USER: JOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2023 thru Month: Jan
Fund: 01 OPERATING FUND
Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
01-101-100 Cash - Checking 581,406.30
01-101-920 Cash - Customer Deposits 125.00
01-101-990 Library Van Fleet Cycling Challenge 859.09
01-102-100 Cash on Hand 875.00
01-115-100 Accounts Receivable - Utilities 670.94-
01-115-120 Accounts Receivable - Local Bus Licenses 3,540.00
01-115-200 Accounts Receivable - Year End 196,539.48-
01-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 131.83-
01-133-100 Due From Other Governmental Units 48,415.26
01-133-101 Due from Others (Franchise & Public Serv. Tax) 43,882.38
01-151-100 Investments - FL SAFE GF 1,120,029.32
01-151-902 Investments - FL SAFE GF Reserves 79,179.97
01-153-302 Restricted Cash - New Local Opt Gas Tax 249,267.15
01-160-902 Reserve Account 100,000.59
01-160-903 Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 62,924.00

#*% TOTAL ASSET** 2,093,161.81
01-202-100 Accounts Payable 49,216.29-
01-202-200 Accounts Payable - Year End 11,792.92-
01-202-900 Customer Deposits 5,210,00
01-208-300 Due to County - Impact Fees 35,770.64
01-208-310 Due to DCA - Bldg Permit Surcharge 396.52
01-208-320 Due to Dept of Business - License Fees 243.44
01-208-330 Due to PCSO - Police Education Revenue 24.71
01-216-100 Accrued Payroll 44,524,09-
01-217-200 Accrued Sales Tax 523.41
01-218-100 Payroll Taxes Payable 922.81-
01-218-200 FRS Retirement Payable 38,487.58-
01-218-300 Health Plan Payable 1,287.41
01-218-320 supplemental Insurance Payable 4,460.90
01-218-400 Dental Plan Payable 204.07
01-218-410 Vision Plan Payable 2,206.78
01-218-700 ICMA-RC 100.00
++* TOTAL LIABILITY** 94,515.81-
01-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 41,643.08
01-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 41,643.08-
** TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 0.0Q0
01-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 2,093,151.03

*% TOTAL EQUITY**

*% TQTAL REVENUEX*

** TOTAL EXPENSE**

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

2,093,151.03

1,082,106.60

987,580.01

2,093,161.81




% 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 000 000 0099 saanjTejaod I0/pue Sduld I¥YI0 00T-6SE-TO
% 00°0 (90°6T) 90°6T 90°6T 00°0 00°0 TETLTB'B S9UTg JUBWEDIOFUHT OPOD 00E-TSE-TO
% 26'9T 8L'9%9°9 7T ESE'T 00°0%¥% 00'000°'8 00°000'8 BL T90’'CT naTojIog pue ‘saTi[eusd ‘sSoUTd IDTTOd 00Z-TSE-TO
& €£°TEC (8%°9%Z'%) 8% 9¥%L'L €0 TLL'Y 00°005°€E 00°005'€ 19°209'S swoourl AxexqrT 00T-L¥E-TO
% Th LT ¥ SE8°TT 9T " 89%'¥% 00°0 00" %0€°9T 00" %0€E‘9T %9°2LB LT jJuswssaby soueuajutel 104 006-¥PE-TO
% 0070 00'0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 0002 sa23 AxeJON 006-0%E-TO
% LZ'ST 25°L0L'9¢T 8% 0€0’6 00°8T 00 8EL'SE 00 BEL'SE 96°G¥3'S€E s394 A3TTTIN I93BMUIOIS 00L-0%E-TO
% 61792 0Z'0ET'€ECE 08°659'%TT L9 vTR'C 00 06L'LED 00 06L'LEY LE'6LB'LTY °o3seM PTIOS 00%-0%E-T0
% 00°0 00°L95'0S 000 00°0 00'L95'0S 00°L9S'0S S§6°995'05 butpung dooj AIeaqlI 00TI-LEE-TO
% LE BT 69" €L9'99T TE LOS'LE 00°0 00 TIBT'%0C 00 TIBT %02 9" TLB'60C XeJ, S9T®BS JU3D-JTBH 0BT-SE€E-TO
% 00°0 00°L20°T 000 00°0 00°L20'T 00°L20'T TL°S2T'T ssu=eoT1 8bexaasd OITOYODITY OST-SEE-TO
% €9°'29 Z¥ 901’2 85°625'€ 19°262'T 00°'9€9'S 00°9€9°S T8 9L L 9SUSINTT SWOH STTAOW O0PT-SEE-TO
% 80°0€ 6€°8 T9°€ 06°0 00" 2T 00°2T 80 ET xel, 1ond TedIoTunW - S¥H E€CT-5SEE-TO
% €€'EE 08°88%'%T (kA8 224N SO°'TIB'T 00'€EL'TT 00" €EL’TT 96" 6%L ‘2T xel Tang I030K "IUID UIB - SAS ZTI-SEE-TO
% €E°EE £0°985'LS L6°26L'BE T 86T L 00°6LE'98 00°6LE'98 76'6£5'88 xe], sa2Teg 93e35 - SUW 0CT-SEE-T0
% 000 00°'000°S29 0070 000 00'000'529 00°000°s29 00°0 1D xoo1d juswdorsasg AJTunwue) - DIAD 00S-TEE-TO
% 00°0 (oL %28 'T) oL %e8’'T 00°009°T 00°0 Q0°0 00°086°ET smMaTA®Y ueTd 23TS 0TZ-62E-TO
% 00°'0 000 000 000 000 000 00 0€ s3TWISg/Sd34/ " OTT I8Y30 00Z-6ZE-TO
% 00°0 00°T95°0S 00°0 00°0 00°T95'0§ 00°T95'0S €€ THZ 28 23sem PITOS O00E-EZE-TO
$ 65°LE LE LET'9E £9°208°'TC £9°208'1C 00°000°8S 00°000'85 BESLS'66 STI303TH 00T-€ZE-T0
448 00°566'€E6T 00°506'9 00°STL'T 00°006°'002 00°006 ‘002 00°STL'¥¥ suotjosdsul - JTWIad BpTd BOT-TTE-TO
% 00°0€ 00°0S€E 00°0ST 00°0€ 00° 005 00008 00°0%S Aouednoop Jo 318D - 3JTWIdg BPTE LOT-2CE-TO
% 81'8T 00°529's 00°052°T 00°52T 00°SLB'9 00°SLB'9 00°059°% Teotueyoa - ITwIad BpPTE S0T-ZZE-10
5 60°6 00°052'9 00°529 00°SCT 00°5L8'9 00°5LB'9 00°SLL'E putqunrd - 3Twiad BpTd $0T-ZZE-TO
% L2761 00°055°'S 00°52E'T 00°S¢T 00°5L8'9 00°5LB'9 00°5L2'S 1e0Ta309TH - 3ITwiad Bprd £0T-2ZE-T0
% L9 8L 00°0Z€ 00°08T'T 00°09¢2 00'005'T 00°005°T 00°09L°E 934 utWpY - 3TwIied BpTd 2O0T-TZE-TO
% 85°TL 05" T%9°T 0S"EET’Y 00°'09% 00°SLL'S 00°SLL'S €L°586°ST ButyoayDp ueTd - ITWIS BpPTA TOT-2TZE-TO
% SL'L £5°9%2'C6 LB ESL'L 08°£99 00'000'00T 00°000°00T OE' 2T EE sjTwiad ButprIng 00T-2IE-TO
% 8E£°29T (9% €ST) 9% 66E 06°6L 00 9%2 00°9%2 5% 50T°¢C xe], ssautsng AIunod ZOT-9TE-TO
% SZ°8€ 00" P8E'Y 00°9TL'Z 000 00°00T'L 00°00T'L €9°0T6'0T S3suenT] SsauTsng Te2oT 00T-9TE-TO
5 LL'TE L0°9SZ ' EVT €6°169°99 80°8%8°'8T 00°'8¥%6'602 00°8%6°602 0L'9SL %61 XeJ, $9OTAIDS SUOTIBOTUMUMO] (00T-STE-TO
% L9'SS 8L 9L8'Y TT ETT'9 85 ¥82°¢C 00'000'TT 00°000'TT 6T TLL'ET xel, A3TTT30 - SeD 00%-%IE-TO
% B8%°'T6 €€ 158 L9 6T6°S 000 00" TL¥'9 00 TILY'9 z9'65%’'9 s 03 sseurpesy - xel A3TTTIN - I93BM TOE-HTE-TO
% 68°L 0% 816’89 09°506'S 0T 6E6'S 00 %28 '¥L 00°%Z8 VL TY v8E‘Z8 xey A3TTTI0 - X93BM 00€-PTE-TO
% €2°9¢ LT 198'06 €8 0TE’'ZE LT°2T6°0T 00'ZLT €Tt 00°2ZLT €TT 9E"6TE’THT xeL A3TITIN - OTIIOSTH 00T-¥TE-TO
5 TZ 92 6€ 69T LY T9°LSL'9T Y LED'S 00°L26'E9 00°LZ6°€9 8L°09T'19 Xel seH uoT3ldo TedoT MaN 0TP-TIE-TO
% 06°9T sg°628 €8 ST E€S0'LT LS 697’8 00'€88'00T 00°€88'00T S56°206'96 xe], seg uoT3idp TESOT 00%-ZLE-TO
%5 £5°6T z6 8%%'ET 80 ¥9Z'¢E L%°869'T 00 ETL'9T 00 €TL'9T T9'TLY'ST xeJl SeD JUSD Yl6 00E-ZTE-T0
% TL' €S b8 CZLE'ESS 91" LS0'2%9 86 €0Z'VE 00 0€E%'S6T'T 00°0€¥’'S6T'T PE 6EB'680'T SHXYL WIIOTYA Q¥ O00T-TTE-TO
ZITVAY IIDILEA/ (BEEDXHA) |AANIATY ALE SONZARY LRANEOD QELYAIDILINY FONSAFY QALVAIDILNY | HONIANY ¥X YOIWd NOILAT¥DSEA| INNODDY
HOVINHDUE] | €202 £202 €202 ray €202 2202 /9

MVNNVOr :¥3sn
gl jo | ebed

} / £202 :1e9A [BOSI4 Jo4 3J9|dwoD JA % EE'EE
S3NN3AIY ONN4 TVHIN3O

STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW €202 AYVNNVE
AL M10d

S61£6 :ON qor/dyd-Bd 105896
££:80 £202/20/20




EEEEEEESSSS SSSSSSSNSCEEEEEESD

ssssssSs SnsSEESSSsSssS=s==as

4 T1°LE 0¥‘SEZ‘B06'E 057907 '280°1 95 BIF"TIVL 69802 'kEQ'E STYLOL LNIWLYYdaa
% 00°0 00°000"'FET ao'o 000 00°000'¥ET 00°000'FET 00°0 paemiog Axxed ysed 006-THE-TO
% 00°0 007000 00T 00°0 000 00°0D0 00T 0000000t 00° 000001 pung 8sTadIdlug wWoxg Iajsuedl 00v-THE-TO
1 E6°C TL°0LE BEZ 6L 6Z6T 0070001 00'000"T LBTIE'T XEJ, SED S1el8 JOo punisy 005-69E-10
% 00°0 00’0 0g'o oo o 000 go'o oot ov UIIMOTTEH - SWOIUI DSTW DET-69E-T0
4 S50°6C T0°61F'T 66085 L 68Y ootoo0’'e 00°000°E L9252’y SOUBMOTTY UOTIDITTOD - JWCOUY ISTW ZOT-69E-T0
% 00°0 (LS~ E) LETE 0O0'E 000 000 00°s gaxey pur saydo) - IwWOSUI OSTW I0T-69E-10
% ZZ"EZ8 6888 TITI 1Tk 0070 00008 0o oos By EESE SWODUL "OSTW 00T-69E-TO0
$ 0070 (o0*8s) 00°85 0070 00’0 000 05" €S Azeaqr - suorjeucg 23BATId 0TT-29E-T0Q
3 00°0S 00°00S 00" 00s 00"0 00°000"T 00" Q00T 00'SZT'E UIAMOTTEH - SUOTITUOQ BIJBATId ZOT-99E-T0
% 00°SL Qo ose gorostL 000 00°000°T 000001 00°S2T°T SEWISTIYD - SUOTIEUCQ JJeATId TOT-99:2-T0
£ 00°0 00'0 00" o 0o o on°o oo 00" 00T suoTieuoq 29vATad 00T1-93E-T10
2 00°0 00" 0 0070 1] e 0o'c 0o o0 PS 9TZ'ET Agzadoxg snydans jo sates 00T-S9€-T0
$ 26°LY 00°005°2 00 00E‘E 00 006 00" 008'¥® 00 008’y 00°00Z°6 'IUSY I9IUBD AJTUNWWOD UOSURIF PTRUCT 00C-Z9E-TO
4 00°58 00°00E 0o o0L'T 00'D5E 00'0o0'E oo-ooo’z 00°00E'E sTeausy 223ua) AITATISV 00T-29E-10
3 BZ ESL (99°S90"€T) 99°5390°ST 52°09%'% oo'ooo’e 00°000°2 LY ZBY'S #4¥5 114 - SpUsSpTAIQ/3SsIaqul QO0Z-T9E-TO
1 00°0 (01 502) 0T°S0Z 11+ Ban w4 a0 0 0o'o 0o'8¥ sa3j 83187 00£-6SE-T0
QHZITVEY | LIDIJEd/ (8BEOX3) | HONSASY AQIZ SANSASY INSWNMAD | GIIVEIDILINY HONEASY QHIVAIDIINY | SOANSASY X ¥OINd NOILAIYDSEA | JINOODDY
SOVINZDONad | ETOT Ez0Z £Zoz rav £Z0LZ Loz /0
1 / €202 Jeaj [e9sld 104 319|dwoD JA % EE'EE
S3NNIAIY ANNL TVHINTD
AVNNNOL Sen STVIONVNIA ATHLNOW £20Z ANVANYF SESGH I

ALID M10d




$ EL'6 B0°LYE'T 26°2S¢ S0° 0% 00°009°¢2 00°009°¢ £5°868 aaTInoexz - sarrddng 201330 01S-ZIS-TO

% 0070 00'00S‘T 00°0 00°0 007005°T 00°005°T 00°9¢ xxa1d A3TD - 89923 18yj0 ¥ PBUTPAOO8y Z6¥-ZIS-TO
% 0070 00°000°'¥% 0070 000 00°000'% 00°'000'% ¥3 987 aATINOSXT - sebreyd JusaIiand I8Y30 06¥%¥-TIS-TO
% 0070 00°000°2 00°0 00" 00°000°2 00°000'Z IT°20T anosxy - SpY TebaT ® SITATATIOY owold 08%-2TS-TO
% BE"6C 00°528°¢ 00°SLT'T 00" 0 00°'000°% 00°000°% PZ ET0’T aaTInDaxy - uotjonpoxadey pue Burijutid 0L¥-TTS-TO
$ 59°%2 $6°%50°T 80°SvE ZO0°STT 00'00%'T 00°00%'T 89700€'T SATINDIXF - SSDTAISS UOTIEOTUNMMO] (Ty-ZTS-TO
% 00'12 00'06L 00°0TT 00°0 007000'T 00°'000'T 89°2¥%S QATIAND9XY - 9OUBMOTTY @su2dxd Buti@sW 80%-2T5-TO
% 00°0T 00°009°'€ 007007% 00°0 00°000'¥% 00°000'% 00°0T9 aATINDeXd - BUTUTEIL S0%-21S-TO
% BS°¢ 00°T1Z8'¥ 00°6LT 000 00'000'S 00°000'S 2009’1 aaTInoOexy - sosusadxy [aABIL 00%-2IS-TO
% T9 1L 99°S0T v¥-99¢ 00°0 00'2LE 00" ZLE €6°52¢ aATINOaXy - uoTjesusdwod sS!EEHVISNIOM 0$Z-TIS-TO
% ST°%¢E Z8°155°91 8T'seS’'8® 80°0%T'C 00"LET’'ST 00" LET'SZ 95°¥%¥9€'1C SATINOSXE - |OoURATSUI YITeSH ¥ SFTT 0€T-ZTIS-TO
% 8G'9¢€ €T'B65'EE LB'ZBE'ET SP°SLO'Y 00°TB6'CS 00°'T86'CS 86680 %V SATINOOXE - UOTINQTIIUOD JUSWSITISY 0ZZ-ZTS-T0
% 6E°LY 6L°LLY'TT 12°02S'0T TS°862°T 00°86T'2T 00°86T°22Z 9z'96L'9T 9ATINDIXY - SIXBL BOTA 0TZ-ZIS-TO
% I6°LLT (80°0€6'¥2) 80'0€6'9S 00°0 00°000'TE 00'000'2E 66"%T6°0E noaxg - Aed 1TIeW UON pue Aed wnTtwaid 08T-ZIS-TO
% 0070 (Z6°6TL'D) 26 6TIL'Y 00°0 0070 00°'0 0070 SATINDOSXH - SWTIISBA0 OFT-ZTIS-TO
% T9'PE TP BET'E 85°T99'T vT 69t 00°008'% 00°008'¥% ZT°008'% 9ATINDaXH - SobeM pue S3TABPTES I9Y3I0 OETI-TTS-TO
% €9'8C #T°965°9ST 98" €IS 'C9 29°%58'91 00°0TT6TC 00'0TT'61C §5°099°€6T oATINOSXE - sabeM - Azeres xe[nbsy 021-21S-T0
IALLNDHEXH

EEEE EESSSSSS Smm reESEEEESSSSSSSSSS Soossos—sEEEEEESSSS

00°06%'1€ 00°06%'1E S8°T00°02 VIOl INIWLAYAHd
% 6L'E6 00" 9€Z 00°%95°¢€ 00°0 00°008°€ 00°008'€E 96°0E0'¥ o7 - sdrysaequsi 3 ‘"gqng '"qnd ‘syood 0¥5-TIS-TO
% 0070 00'000°T 000 00°0 00°000'T 00°000'T 00°0 saT3eTsThoT - saT1ddns Butieasdo 0zS-TTIS-T0
% S0'% 9L 6LV Z'0C 0070 00°00S 00° 00§ LE" TS oaT3eT9TbeT - saTTddns 89T3I0 0TIS-TIS-TO
% 00°0 00°000'€ 00°0 00°0 00°000'€ 00°000°€ S6° %S SATIeSTBYT - ssbxeyd jusxind I9Yl0 06%-TIS-T0
% 0070 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000'T 00°000°T 00°0€E8 181697 - spy TebeT ¥ SSTITATIOY oword 08%-TTS-TO
% 00°0 00" 00% 00" 0 00°0 00°00% 00°00% 00°0 Tie[sThaT - uotionpoidey pue Butrjutid 0LF-TTS-TO
% 6¥°TET (§%°29T1) Sv'Z99 00°0 00°00S 00 00§ 00°08% TIeTsTha] - SouemOTTY osuadxy ButiseW B80F-TIS-T0
% 00°0 00°005°C 00°0 00°0 00°005'¢T 00°005°Z 00°0 HAIIWISIDAT - ONINIVIL SO0%-TTS-TO
% 000 00°000'% 00" 0 00°0 00°000'% 00°000°% 00°0 aaT3ersTbeT - ButuTeil pue [ARIL 00%-TTIS-T0
% 0L°%S 90°6 $6'0T 00°0 00702 00°02 ET ET TaersTbe] - uorjesusdwod S!EEHIASYIOM 0%Z-TIS-TO
% z0'¢L SE"BVE 59°'968 L8°89 00°5%2'T 00°5%2'T PETEED’T aatje[stbeT - sexer edTd Q0TT-T1S-T0
% £E0°B6C (5T 96€E'S) IR AN 00°0 00°sZL'T 00°s2L'T 0T LOL'T STbaT - §97e0TJTIIS) IITHD PUBR SISNUOH 09T-TTS-TO
$ EETEE 00°002°L 00°009'€ 00° 006 00°008°0T 00°'008'0T 00°008'0T sATieTSTbeT - sabem - Axzeres r1e[nbsy 02T-TIS-T0

HAIIYISIDAT
QIZITYEN 129409 TIYAY SEENE4XA QLA BIENZIXE LA lgZ0dog 0qQ¥ 1E5aad qardoqy BTYALOY ROILAI¥OSEQ LNOODDY
EOVINIDYEA | €202 (4414 €202 (24114 £z0Z TZ0T /0

L / £20T :4e3A [eds]4 Jog 319]dwio) JA % EE'EE
sainypuadx3 pung jesauag
MVYNNVOr :¥3sn

IvOr:aasn STVIONVNIS ATHLNOW £20Z ANVANVF SEYESFeNa/e OeIR 03395




% BT"TL S%°' TS 55621 00°0 00°28T 00°Z8T PE 6TT ooy ¥ urd - uorjesuaduo) S!EEHIIDYIOM 0%Z-9TS-TO
% EEEE 9T 8GL ‘9T $8'8LE'S TL %60°2 00°LET'ST 00'LET'ST $9°LZ8°9T U300y ® UTJ - 2OUBRINSUI YITE®H ¥ SITT 0€Z-9TS-TO
% LE'SE 9L°¥%C '8 2 TIS ‘% 0L°ZLE 00'9SL°TT 00°95L'2T 8T°SLZ'6 U3o0Y ¥ UTd - UOTINTIIUOD JUSWSIATISA 0¢Z-91S-TO
% 01°ST LT 9ET'9 €£L°950'T 16°LEY 00°€6T'8 00°€6T'8 L6°TTI8'% Bujooy ¥ utd - S8Xel ®dTd 0TZ-9T5-T0
% ¥8°SLE (88°0T9°1T) 88 ¥6T'C 00°0 00 ¥8S 00°¥85 90°TZ Bujooy ¥ UTd - PWTIIIA0 OFT-9TIG-T0
% TL'LT 96°90%'LL ¥0°269'62 2T L9T'8 00'660°'L0T 00°660'LOT 68 9% 'L8 BPujooy ® utd - sabem - Azefes xernbay 0¢T1-915-T0
ONILNNODDY aNW HONYNIA
% 00°0§ 00°000°ST 00°000'ST 00°00S'L 00°000‘0€ 00°'000'0€ 00°0SL'EE TYLOL INIWIYYAEA
% 00°0S 00°000°ST 00°000'ST 00°00S5‘L 00°'000'0€ 00°'000'0€ 00°0SL'€EE putuueld dwoy - SIVTAILSS TEUOTSS8IOAd OTE-STS-TO
DNINNVId FAISNIHINAWOD
s aNEAEE SRR RS ESEEES SR EEEEE RS RS AR RN eSS eSS IaEEEEE NEEEESEEEERSSSESSS SESERRESESSSsSssom
% 0T 6E TO T8 '9€ 66 815 'EC 00°086°T 00°'000'09 00°000°09 €0°956'99 TYLOL INIWINYAAQ
5 05°2€ TL 6WL'Y 82°05Z'€ 00°0 00°000°0T 00'000°0T 80°986 ‘% 1ebs1 - spy [eboT 3 S9TITATIOY oword 08%-FTS-T0
% $S° 0¥ 6C TEL'6Z 1.°892'0T 00°086'T 00°000°'0S 00°000'0S 56769619 T9suno) [ebeT - SIDTAISS [RUOTSES3FOId OTE-FIS-TO
TASNAOD TYDHET
esssssernas SomEEEEESSCOSSSESS SEESSSsonEmmEsEESS SESESSSSSSSSSSSSSS SosmsEsEasmSSSSSSSS SSEEsssssssssss R —— ===
% 00°0 00°'0 00°0 00°0 00'0 00°0 00°0 TYIOL INIWINYAEA
AYTTD ALID
EERRRSSEAES EEEETEEEERERRESSES SEEsEE S ECEsSENEEE SEEESEEASSSSSSSSSE EEssssstSEEsssEEER EEEESEESSES — I —
$ 6T €V £V 928612 LS ELL'LST G6°2%6'%T 00"B6S‘LBE 00°865'LBE 0T 78T €CE TYIOL INIWLIYIAd
% EP°TT £0°00T‘€E L6'66€ 86°6% 00°00S'€E 00°005 '€ 65 E67'T x4 - sdTysisqusy 3 ‘°'qus ‘'qnd ‘S3ood 0%S-ZTS-T0
% LS'TT z5°89L'T 8V TEC 00°0 00°000'2 00°000'2 TO°LYS'T aATINDIxXy - s911ddns burieasdo 025-TTIS-TO
QHZITVEY | 1E9a09 TTIVAY SABNAIXT LA BIENREAXE QIR 1LEPANY £q¥ 1ZHang aELIoq¥ BTYALOV NOILAI¥DSEA INOODIY
FOVINHONEA | £Z20Z €z0t €202 €202 €202 TZ02 /0
L [ £20T 13 [e2S1q 104 3)3jdwoD JA % £E'EE
sainjipuadx3y pung jeiauag)
MYNNVOr 2u3sn S61€6 :ON qor/dyd'6d~Lo58qB
gl 1o p obed STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW £€20Z AMVNNVF £€:80 £202/20/20

ALID X10d




% LS9t L5°112'8 €V EEL'Y ¥5°066 00°'S%6'2T 00°S%6°2T 2% 6S% 0T Tuoz 3 BpTd - UOTINGTIJUC) JUSBWSITIBY 02T-¥25-T0
% 8L°S¢t L9 6EE’S €E'SLE'E 6L°TT9 00°STE’S 00°STE’® $ETIO‘L putuoz 3 BpTdE - Soxel ®OTd 0TIZ-¥ZS-T0
% 96°CLE (LO"¥65'T) LOTBLT'T 00°0 00 %8S 00°%85 L0'TT Butuoz 3 BpPTE - SWTIISA0 0FT-¥25-TO
% 08°82 ZL'SBE’LL 82 '80€E'TE 08°9TE’S 00 %69 ‘80T 00°¥69°80T ¥% 20T L6 utuoz ¥ bprg - sebem - Areres xetnbsy 021-%25-10

DNINOZ aNY DNIATING

% 9e°St 08°9TT'Z%T 0z T¥L'LL §Z2 92T €€ 00°'658'6TC 00°658'6TC S5 ETH ‘18T TYIOL ILNIWLIYIIA
% 00°0 (oL L6L) oL L6l 00°0 000 Q00 00°0 zug meq] - sorrddns Burjeasdo 025-125-T10
% 00°0 007082 00°0 000 00°0S¢ 00°0S¢ 060°0 jug meq - soueusjuTel pue satedsy 03%-125-TO
% 69°0C 00°9T6'88 00'96T '€ 00°25¢'9 00°2IT'ZTIT 00°2IT’2ZTT 55 %¥20°9L Jug Me] - 99DTAIDS TPUOTSS330Id 0TE-TZS-TO
% 00°0S 05°B¥%L'ES 0S"8B%L'ES SZ ¥L8°9C 00°L6% LOT 00°L6%'LOT 00°68€E'SOT Jjug meT - ioqe] 3D9BIJUOD SQE-TZS-TO

INIWIDYOANH MYI

% ELE EE 9T 8LB 6L %8 9€E6'6E 00°0 00°STB’'6TT 00°ST8'6TT Z5°0T8'6TT TYLOL INIWLAYAHA
% 91 %t 16°998'22 60°€98'TT 00°0 00°0EL'PE 00 0EL'PE 69°B6E'LE sjug SOTAI2S 393Q IFED - ISSISIUI 0TL-LTS-TO
% 66°C¢t ST TI0‘LS SL €L0'8T 00°0 00°580°'S8 00°580'S8 £€8°TTV 28 sjugd S0TAXSS 3920 I¥ED - TEITOUTAd OTL-LIS-T0

HOIAMAS L9Ed

00°TST'B9T 00 TST ‘89T ZT7 BE9'€TT TYLOL LNIWLIYIAd
% LT PE 2T 09% B8 6ET 00°0 00°00L 00 00L 98°'65C Td - sdrysxaquelw I '°"qns ‘'qnd ‘SHO00€ 0%S-9TS-T0
% §s6°¢ctT 00" T%L‘T 00°'65¢ 96°68 00°000‘T 00°000°2 9L vLB Bujooy ¥ utd - ssrrddns Buriexsdo 0zs-915-T0
% ¥1°¢ LOTOLE'T £€6°6C C9'LT 00°00%'T 00°00%'T 607956 Bujooy ¥ utrd - satrddng 0T3O 0TS-9TIS-TO
% 00°0 00°0SL 00°0 00" 0 00°0SL 00°05L €L°LST ooy ¥ utgd - uotionpoadsy pue Burjutid 0L%-9T5-T0
% CT1 €T LY €S9 £5°96T TS5°SS 00058 007058 BS 194 Bbujooy 3 UTJ - SIOTAISS UOTIELOTUNWWOD OTH-9TS-T0O
% 0070 00°00S'T 00’0 00°¢Q 00'00S'T 00°005'T 00°0 soueutg - Butureil S0¥-STS-T0
% EETPI £ET"0LS ' LB 6CY Q00 00°000'e 00°000°€ ZT° 929 Bujooy ¥ utd - sasuadxy® TSABRIL 00%-915-T0
% 0070 00°000'% 0070 000 00°000'% 00°000'% 00°00S'T Bulooy ¥ UTA - SINTAISS TPUOTSSSJOId OTE-9TS-TO
QEZITVEY LAOAAE TIVAY SEENIIXT QLA BASNAJXE QLA LIOANE LAY IIbang daLdoav g7TYALOY NOIL4&INOBAA pA.filer}e) §
FOVINAOYAL | €202 €202 [x4k4 €202 €z0Z {44114 /9

L [ £20 1183 |eas|d 104 3)3|dwoY JA % EEEE
wvhzu_ﬁcwﬂxm punyg |eiauag)
NVYNNVOr :u3sn S61€6 :ON qor/dyd-8d—|058q6
e i STVIONVNIJ ATHLNOW £20Z ANVANV( Ly Pl i

ALID M10d




aEEEEssSSSS SSSESESEEEESSSSoSss Esss

EEEEEE==Ssun

EESEssssSsssssD) SEEEASSSSSSSSEEENS SESSESSSSSSENSRREES

NOIIVIINYS/ZSNIHI

% B89°¥¥ 08°Z9S ‘VE 0z°916'LT 79 68T'% 00°'6L7'29 00°6L%'29 TE'TTIL'8S TYI0L INIWLEVIEA
% 00°0 00'000°9 0070 00°0 00°000'9 0070009 000 op - Burprtng ueyy Isy3io sjuswssoxdwl 0£9-625-T0
% 00°SL 00°S¢T 00°SL 000 00°00T 007 00T 00°02T o) - sdrysraqusay I ‘-qns ‘-qnd ’s)iood 0v5-675-T0
% 00°0 00°00T 00" 0 0070 00°00T 00°00T L1°S2T Jug @pon - 8911ddus but3ea=do 025-625-10
% ¥5°0€ 6" 8ET 80°19 80°T9 00°002 00°002 £6°TST Jug opod - saTrddns 82T3IFO 015-625-T0
% 00°0 00°002 00°0 0070 00°'002 007002 00°0 g epoD - Spy TehsT ¥ SSTITATIOY OowoId 08%-625-TO
% 00°0 00'0S52 00°'0 00°0 00°0S5¢ 00'0S5¢ 00°0 Jug opop - uorionpoxdey pue BUTIUTIZ OLY-6ZS5-T0
% BL'ET L6°509 £E0°'68T TGO E9 00°S6L 00'56L 80°299 Jug SpoD - SSDTAISS UOTIBDTUNUMOD 0TH-62S5-TO
% 00°0 00°052 00°0 00°0 00°05¢ 00'052 00°52 sspop - burureil sov-675-T0
% 0070 (€9°12) €9°12 00'0 000 00°0 8€° €82 jum 9poD - sesuedxdy [9ARIL 00%-62S5-TO
% 00°SST (00°00% ‘%) 00°00%'2T 00* 00§ 00°000°'8 00°000'8 00°0%Z'%T Jug 9poD - S9JTAISS [BUOTSSDIOId OTE-6ZS-TO
% 9L° WL zTZ ¥BT 8L'SPS 00°0 00°0€EL 007 0€EL 697909 Jug @2pop - uotjesusdwo] S!EEH#TIDNION 0%2-6TS-T0
% 0% EE BT €6Z'8 Z8°8ST P 06°8€0'T 00°25%'2T 00°25%’2T EZ TPP 0T Jug 9po) - ®oUBANSUI YITESH ¥ 9ITT 0€C-625-T0
% 69°9¢€ 8T°90T°T 7870221 z0"2ST 00°LZE'E 00°LTE'E G0'TE6'T Jug 9pOp - UOTINQTIIUOD JUSBWSITISY 0TT-6TS-TO
% TO 9¢ S LIE'T 9% 69L T9°8ST 00°LET'T 00°LET'T BL0LE'T Jug SpoD - SIXEL BOTA 0TC-625-T0
% 00°0 (92" 50€) 92 S0€E 00'o0 00°0 00'0 00°0 Jug SpoD - PWTIASA0 0%T-625-T0
% ¥T'6T 897"89L°6T ZE“69T'8 00°9TT'T 00°8€6'LT 00°8€E6'LT 0o-sse’Le Jug SpoD - sebeM - Azefes IeTNb9Y 0ZT-62S-T0
INAWADUOINE HJOD
% 7B LT EL 678 SOE LT 0EE'99 75 8LE'BT 00°'08T‘ZLE 00°08T'ZLE S6°¥IL'TLT TYIOL LNAWLIYAEA
% 0070 00°000°ET 00'0 00°0 00°000‘ET 00°000'€T 00°0 18 - Butpring ueyy reylo sjuewasoadwl 0E€9-%TS-TO
% PI°PSE (L6"70E) L6 VZY 66 VT 0002t 00021 E€°6¥T 19 - sdrysasqusy ¥ ‘°qng ‘‘qnd ‘sYO0H 0%5-%TS-TO
% €9°29 LETLE £9°29 00°0 00°00T 00°00T €0°69T Butuoz ¥ Bprg - satrddns Bur3ezsdo 02S5-%25-T0
% S€'9T TE LYT 69°'25 65TV 00°002Z 007002 60 6TT BPutuoz 3 BpTE - satrddns ®°TII0 01S-¥CS-TO
% 00'0 00°0S¢ 000 00°0 00°052 007052 00°0 butpTTtng - BuTuTteIlL S0¥-¥2S-TO
% 00°0 00°00T 00°0 00°0 00°00T 00°00T 00°0 Butuoz ¥ Bpld - s90TAI8s burissutbulg TTE-$25-TO
% SE'L ST EVT’ 98T SL°9GL YT 52 €BZ'9 00°006'002 00006002 18 TEZ'¥E Butuoz 3 BPTH - S9DTAILS [RUOTSSIIOId OTE-$CS-TO
% 08°SL £8°EVY LT 06€'T 00°0 00 ¥E8'T 00 pE8'T 0£°082'T oz ® Bprd - uotiesuadwod s!EEHPISNIOM 0¥Z-$2S-TO
% T9'EE 50'069°9T G6° LYY '8 95'BOT’'CT 00°8ET'ST 00°'BET'ST Z1 02112 Tuoz 3 BpTg - 9oueInsul YITeSH ¥ SITT 0E£Z-$ZS-T0
ZITVEY 1E5a08 TIVAY SIENAIXE QLA SESNIIXE QLN 1avang LAY 1Eband gaLIOqy 8TYALOY NOILATUDEHEA IN0ODDY
TOVINADNEL | €202 €202 €202 €roz €202 (4411 /9
L / £20T 123\ [eISI] 404 339|dwo) JA % EE'EE
sany)ipuadxg pung |eiausac)
MUY RS STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW £20Z ANVANVF 56466 10N qor/dud 8¢ 105890

ALID X70d

€€:80 £202/20/20




% B9°FT 0Z°99Z°% 08" E€LL 6L EST 00°000'S 00°000°'S 8L°B800'S uep - sarrddns Buraeaado - TTBH AJTD 1ZS5-6ES-T0
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°'0 000 00'000°T 00°000°T 00°20T Jleegmaon usp - 8sbIRYD JULAAND IASYI0 06V-6€S-TO
3 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 L6756 satedsy - 12do SSTITTTIN/SAIOM OTIANd 99%-6€5-T0
% €56 80°TLO 'Y 26'8Z% vy ILT 00 005'¥% 00°005°'% L9°L66°T usSp-JuTen ¥ mH._umnmUM|.HWUCwU AjTunuuo) $9%-6€S5-T0
% 00°0 00'0 00°0 000 00°'0 Q0°0 6L TIO'D 8 - JureWd ¥ satedsy - I SYIOM OTIANd €9%-6ES-TO
% 1IS°0 TT LLY'¥ 88°2¢ EER 00°005'% 00°005'% 16°9%5°'T D - juTen ¥ sxtedsy - I93uU3) A3TATIOY 29%-6ES-TO
% B899 S8'86T°TT ST 108 BZ"089 00°000'2T 00°000°CT 86°2T¥ L A0p uap - jutel 3 satedsy - [TeH AITD T19¥-6€5-T0
% pE"SY L9°6LT'E £E°02L'C 88°609°T 00°000'9 00°000°9 0%°626'9 16 31!6E43A0H U3H - SVSEST pue sTelusy 0¥¥-6tS9-T0
s v ot By 8SE’S 25 199’1 69°8TS 00°000'0T 00°000'0T 9T EES'9 €#3A0D USD-89TITTTIN-TIB3U8) AJTUNWWOD HEP-6ES-TO
% 96°CT £9°2S€'Y LEL%9 67" EBT 00°000'S 00°000°'S €T 0BT'E E#FA0D USDH - SITATTTAN - SXHIOM OTTANd EEF-6ES-TO
% TI9°6 TE'6TIS'F 69°'08% LLTOET 00°000'S 00°000°'S S6°9TS°¢C ACH USD - SISTATTTIN - I93u3D AJTATIOW CTEV-6€S-TO
% ELTLT 9Z°995'0¢ YLOEER'T €€ B6T'T 00°'000'S2 00°000'se LYy Lz0'2? 1!/6EHRAOD USD - S9TJTITIA - TTeH A3TD TEP-6E5-TO
% SE°98 60" ETE 16°989°'T 00°0 00°000'2 00°000°2 65°GE8'T 05 USH-UOTILDTUNWWOY~ISJUI] AjTunwwo) HIH-6€S-T0
% 06°¢€T 0L"965'S QE €06 000 00°005'9 00°005'9 Z6°S68'T 0D uln - UOTILDTUNWWOD - S}IOM OTTQNd ETP-6€ES-TO
% 60°€T B9 TZE'TT ZE'8LS'E €€ IR 00°005'ST 00°005'ST ZLOLYT'®T #3IA0H U39 -~ uoTJedTunuuo]y - TTEH A3TD TT9H-6€£5-T0
% 00°'0 {00°0S¥%) 00" 0S¥ 00" 0S¥ 00’0 00°0 Z0°TE6'T O uUSH - IBYJ0 - SIDTAIBF [RPUOTSS2I0Id CTE-6E5-TO
% 8T°%3 $S"IBS € 9% 81%'9 06" FEB 00°000'0T 00°000°0T L9'ES8'6 J!GE#TAOD UID - SSDTAIDS TPUOTSSDIOAd O0TE-6ES-TO
SDNICTIING IL,A0D TVIIANAD
% §9°0 00°0GE'ST Q0" 00T Q0° 00T 00°0S%’'ST Q0 0S¥ ‘ST LB R0V ‘6T TYLOL ILNIWLAYIId
% 00°00T 00" 0 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T 00" 00T 00°009 38 - sdrysIisqusK 3 ‘°‘qns ‘‘qnd ‘s3ood 0¥5-8ES-TO
% 00°0 00°0S¢T 00°0 Q0" 0 00°0S2 00°052 000 I93BMWIO]S - 8993 I9Uyl0 3 BUuTpIoddy Z6¥-8E£5-TO
% 0070 00°000°0T 00°'0 00°0 00°000°'0T 00°000°0T LB°SE9'8T I9jemwiols - soueusjuTel pue satedsy 09%-8£S-T0
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000'T 00°000°'T 00°69T I9jemwiols - ButureiAl SO¥-8€S-10
% 00°0 00°00T Q0" 0 00°0 00°00T 00°'00T 000 I93eMuI0NS - sosuadxy T2ABIL 00%-8ES-TO
% 00°0 00°000°'% 00°'0 00°0 00°000'¥% 00°000°% 00°0 IsjemuIols - SaoTaiag Burissutrbud TTE-8ES-TO
JTLEMWIOLS
% TL LT G8°BSE’'S9C ST €69°'T0T P9LTL'TE 00°250'L9¢E 00°250°'L9¢ ST EEB’'SPE TYI0L INIWLIYdId
% BS°CEt G9°€E£6'€ER SE°LSS'0F ARE ZAARNS 00 T6%'¥CT 00 ' T6% %21 €L L96 ETT agngsy - TETOIAWWO) - TesodsTd asnay ZPeE-HES-TO
% 0c¢°S¢ 02°SZy ‘18T 08°GET’'TY 05°EVP 02 00°195'¢2%2 00°T95'2%C 2 598'TET sngay - TPTIUSPTISsY - Tesodstq 28NSy THE-PES-TO
AIZITVSY LIOAAE TIVAVY SHNIIXE QLA BASNIIXE QIH LIdang oav 120008 qELIoaVY 8TYALOVY NOILAINDSEQ LNNODDY
IOVLNADEH] | €202 €202 €202 ezoz €zZ02T z202 1/9
1 1 £20T :Jea\ [23S14 104 2)3[dwoD A %, €€°EE
WUhﬂﬁ_uCWﬂxm pun4 |eiauag
A e STVIONVNIJ ATHLNOW €202 AMVNNVT geleaioN JanSUETRInIuG

ALID M10d

££:80 £202/20/20




% 00°0 00°005°2 00°0 000 00°005°C 00°005°2 LE"T98'T peoy - sarTddng ® syerisjew sdeospueT TES-THS-T0
% 61°0 T9°988°09 66 ETT 66" %2 00°000'T9 00°000°T9 S0°Z08'9 5 3 speoy - ser1ddns 3 STRTISIPW PBOY 0ES-THS-TO
% 00°0 00°00§ 00°0 000 00°00S 00005 0E"92% 53991315 ¥ SpPRO¥ - STBPTWLIYD $ZS-THS-TO
% 99°LT TO"%ET‘L 66°59L'¢C 8L°T8L'T 00°000°0T 00°000'0T TE ESL'Y s399135 3 speoy - sa11ddns Burjeaado 0zS-1¥S-TO
% 28 % ¥8 ETL 9T'9¢ 9T 9E 00°0SL 00°0SL 18°TSL 5399135 ¥ speoy - sarrddns 8O0TIFO O0TS-TPS-T0
% 00°0 00°00S°T 00°0 0070 00°00S'T 00°00S8'T 000 s329135 ¥ speoy - Tejusy juswdinba €6%-T¥S-T0
% 0070 00°'0 00°0 00°0 000 0070 00°0E 28115 3 speoy - sebieyp jusian) ISYI0 06%-THS-TO
% 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 000 6% TET s198135 - uorjonpordsy pue BUTIUTIJ OLP-TPS-T0
% ¥8°0 S6°0€EL'E vL° 29 00°0 00°'00S'L 00°00S°L 00°0 dey - A3TTTORL SSTITITIN/SHIOM ODTTANd 99%-T¥S-TO
5 91°26 61 88S 18'1T6'9 89 €V 00°00S'L 00°00S ‘L T0°L%9'9 5199115 3 SpEOY - SDURUSIUTEW STOTYSA 59p-T%S-TO
% SLTTT S¥ 6%9°LT G5°0S8E‘T 65°LIL 00°'000'02 00°000'02 16°608'2T 5199135 ¥ Speoy - [SNd STOTUSA F9%-T¥S-T0
% 0%°98 8L°STH zZ vR1’'S SELET'E 00°000'9 00°000'9 L6 6TE'TT eoy - juawdrnbg-ooueusjuten ¥ satedsy T9p-THS-TO
% 56°0 8Z 608'6T TL 06T TE'6ST 00'000'0¢C 00°000°02 €T LYL'E 135 3 Speoy - 9oueujutel pue sitedsy 09%-THS-T0
% LE'BT £L°TS9'€CE LT BPE'L PETTLY'ET 00°000'0¥% 00'000'0% 8% 6L0'8¢2 §3199135 3 SpPeoYy - SS8TITTTIN 0EP-THS-TO
% 98°2¢ £6°6%€'C L0'0ST'T L9°'22€ 00°005’€ 00'005°€ BY ETLE 2135 ® SPEON - §90TAISg UOTIELDTUNWMOD OT¥-T¥S-TO
% 00°0 00005 00°0 00°0 00°'00S 007005 S¥°509'T s§398135 - Burureal SO0%-1¥5-10
% 00°¢CT 00022 00°'0€ 00°0 00 0S¢ 00052 0S8 9%T s3@3138 ¥ speoy - sasuadxd [sABRIL 00%-TPS-T0
% 00°0 00°00S°T0T 00°0 00" 0 00005 ‘10T 00°005°T0T 00°0 192115 3 Speod - S90TAIdS ButxesurtbBum TTE-THS-T0
% 9T LY €T LVE'HE LL'T59°0€E LZ GST'T 00°000°S3 00°000°S9 62°6L9°ST 99135 § SPROY - SIDTAIDS JRUOTSSEIO0Id OTE-THS-TO
% £6°8L ¥z TLE'S 9L"ZeT'0T 00°0 00'G56%°ST 00°56% ST TV ¥ES’'IT S 3 speoy - uorjesuadwod S!EEH#IIINIOM 0PT-T¥S-TO
% ST EE 61°69T°CF 18°L00'T2 TH %9L'S 00 LLT'EY 00 LLT'E9 T8°6TV 8% 135 ¥ Speoy - PdouURINSUI YITeSH ¥ 93TT 0€Z-T¥S-TO
% %0782 €0°9B% ‘%2 L6 0%S'6 66°955°T 00°L20'PE 00°LZ0'%E 68 BTT‘¥C I35 3 SPEOY - UOTINGTIJUOD JUSWSITISY 02Z-TI¥S-10
% LS'LT SL°0EB'ST §2°520'9 ZE 186 00'958'12 00°958°'1Z 90°56% ‘9T 392135 3 Speoy - Saxel edTd 0TZ-1¥5-T10
% EL'69 ST°606°C 58°00L'9 00°0 00°0T9'6 00°019°6 z1'0Z2'% §399135 3 SPROY - SWTIIBA0 O0FT-TPS-TO
% 82°TC SL°0EE’'LTIEZ ST V9L '8S 08°2LO'ET 00°560'9L2 00°560°3LT 96" LTE'ECT 2135 ® Speoy - sebeyM - Azeresg xeTnbey 0ZI-TPS-TO
SIEAALS ANV SaVod

eEEEEsssEEN ESASAEEEEEEEESESSE SESSEEEE SN ENEEED SOSSSSSSESSSSSSsns AN NENEEISSSSSNSESS SESSSCScaNENREEEES SSESSSSsSsSsS=ssaza

% 98°2C LG 9TL 88 £%'€82'9¢C ¥6"€62°9 00°000°STT 00°000'STT £8°E9E7LOT TYIOL INAWL¥YIAQ

% 00°0 00°0 Q0" 0 00°0 000 00°0 00°000°S 2p - jusuwdinbm % ‘yoeW - S3IOM OTIANd €¥9I-6ES-TO
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 0070 00°SLT'C 90 - sBprd 1/0 -aoxdul - SIIOM OTTANd €E9-6E€5-T0
% 00°0 00°0 00'0 00°0 00°0 00°0 8602 1tng - ss17ddng ¥ sTeTisjel sdeospuetl TES-6€£S-T0
% 0070 0070 00°0 00°0 000 Q0" 0 £5°GTS 13ezadp - zado SSTITTTIN/SHIOM 2T1qnd 925-6€5-TO
% 9% £¢ ¥8°0ES'T 9T'69% %208 00°000'2 00°000'2 LT°BLY'T p-8971ddng Buryeaedo-Io3us) AJTUNMWOD HZS-6E£5-T0
% 00°0 (0T*9LS) 0T'9LS 6% 1¢ 00°0 00°0 S9°60E'E o - go77ddns bBurjexasdo - s3)IoM OTTANd €TS-6€S-TO
% B0 6¢C TZ 60L BL 06T 59°SS 00'000'T 00°000'T LT BEY saTT1ddng Butjexsdp - I@3uad) AITATIOV ZZS-6ES-TO
qazZITVIY 199008 TIVAY SEENTIXE QLA BEBNA4XE CIH LEDang Loa¥ 13oang qELIOAV 8TYALOY NOILAI¥DBEA INNODDY
HOVYINHDOYAL | €202 €202 €202 €zo0zZ €202 zzZ02 /0

MVNNVOF :¥3sn

g} jo g abeg

L / £20T :1ea\ |easid 104 a)a|dwoD JA % £E°EE
sainjipuadx3 pund |eJouac

STVIONVNIZ ATHLNOW €202 AAVNNVE

ALID X¥10d

56156 0N qor/dud'8d—Lo5eqb
€€:80 €202/20/20




% 0070 (05°2%0 %) 05'2%0'¥ 00°09% 000 00°0 00°0TL S3Ied - SI0TAISS [PUOTSSDIOId 0TE-ZLS-TO
SduvYd
% 8L°SZ LL TS0 EET £2°802'9% 95 6€T'TT 00°09T'6LT 00°092'6LT 0% ZZ8'EST IYLOL INIWLIYIHIA
% Z26°0C 29°629°'PT 8E° QLB E 69°CLL 00°00S'8BT 00°'006°'8T £6'6%0°'CT IqT] - STeTIajel >M.mMn:”A F'qnd 'S300"d 099-TLS-TO
% 0070 00°0 Q0°0 00°0 00'0 Q00 66°2LB'Y 1 - mn._”ﬁ._”ﬂﬁm ueyly Isy3io sjuswaaoxdwul 0€9-TLS-TO
% $S°C 00°¥E5'2 00°99 00°9¢ 00°009°'2 00°'009°'2 g9°826 TI - mm._nﬂmhmg.:wz 3 ‘‘qng ‘-‘qnd ‘gxood 0%S-TLS-TO
% 0070 (9€°82) 9t 82 9E"82 00°0 Q0°0 000 aqry - mm._”.mmnmﬂm ¥ STeTISajen mmMomﬂﬂmd TES-TLS-TO
% L9°9 0% 666'9 09°008 SB 8TC 00°005'¢L 00°005'L ¥L"890°'C %HMHQ._”_A - mm..n._”mnm:m mnﬂu.m.uwmo 02S-TLS-TO
% B80"S PLUEZE'T 9¢'9L 680°0¢E 00°00S'T 00°'00S'T LT 2ZLE >HMHQ._HJ - mw..n._”mnmnm 9DTJIIO OTS-TLS-TO
% 0070 00°005°2 Q00 000 0070082 00°005'2 8% 092 IBIQTIT - SPY Hmm@u ¥ SSTITATIOY owoxd 0B8%-TLS-TO
% LT O BL 06E°'S 22’6 000 00‘00%'S 00'00%'S €0°699°0T >Hmuﬂﬂq - 9DURUBJUTEN pue wH..n.QOm 09%-TLS-TO
% 9€°¢C1 1v°0Z8°'% 65°'6L9 $S 602 00°005°S 00°008°‘S 9% "ZGE'E >Nm.mnﬁ_nq - S9TJTITIN O0EV-TLS-T0
% ¥9° 9T 8L LOL'E (4 ARAX AR 8€'9%¢C 00'000°S 00'000°'S LL"9SB'% %Nmun..n_.._” - S9DTAXSS UOTJIEDTUNUWO] OT¥-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00°Q 00'000°'T 00°000°'T 00°aQ >MMMQ._”_H - mﬁ._nﬁ._“MM.H SO0P-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00° 008§ 000 000 00" 00S 00" 005 ¥S 9% AzexqrT - sasuadxg TSABIL O00%-TLSG-TO
% 00°0 00°000°€ 00°'0 00" 0 00°000'€ 00°'000°€E SS €SP’ ©eIqr - ISYlQ - SSOTAISIS TRUOTSSII0Id CTE-TLS-TO
% $Z°EL 0s°2¢ve’2 05" LSE 00°06 00°00L'2 00'00L’'2 i A= 2°) KaeaqiT - S90TAISS TRPUOTSSSIOAd OTE-TLS-TO
% S I8T (€0°%TIT) £0° 99T 00" 0 007 0P%PT Q0 0vT T8 €TT >H@H£..n_u - CO._”umwGwQEOU S!EEHRIAN(IOM 0%Z-TLS-TO
% LB'EE L8°085'9T £€T°0€S '8 91 860'2 00°TTT'SZ 00" TIT'S2C Z1'%66°02 >Mmunﬂq - ®ouBaANSUI Y3[BSH ® SJTT 0£C-TLS-TO
% 527%E BL BEV ‘9 ZZ ¥SE’E ZL 8%L 00" €6L'6 00" €6L'6 ZE'0BE'R >MmHQ..n.H - UOTINQTIJUOD JUSBWSIATISY 0ZZ-TLS-TO
% 6L°EE 16 %9T'% 60°G21'¢C BE VLY 00°06C'9 00'062°'9 92'069°'S >M.mHQ._”A - 8axel, ©DTd O0TZ-TLS-TO
%z ¢ BL LBV 22°'9T 00°0 00" %08 00" %0S 000 >.HM.HQ..~J - JWTIISBA0 OPT-TLS-TO
% 2L 0E 65°€19'9S I$°80T'SC 0%°982'9 00°zzL'18 00°zZeL'18 P LLT L >Mmunﬂg - gabey - \n.Hm._”mm Hmaﬁmwm 0CTI-TLS-TO
AAEIT
% 89°CT 9€°B6%9TT'T 95°819°Z9T LT LEY'FE 00°09L 097 'T 00°09L'0%%'T £y P¥9 "667% YLOL INAWLIYIIA
% 0070 (00°090°€) 00°090'¢€ 00°090'€ 00'0 Q00 000 PeOoy - STeTI33%N AxezqrT 3'qnd ‘sS3ood 099-THS-T0
% 0070 00°000°'S923 00°0 000 00°'000'G29 00°'000'529 ¥L B6T'TIS 15 3 speoy - ssaaboid UT UOT3ONIFSUOD 059-T¥S-TO
% 0070 {LL°9€E6) 00°0 00°0 00°000'LE 00°'000'LE 66°2L6°'8B 29118 ¥ speocy - u:wEmﬁﬁbm 3 >Hwnﬁﬂum2 0%9-T%S5-TO
% 00°0CT (B6°66) B6 665 00°Q 00 009 00005 6L TSL oy - mm._nnmuwn.:_mz 3 ‘'qns ‘‘qgng ‘syood 0HS-TPS-T0
ABZITVEY 1A0a09 TIVAY S3ENE4IXE QLA BEFNEdXA AIW Igoqnd fav JEHans gEIdaoav BTYALOY NOILAIUDSIEA LNOQODOY
EOVINIOWEd | €202 €202 £Z0Z EZ0Z £Z02 TZO0Z /9
1 [ £20T :1e3A [B2S]d 104 9)3)dwo) JA Y ££'CE
mv.:._u._—ucwnxm E::& _m._ﬂr_wo
bR STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW £20Z ANVANVE 56166 :0N qor/dyd-Bd—105898

ALID X10d

€€:80 €202/20/20




% 00°'0 00°000°T Q0°0 00°0 00'000'T 00°000'T 0E'SPE’T adsg-uoN - obeisod 825-065-T0
% E9°LT BT ZF6 'V Z8'LS0’T ¥ €92 00°000°9 00°000°'9 T8 ZBE'® adeqg uoN - swIoJTun S29-065-T0
% G5°9T €E°6SL TS £9'89Z'0T 000 00°'820°29 00°820°29 I8°60C°8 .ﬂumnwnmo - mm..nuﬁwmc._”uEOU 3 mm._”UEU.m.HwEm TZ5-06S-TO
% Z9°LT 67 TLY T T5°82% LG SET 00°'000°'€ 00'000°€E PEF96°C adag-uoN - mm._uﬁﬂnmﬁm mﬁﬂumkwnwo 025-065-T0
% T9'TT 0L LOL'T QE'CET €5 L6 00°000°2 00°000'¢C 08 894 HmuﬁwEuHmﬂmmﬂlﬁoz - mmﬂﬂnmﬂﬁm 201330 0T1S5-06S-TO
% 00°0 00°000°C 00°0 Q00 00°000'2 Q0'000°'C 96 00T adag uoN - sabieyd JuLIIND I2YA0 06%-065-TO
% L9779 0L ELE 01929 0L°928%9 00°000°'T 00°000°‘T LT T#O0'T ejuswiiedad-uoN - 20UBRUSIUTEW STOTYSA S9%-065-T0
5 Z¥°0T E9°9TL LE EB 90" TS 00008 Q0008 L0O°96% HMUGUEUHmnmwQ -UON - Tong STOTU2A P9¥-06S-TO
% Iy 2L 05°'GZ8°€T 0S°6TS'Z9 00°0 00°GSHE’98 00°SH€ ‘98 0S°CBO'EL adsqg-uoN - 22ueInsur A3TiTqReTT 05%-065-T0
% 6C°0¢ ZE BP9 'TT B9 IS¥’'S 20°SLS 00°000'8T 00°000'8T $0°%9€’'9T jdsg-uoN - ma..nu._.”.m:.;w pue mﬁ._”uﬁﬂOUUAw 0CE-06S-T0
% 00°0 00°6¥%8°82 00°0 00°0 00°6%8°82 00°6%8°8C 00°0 adaqg - uoN g9 - IogeT 23ewul STE-065-TO
% 68°¢€ 05°2ZZ'61T 08" LLL 00°0 00'000'02 00°000°'02 09" LS9 g-uoN - I9YJl0Q - SSDTAISS TBUOTSSIIOId ZTE-06S-TO0
% 0070 00°000°0T 000 000 00'000°0T 00°000°'0T 00°0 1deg-uoN - SSOTAISS mﬁﬂuwwﬂﬂMﬁm TTE-065-T0
% TT'8L GL°€29'8B2 GZ'9LE'9 00°0TB‘E 00°000S€E 00°000°‘SE ST TI9T’'%T 1daQ-uoN - 989TAISS TRUOTSS3J0Id 0TE-065-T0
TYINIWILIYdAd- NON
% 90768 €L°TLY'Y LT LTO'BE 08°LZ0'% 00°00L'Z% 00°00L°Z% ¥8 T®#T‘0T IYLOL INAWILYYdEA
% T9°6ET (L2 88T'%) LZ°88T'L 08°LZ0°% 00°000°'€ 00°000'€ 09° %89 sjuaag osds - mwﬂHanﬂm mﬁ.ﬂumkm&o 025-%LS-TO
% 00'0 00°000°T 00°'0 00°0 00°000'T 00°000°T SC°Cv squaag oods - Ssbieyp JUSIIAND I3YI0 06H-FLS-TO
% 00°0 00°00L Q0" 0 00°0 00°00L Q0" 00L g0 0 7 oads - sp¥ TebsT ¥ SSTATATIOY OWoId O08%-¥LS-TO
% 0070 00°00% 00°0 00" 0 00° 009 00°008 00" 0 usag oeds - EO._HUUSUOHQUM pue mﬁﬂuﬁ.ﬂkm 0LY-%L9-TO
% 2% 60T {00°065°T) 00°060°'0€ 000 00°00S'LZ 00°00S8°L2 66 "¥IS‘6 sjuaag oods - sS9sesT pue STejusy QFy-vLG-T0
% 6% L 00°'152'6 00 6%L 00" 0 00°000'0T 00°000°'0T 00°0 sauaag oads - S90TAIDS TEUuoTsSS3J0Id OTE-PLS-TO
SINIAT AVYIDHAdS
% 99°¢T 8%°0LB 09 25°629'6 9T"9€8°C 00°'005°0L 00°'00S ‘0L 0L Z%8'GE AYI0L LNIWLYYdEA
% 00°0 00°000°2 00°0 00°Q 00°000°'T 00°000°'2 00°998°S syI1eqd - UCMED._”JUM ® AIsutyoeW 0%9-2LG-T0
% E9°LT 89° %78 ZE QLT 70" tE 00'000°T 00°000'T GE THO'T s3)Ieq - mmﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂm mﬁ.ﬂUMMmQO 0T9-TLS-TO
% BZ 08B Z9° 86 8t ' T0¥% 00°0 Q0° 0089 00° 009 9B ERE sjIied - Tejusy uﬁmEm..n.DUm £6v-2LG-TO
% £2°F 8 L60'ED Z5°'206°'T 0L E6E'T 00°'000°S¥H 00°000°SH 6B°Z95°'0T S)IBd - SdOUBURIUTRNW pue m.H..anUM 09%-2L5-T0
% €T°9T 0£°Z68'8T 0L LOT'E 2V 6¥6 00°000'22 00°000'2T LS LTE'LT s)Ied - S3TITTTIN 0€HP-2LS-TO
qIZITVES IEOAnd TIVAY BIENTIXT ALX BECNAAXE QLKW lFoang Lrav 189a08 gaLdode STYALDY NOILAINOBEA INOODOY
ADVYINADIASI | €Z02Z €202 £202Z £eoz £zZ02Z TZ0Z /0
L / 20T :4eaA |easid Jo4 ajejdwo A % EE°ES
WOLEu_ﬂCOQKm pung _m._w—hﬂo
PYNNYOrRE SN STVIONVNIJ ATHLNOW £20Z AMVANYI 561£6 0N qor/dud Bd 105846

ALID M10d

€€-80 €202/20/20




8B GTT RS TH €LF ‘205~ TE'GSk 85— nn*on 0Nt o S ZRTZTT'T- sainqtpusdxy °"SA SNUBASY TeIOL

%9765 T6'6TG’G9E‘C TO°N8S‘BBS’'T LB ELBAET 00"CHL'T667E N0°ZTHL'TE6’E €T T6E'9ST'%® Te30] s@anjtpusdxy pung Teasus)
58" CTL 0% SEX’605°'T 09 90T ‘C8O’'T 25 8T “TvT 0D ZTHL'THS E 0D ZTHL'TE5'E 69 °BOT’FED’SE Te30) senuessy pung Tei8USH
- ssmsssss==ss=ss=s= smsscsosssssssss=s sssssssssssssomams

% gC et 00°6%%'60€ 00°6%%'60€ T6°682°G88'T TYLOL ILNIWLYVYdEA

% 60"V LE*60S'TT £9°06% SB8°98T 00°000'ZT 00°000°2T 0T %20'€SL'T g-uoN - sabxeyp Burjeasdp-uON - I9YIO 666-065-T0
% §5°'9 8% 2L 'Y TS 'LTE 00°0 00°000'S 00°000°'S 6% "BET 3dsg-uoN - 393d ped 966-065-10
% 0070 (00" 06¢E) 00°06¢€ 00°0 00°0 000 0070 sjuswkedras0 JO PUNIAY S66-065-T0
% 18°18§ SE2IT'T 59°L82'T 00°0 00°005'T 00°005'¢ 00°0 3deg-uoN - swrterd Juswloidwaun €66-065-T0
% 00°0 00°005°€E 00°0 00°0 00°005°€ 00°005°€E 00 00E‘T g-uoN - suotjezruebip s3ealad ©3 SPIVY 166-065-T0
% 00'0 00°LZ6 00°0 000 00°LT6 00°LZ6 00°0 g-uoN-bPuTaed S3I28X15 I13SY 0] IFSuUBAL 056-06S5-T0
% 00'0 0070 00°'0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°005°T sq-uoN - Bprg ueya Isyjo sjuswasoadwl 0€9-065-T0
% 81'S¥ 8%°960'T ¢5°t06 09°s¢t 00°000'C 00°000°¢Z 6E"EBE'T asuutq AepiioH s3koTdwd $55-06S-10
% 9%°1T 8€°988 ¢ PTIT 00°0 00°'000'T 00°000'T TL°00T spaemy/butiasn @2AoTdwH €55-065-T0
% 00°0 00°00S‘T 00°'0 00°0Q 00°00S'T 00°005'T 00°0 Butisel 10d 7S5-065-T0
% 08'0% 00°26S 00°BOY 00°80% 00°000'T Q0°000'T 05°€60'T ssshoTdwy - suoTjeZTUNUWI TS5-065-TO
$ 00'0 00°000'T 00°0 00°0 00°000°T 00°000'T 00°80T'T 3s3] bnag/wexy juswAordug-91d 055-065-TO
% S¥-s9¢ (Z5'€96"¥%) S €96 'L 00°0 00°000'€ 00°000°€E 9T LLO'T NON- sdTyszaqusW % ’'qns ''qnd ‘S}oo"g 0%5-065-TO
QEZITVEE | Lgoand TINAY gASNEEXE QLR FAENIIXT QLA Igoand LAY 129004 QEIZOAY ETYALOY NOILJII¥OREQ INDODDY
UDVINEO¥EA | €202 £207 £202 €zoz €207 £Z02 /0

MVYNNVOr -¥3sn
g1 o || abed

L / £20T :1ea\ |edsld] 104 a)a|dwo) JA % €€°EE
sainyipuadx3y pung |eJauag

STVIONVNIA ATHLNOW €202 ANVNNVT

ALID M10d

5616 :ON qor/dyd-Bd—| 05896
£€:80 £202/20/20




LK CITY

g PO
gﬁlgﬁz_gﬁp"nfﬂob No: 93193 Simple Balance Sheet ﬁggEeR? g:)iNNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2023 thru Month: Jan
Fund: 05 ENTERPRISE FUND

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
05-101-100 Cash - Checking 762,755.83
05-101-913 DEP Loan - Sinking Fund 145,173.40
05-101-916 US Bank - Sink Fund 705,800.05
05-101-917 US Bank - Renewal & Replacement Series 194,176.12
05-101-918 DEP Loan WW531400 - Sink Fund 1,641.72
05-101-919 DEP Loan WW531402 - Sink Fund 23,858.25
05-101-920 Cash - Customer Deposits 352,835.60
05-101-935 Fifth Third Bank - Renewal & Replacement 13.87-
05-101-936 FDEP 531402 Sinking Fund 11,931.67
05-115-100 Accounts Receivable - Utilities 18,934.00
05-115-130 Accounts Receivable - Readiness to Serve 18,915.08
05-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 1,158.53-
05-117-200 Allowance for Uncollectible A/R 49,413 .63~
05-151-100 Investments - FL SAFE EF 610,925.09
05-151-%02 Investments - FL SAFE EF Reserves 127,675.18
05-155-300 Prepaid Insurance - Deferred Bond Series 2017 31,706.89
05-159-100 Deferred Outflows - Related to Pension 115,531.89
05-159-200 Deferred Outflows - Loss on Refunding 6€87,501.65
05-160-902 Reserve Account 100,000.00
05-160-903 Reserve BAcct - Emergencies & Contingency 48,044.00
05-161-900 Fixed Assets - Land 2,762,913.00
05-164-100 Utility Plant in Service 16,022,693.74
05-165-900 Acc.Dep. - Improvements Other than Build 4,621,998.23-
05-166-300 Equipment & Furniture 689,170.16
05-167-900 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 374,942.39-~
05-169-900 CIP - Construction Costs 20,211.25

*%* TOTAL ASSET** 18,404,867.92
05-202-100 Accounts Payable 46,854.80-
05-202-200 Accounts Payable - Year End 63,119.87-
05-202-900 Customer Deposits 352,835.60
05-203-100 Accumulated Interest Payable 50,654.17
05-203-600 SRF Loan WW51201P 1,805,995.81
05-203-610 SRF Loan WW53140/SG531401 Effluent Disposal 32,223.62
05-203-615 SRF Loan WW531402/5G531403 805,004.96
05-203-710 US Bank 2017 Bond Note 7,675,000.00
05-203-910 Unamoritized Bond Premiums - US Bank 511,625.21
05-208-305 Taxes Payable 17,620.87
05-210-800 Compensated Absences - Current 6,748.83-
05-216-100 Accrued Payroll 17,620.10-
05-223-100 Deferred Revenue 682,163.00
05-225-100 Deferred Inflows - Related to Pension 151,792.70
05-234-100 I.-T-D - Current Portion 425,166.80
05-234-901 Less: Current Portion of LTD 425,166.80-
05-235-900 Net Pension Liability 120,416.83

*% TOTAL LIABILITY** 12,070,989.17
05-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 20,382.61
05-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 20,382.61-

+% TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 0.00
05-250-100 Contributed Capital 598,715.40
05-255-100 Change in Fund Balance 36,514.20
05-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 5,039,859.82
05-271-200 Net Asset Adjustment Account 10,071.23-




POLK CITY
02/02/2023 08:27 Page 3 of 5
gb614_pg.phplJob No: 93193 Simple Balance Sheet USER: JOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2023 thru Month: Jan

Fund: 05 ENTERPRISE FUND

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
05-272-100 Retained Earnings 734,552.82
*+ TOTAL EQUITY*+* 6,399,571.01
=4 TOTAL REVENUE®* 684,685.22
*+ TOTAL EXPENSE*+ 750,377.48

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 18,404,8587.92




STYLOL ILNIWLYYAEA

% 00°'0 00" %%L'2LY 00°0 000 00" ¥PL'CLY Q0" 9v9L'CLY 00°0 paemiod AIied Ysed 006-TBE-SQ
% 00°0 (vv0L) vy oL 00'0 0070 00°0 00°0 °0TOAUT - JUBWSSINQUTSY - SWOOUL O9TW 00L-65E-50
% 00°0 00°0 Q00 00°0 00°'0 0070 €6 TPE'T sjuowdedisap 3o pungsy OTI-69€-S0
% 00'0 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 000 96°'SET’'2 awoouIl °“OSTW 00T-69€-50
% 06°'LEY (€0'09T'L) €E0°6LT'6 60°LYL"'T 00°'6TT'2 00°6TT'T 0% %2Z's FAYS Td - SPUSPTATQ/ISSI33UI  00Z-T9E-S0
% 66°S¢t 00'569'9T a0°L8E’'6 05°9%v'¢C 00°280°'92 00°280°'92 00°CET’LE s9a4 @3eT 00€-6SE-50
% ¥0°2S 00°S9L 00°0¢e 00'S8% 00°S6S'T 00°S65'T 00°0T%'T Spund 3JusTdTIING UON 00Z-65E-S0
%5 67°T¢E 00°S%% 'S¢ 00°S69°'TT 00°SLE‘E 00'0%T'LE 00°0%T'LE 00°0TL'SE §8In3T83Iod I0/pue S3UTS I2YA0 00T-65E-S0
% BS'ST ¥8°€99'6%6 9T "BED ‘9ZE (6%°855'T) 00'zoT’'9Le't 0o'zot’‘9Le’'t gs-LLL'8Le't onusasy A3TTTIN IBMBS 005-0FE-S0
% 86°tC %0'690'900°T 96°L9T'LTIE (L0"60%) 00 LTE'ETE"T 00 LTE'EZE'T ZL'0ST'662°T onuaAdy A3TTTI] I9IBM 00E-0%E-SO
% 00°'0 00°'0 00°0 oo'o 00°0 0070 £6°655'TE 271235 - Sjuel) ISIBMI]SEM/IIMIS (0SE-PEE-SO
% 90°¢ 80'P6L'6 Z6°50¢ 00" 0 00'000'0T 00°000°0T ZS ¥¥8'TT §3Twasd/sss4/ D11 ISY30 00C-6CE-SO
% BT'S TE'LIB'CT 69°00L SE°95¢ 00°8TS €T 00 8IS €T L0 ZLE'8BT Isjey - 2bIBYD SAISF 0] SSAUTpRaY TIT-S2E-S0
% BC°TIT 90°'T1T0'%T ¥6°08L'T 00°0 00°26L'ST 00°zZsL'ST €8°L66'0E Ioma5 -~ 9bxey) DAIS5 03 SSIUTPESY 0TZ-STE-SO
% LLT6E 00°0%S'0T 00°096°9 007" SEY 00°00S'LT 00°005'LT 02 9ZL'ST sTsed Yysed - IIJeM - S954g UOTIDPIUUC) TITT-S5ZE-SO
% 61°S z6°08Z'T 80704 ¥9°sc 00°1SE'T 00°TSE’T 0T 98€'T I ALO $0T A3TD - SI¥ TOE-¥TE-SO
110143a/ (8BEDXA) HANIATY QLA SONTASY LNENHEOD QELVAIDILNY AANIARY JQEILYIIOIINY | IONIASE ¥X ¥OI¥d NOIL4&I¥DBAA INOODOY
€202 [x4:14 ($4114 orav €202 [441k4 /0
L / £202 :1e3) |e3SId 104 2|dwoD JA % £€'EE
JNNIAIYN ANNd 3SIAU4HILNT
AVNNYOnESn STVIONVNI ATHLNOW £20Z ANVANVT SeLEe oNAgrA Iomeast

ALID X10d



% $6°6¢ (41T AN] 8%°5%2'C SL*09L 007005 ‘L 00°005'L 66°T09'S ado z23eM - SOTITTTIN - dIM SATIO "IW TEP-EES-G0
% £€'8 T STT'Y 98 ¥LE z6°22T 00°005 ‘% 00°005'% 8% LLY'T Jem A3TTTO®Rd SOTITITAN/MA - SITITTTIN O0EF-E£E€S-G0
% 06°'6¢ 92'889°S PLTIE'T 6% 805 00°000°'8 00°000°8 26°9T2'9 15dp 127BM - S9OTAISS UOTIBDTUNUMIO) OTH-E€£5-SO
% 00'0 0070SL°T 00'0 00°0 00°0SL'T 00°05L'T TT'0TE’'T xadp x23em - Buturexl S0F-£E£S-SO
% 00°0 00°052°T 00°0 00°0 00°0SZ'T 00°'052'T €T°65% xado a9jey - sasuadxy ToARIL 007-€ES-50
5 9€£°9T 00°28T'% 00'818 00°0¥2 00°000'S 00°000'S 00°0 so7dueg - S8DTAISS TRUOTSSSIOXd PTE-EES-SO
% 6£'8 09°0LB'9 0% 629 0L PIE 00°005'L 007005 'L 9€ ELL'S TeuotTbey Y[Od - S9OTAIIS [EUOTSS3JOId ETE-CES-SO
5 2L'9 88'8L6 ' FE zZ1'125°¢C 68°%00'T 00°005'LE 007005 'LE TL'BOE'DT 197BM - I9YJ0 - SSDTAISS TPUOTSSSJOId ZTE-EES-SO
% 61°0¢ SL E6L'LB sz°902'ze 000 00°000'0TT 00°000°0TT 8€°62L'92 1ado 193eM - S90TAISS DBuTxesuUTHUE TTE-€ES-SO
% Z1°¢ 0S°ZES’'PT 05" LYY 09°2TT 00°000°'ST 00°000°ST TE LBE'ET 15dp I93BM - SSDTAISG TPUOTSS9FOId (QTE-EES-S50
% 65°¥6 L9°28¢ EE"TIPE'Y 000 00°¥%¥22’S 00°%2Z'S TT #PL'E adp xs3eM - uoTiesuadwo) S!EEHRINIOM OFZ-€E€5-50
% L6°0T L6"E6L'6T £07906°'L $8°2¥8'T 00°00L'LE 00°00L'LE S0°T91'6S 1edo I93EM - SoUBINSUI YITBSH ¥ SITT 0EC-€E5-50
% 6L°TL 0£'e¥9’e 0L°690'L SE'6LY'T 00°2IL'6 00°2IL'6 L0°L90'LT 19dp 193BM - UOCTINQTIIUOD IUSWAITISY 0ZZ-EES-50
% 6%'9¢ L8680 'L €T €L0' ¥ €1 626 00°€9T'TT 00" €9T'1T SY HTT'BT xadp 133eM - SOXeJ BOTA 0TZ-€ES-SO
% 0%'80T (¥6°65€) $6'S%9'% 00°0 00'962'% 00°982'% 0% gIE’s zodp 133EM - 2WTIIBAQ OFPT-EES-S0
% £5°9¢ T8'LIS'Z0T 6T'LTO'LE 90°TZ¥'2T 00°SES'6ET 00°GE€S'6ET 60" E€88'THT 1edo ze3eM - sobem - Azeres reinbe¥ 0ZI-E€E€5-G0
AR SESSEEEE EEEESSEESEESESEEEE EEEEEEEEEsssSSSiSS SEAREEEEEEEESSEESSS SESSSSSSTSEEEEEENE SSSSSSSSSSIISSaaEE SERSSSSssssssssaEm

% BT 9T 62 €5L'18T TL EVE'SE 62°898'TT 00°L60'LTT 00°L60°LTIZ 00°0 TYI0L INIFWINVAEA

% 00°0 00°002 00°0 00°0Q 00002 007002 000 ey - sdrysIiaqusy 3 ‘‘qns '‘qnd ‘SY00H 095-8TS-S0
% 00°0 00°005°T 00°0 00°0 00°005'T 00°005'T 000 utwpy x33ey - ss17ddng Burjexado 0zZS-BTS-50
% 00°0 007009 0070 000 00°009% 00°009 00°0 Utwpy Is3em - geT17ddng 95T3I0 O0TS-BIS-S0O
% 00°0 00°00S 00°0 00°0 00' 00§ 00°005 00°0 uTWpY I133eM - sabieyp jusAIND IBYIO 06%-BT5-50
% 00°0 00°00% 00°0 00°0 00°00% 00°'00% 00°0 wpy 193eM - uorionpoidsy pue BuT3juTid OLP-8TS-S0
% 00°0 00°00E’€E 00°0 00°0 00°00€‘E 00°00E‘E 00 0 UTWPY I21eM - SSOTAISS UOTIBOTUNWWOD O0T¥-8TS-S0
% 00°0 00°0SL 00°0 00°0 00°05¢L 00°0SL 00°0 uoT3RAYSTUTWPY I37eM - BUTUTEIL S0¥-BTS-S0
% 00'0 00°0SL 000 00°0 00°05L 00°'0SL 00°0 uTwWpy I33BM - BuUTUTEI pUE T2ABIL 00%-8TG-S0
% €2°8C T6°0TS'LT 60°688°9 L9°0ST'€ 00°00% ‘2 00°00% ‘%€ 00°0 199BM - I9UIQ - SOOTAISS TBUOTSSSI0Ad ZTE-BIS-SO
% 00°0 00°8TZ 00°0 00°0 00°8T¢ 00°8TZ 00°0 wpy I33eM - uorjesusdwo) S!EEH#IINIOMN 0%Z-8TS-50
% €9°6T S0"€TZ’0E S6°6LE‘L T1°860°2C 00° €65 'LE 00" €65'LE 00°0 uTWPY I27eM - 9DUBINSUI YITESH ¥ 9ITT 0€C-8T5-50
% 6L €T 00°2EL'9 00°T0T'2 06°659 00" €€6°'8 00°€€8'8 0070 UTWPY I93BM - UOTINGTIIUOD IUSWSITISY 0ZZ-8BTS-50
% 65T€T 08°LLY'S 02 EEE'T L6°8TY 00'T1TI8'6 00°TT8'6 00°0 UTWPY ISJeM - SIXEL BOTA 0TZ-815-S0
5 ze €8 8L°SLT zT'8L8 00°0 00°%S0°T 00°%50'T 00°0 UTWPY I93BM - SWIIAIA0 OPT-8TS-50
5 BI'€T SL°STH'OTT Sz 29L'9T $9°0%S5'S 00°88T°LTT 00'88T ‘LT 000 utwpy IsaeM - sabeM - Axefes 1eTnbsy 0ZI-BIS-S0

IS3EM
QEZITYES | 1E5and TIVAY SEENZ4XS QIX SHENZAXI QLK 135008 LAY 186008 TILLOqY 8TYALOY NOILAI¥O8A INDODDY
AOVINZONAA | €202 (%414 £202 €202 £202 7202 /0
L / £20T 183 |ROSI4 104 8)8|dWoD JA % EE'EE
sainjipuadxg pung asudiajug
DNNEORESN STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW €202 AMVNNVF 56166 10N qor/dyd'Se 10580

ALID X10d

€€:80 £202/20/20




% 95'TE TI'S¥L'6 68°Z6%'Y 15°S2L 00'8EC'FT 00°8€2°%1 0T %29'9T 2adp I9M3S - UOTINATAIUOD JUBWAITIS 0ZT-SE€S-SO
% 99°€T £1°S06°'8 LB 65L'T 0L T9% 00°599°TT 00°'599'TT 88°¥50‘TT 12do 19Ma§ - SoXeL ®OTJd 0TZ-SE5-50
% LL'LB 91895 $8°SL0'% 0T'S9 00'¥%9'% 00" ¥%3'% $S°LTO’S aadpo 19MBS - PWTIIAA0 0FT-SE€5-50
% ¥8°8T 9€°882"8TT $9 ¥S% LT 95°920°9 00 EVL'SPT 00 €¥LS¥T §5°18S‘'2VI 19do zemas - sobey - Azeres re(nbadW 0ZT1-5€5-S0
Ismag
emrEmEEEESS SEESmnmsscamEEsSos SEsAmmsaEsEESSSSss SSSSSSSSSEESSSSESS GEssssSooansssESSR SSSSosSossEssSamsEs
% 0 0E LOES0°LDO LO"S9E'6LT 95°0L6'LY 00°900'0¢6 TYIOL INIWIYVIEA
ST OLL'EE SLTOLL'EE SLTOLL'EE 00'T¥S LY 00°THS'LY 89°SSE’'69 a2dp I93BM - 3IS9ILIUI 0ZL-E£€5-50
00°55L°29 000 00°0 00°§5L'29 00°'S5L°29 00°0 12do xs3em - Tedrourid 0OTL-€ES-50
(00°090"E) 00°090'€E 00°090°€ 00'0 000 0070 orjexado 197eM - 939sSy Te3rded I8Yyio 099-€€5-S0
00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 0Z'6T9'T z8do 193eM - Ssa1boid UI UOTIONIITUOD 059-EES-SO
00°0 000 00°Q 00°0 00°'0 66°TET’CS xodo xo1em - juswdrinbm 3 AISUTUDEW 0%9-€E£5-S0
00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 05°'L¥T'Y em - BuTpTing ueyly I9y3lQ sjuswasoxdwl QE9-€E€S-SO
00°0 000 000 00°0 00'0 00°ZB6'E aodo 19jeyM - SBUTPITNE 0Z9-EES-SO
10 T%L 66°8 66°8 00°0SL 00°0SL 88°65% em - sdrysasquel ¥ ‘'qns ‘"qnd ‘Sx00d 0FS-€€5-S0
00°LLB'ED 00" €21 00°0 00°000 ‘%8 00'000'%8 80°657'88 oueusjurey 3 sitedey - sorTddns x919W LZS-€ES-SO
(8L 6€9°%T) BL'6€9'%TT 00°8% 00°000'00T 00°000°00T 9% 0%L’16 xe3eM - STTeISUI maN - soTTddng A938W 9TG-EES-S0
98°985°9 YT ETP'C z0° LSV 00°000°'6 00°000'6 ¥6°9T6°'S 19do I93EM - STEOTWSYD ¥ZS-EES-SO
00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000'T 00°000'T 96°6 1ddng Butierado - 4IM SWeTTTIM I3EW A E£TS-€£5-50
00°000°'T 00°0 000 00°000'T 00°000°T 687691 satiddng Butiexado - dIM YITesMuowuod ZZg-EES-S0
9% €82 ¥5°9TL %5 9TL 00°000°T 00°000°'T L6°6 M - ssTrddng burjeasdo - 4IM SATTO AW TZS-E€ES-SO
zZ°ZAO'ET 8L LTIV'D TT T8T'E 00°00§'LT 00°005°LT €T LLE'SZ 19dp 193eM - sa71T1ddns Burjezado 02S-£E5-S0
8% ThY z5'8S £2°¥T 00°00S 00 00§ $6°599 xado xe3em - saT1Tddns ®0TIJO 0TS-€€S-50
00°0%7 ‘% 00°0 000 00°0%%'% 00°0%%'% 00°00€'% 15d0 I93BM - S993 ISYI0 ¥ BUTpIOOLd TEH-€£5-50
00°00% 00°'0 0070 00°00% 00°00% €6 €TE adp zs3em - uotjonpoidsy pue BUTjuTid 0LP-E£E£5-S0
8 T9E’Y 9T 8EY 9T 8E9 00°000'S 00°000'S ST'T09 jem - jusuwdinbg-soueusijureW ¥ satedsd L9%-£€5-50
(92°LS5'%) 0% 697 '€ 0% 697 '€ 00°005°¢ 00°'005‘T 05 92% doy - A3TTTOo®d SSTITTITIN/SAIOM 2TTqnd 99%-€£5-50
0 €9T'S 96°9€8'T LT ZET 00°000°L 00°000°L 9z 9%0'€E 1adp I93EM - SOUBRUSIUTEW STOTUSA S§IP-€ES-S0
06°858°TT 0T T%T'€E Z79°960°T 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 9% LE6'6T 1odp I87BM - 8N4 2TDTYSA H9P-EES-SO
TI°80L'L 68°16C 566891 00°000'8 00°000‘8 LS TTY TeW pue siTedoy - 4LM SWETTTTM I3BW'A €9%-€E5-SO
00" 000°E 00'0 00°0 00°000'€ 00°000'€E z6 80T qurey pue satedey - 4IM YITBIMUOWWOD TIH-EES-S0
00°'000°'8 00°0 00°0 00°000°'8 00°000'8 98" €TV T M - 3jutey pue sxtedsy - 4IM SATTO "IN T9¥-£€5-S0
86°T109°60T Z0'B6€E L6 LL 00°000°0TT 00°000°0TT 95°0L5'¥8 19do z93EM - P0UBUSIUTEN Pue sitedsy 09%-€E£5-50
86°99%'TT ZO EEO0'E LS 80T'T 00°005'%T 00°005'%T TL°822'TT JeM - SSTITTTAA - dIM SWeTTTTM 3IBH A E€EP-EES-S0
S9°6LE'T SE°0ZT YE'SS 00°005'T 00°005'T SLEES a93BM - SOTITITIN - dIM UITESIMUOUMIOD ZEP-EES-SO
1E5an8 TIVAY gIBNZdXE LA BIBNAAXI QIR 1Epang oay 186308 qILIOqY STVALOY NOTL4I¥DEEQ LRO0DDOY
€202 €z02Z €202 €202 €202 zZ202 /o
L / £20Z 183 [e2sly 104 32|dwoD JA % EE'EE
sainjipuadx3g pun4 asidiajug
MYMRVOIgi3sn STVIONVNIS ATHLNOW €202 ANVNNVI 56155 1N qorichericl 109890

ALID X10d

€€:80 £202/20/20




% 26'6¥ S6°H¥S'ET 50" %05 ‘€T 00°0 00°'6%0'LT 00°6%0'LZ 00°0 eo7 Tesodstg Juen(IFE 43Q - TedTroUTId ZTL-SES-SO
% 00°0 00°S%98FE 000 0070 00°SH9'8¥¢E 00°5%9'8%€ 000 xedo 1omag - TedTouTid OTL-SES-SO
% 00°0 (00°090°€) 00°090'€ 00°090°€ 00°0 00°0 000 otjexado I9Mag - S$39sSY Te3Tded I2YI0 099-SES-SO
% 00°0 (96" %ZE‘ST) 96 %2E'ST 9.7852'T 00°0 00°0 19°6%9'6¥ zado xomas - ss52160xd UI UOTIDNIISUOD 059-SES-S0
% 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 0070 00°0 00°9€8°€ aomas - drnba 3 UOBW - TTTH TBUTPI®D TH9-SES-50
% 00°0 00°0 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 ¥L°688 68T 19dp xemes - jusmdrnby ¥ ATSUTYORW 0¥9-SES-S0
% 80°€E 00°90T'T¥3 00°00L'02 00°00L'02 00" P¥L ‘2L 00" ¥¥L'TLY 05°LBO'T o5 - BurpTng ueyl IsYy3lQ sjuswasoidwl 0E9-SES-SO
% 00°0 00°0 [(1 e A] 0a0°0 00°'0 Qoo 00°286°E 1adp asmas - sBuUTpIInNg 0Z9-S€S5-S0
% 00°0 00°00§ Q00 000 Q0°00Ss 00°00S 88 659% 95 - sdrysisquay ¥ ’'‘qns ‘qng ‘syood 0%S-SES-S0
% 90°%% 68 ¥ATET T9°'6TS'TT Z0 Q6%'% 00°000'S2 00°000°S2 £5°195°0¢€ a2do I9M35 - STEDTWIYD HZG-5ES-50
% 11°'¥%¢ 00°L9L'2T 00" €€T'L 00°0TV'C 00°000°0€ 00°000'0€E €% VIT'6C BuTTney 26pnTs - dIMM TTTH TRUTPIED ZZ5-SE€S-SO
% 00°0 000 00°0 0070 0070 000 80 ETL t1ddng Butjeiado - dImM TTTH TPUTPIB®D TZS5-SES-GO
% 6%°%9 08°055'E 0Z°6%%'9 €6 ¥06'F 00°000'0T 00°000°0T ¥ L5902 xado zemag - sarTddng Butieaado 02S-SES-SO
% 69°TT £5°TH¥ LY 8S 6T %2 00°005 007005 607659 19do 1emes - sa17ddns 20TIFO 0TS-GES-S0
% 00°0 00°000‘% 00°0 00°0 00°000'% 00°000'% 00°0L0°T 18do zomO5 - Tejuey juawdinbd €6%-S€5-50
% 00°0 0070 0070 0070 00°0 00°0 £%°BET zedo zemag - 994 I9Ul0 I BUTPIONDY ZEH-5SEG-50
% 00°0 00°000°¢ 000 000 0070002 00'000°2 LT %6 zadg zomas - sabreyD JUSIAND I2YIO 06%-SES-S0O
% 00°0 00°00T 00°0 000 00°00T 00°00T €8 €% adp aamag - uorjonpoxdsy pue BuTjurid 0L¥-SE€S-S0
% 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 YE TIS mes - jusudrnbg-soueusjutey ¥ sitedsy L9%-5€5-S0
%2 000 ¥5°188 00°0 00°0 00°000'T 00'000'T 05°92% doy - A3TTTPEA SOTITITIN/SHIOM OTIANd 99%-SES-SO
% LT 6T £8°056'% L1°6%0'€ ¥8°96¥ 00°000"'L 00°000'L T LSO‘8 12dp 19M35 - SOURUSIUTEW STOTUYIA S99-SES-SO
% 08°2T 82 080°ET ZL 6T6'T ST"8LS 00°000°ST 00°000°ST L6°S8L 0T 13dp I9MdS - To0d STOTYSA ¥9%-SES-S0
% 08°LT P 6LS'CY LZ°289'0T 1% 850'0T 00°000°09 00°000°'09 LZ LEL'OS6 S - Juten pue satedsy - TITH TeUTPABD T9%-S€S-S0
% 9L°18 €C EVT8E LL"95L'TY T9°L0S5'8 Q0°000'00T 00°000°00T ZL°0SE'BET a9dp I9M35 - 2DUERUSIUTEK Pue satedsy 09%-SES-50
3 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 05°9L0°€ 19do I9MBS - S9SB9T puR STEIUSY 0¥y-SES-50
% 61°9¢ PL 0BE’L 9z°6T9'¢ 0€° %06 00°000'0T 00°000°0T 85°BE0‘8 do zomes - SOTITITIA - 4LMM @ATTO "IN ZEP-SE€5-50
% 98°St LT THPT'6T €L LSL'OT ZE'SL9'E 00°000°'0€ 00°'000°'0€ 88 IBL'0E M35 - SOTATTIIN - dIMM TTTH TRUTPIBD TEP-SES-50
% ¢1'6¢ €£4°252'% LT LFL'T 92 6€S 00°000'3 0070009 6€£°002°9T mag A3TTTo®Rd SOTITTTIA/MA - SOTITITIN 0E€B-SES-S0
% 6€£°1C 0%°5T5°2 09°%89 00°0 00°002'€ 00°00Z°€ 09°96T°C 0 IomeS - SOAIS WWOD - 4LMM 9ATTO "IN ZI¥-S€S-S0
§ 6T°LT 05°96L'S 06°€02'T 96 €2¥ 00°000'L 00°000'L L0962 M35 - SOAIS WWOD - JIMM TTTH TRUTPIRD TTH-SE€5-G0
% 99'0¢C T ¥E6 'L 9L°590'T 1P SED 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°8E6'F 10dQ I3M3S - S9OTAISS UOTIRDTUNMMOD OTH-SES-S50
% 00°0 00°000°2 0070 00°0 00°000°2 00°000'2 TS €69°T 18dp xemas - BUTUT®IL S0%-5€5-S0
% 00°9 00°0T%'T 00°06 00°0 00°005'T 00°005'T £0°€LT xado romag - sasusdxy TOARIL 00¥-SES-S0
%5 $0°69 00°8%5°T 00'25% '€ 00°2¥T'T 00°000's 00°000'S 00°0 satdwes - S9DTAISS [PUOTSS®IOId HTE-SES-SO
% 06°SE LT %2T°9T £€8°5L8'8 00°009°¢ 00°'000'S2 00°000°Se TL°988°6L I9M35 - ISYIQ - SODTAISS [EUOTSSSIOAd ZTE-SES-50
% 00°0 00°000°L 00°0 00°0 00°000 ‘L 00°000°L 29°12¥%'S 18dp 19M35 - S90TAISS Burassutbu TTE-GES-SO
% LB°O 00°0LB'PT 00'0ET 00°0 00°000°ST 00°000°ST LB %96°L 15dp I9M9S - S8DTAISS TRUOTSSSIJOId 0TE-GES-50
3 00°0 00°65%'S 00°0 000 00'65%'S 00°65%'S 8Y°S¥9°E adp aamas - uotiesusdwo) S!EEHIIBIOM 0Z-SES-S0
% 92°8T ¥L THB'0E 92°168'9 TE'SP8'T 00 €EL'LE 00 €EL'LE ZH 99%’'2E xedo Ismes - @OUBINSUI YITESH 3 9ITT O0EC-SE5-SO
qEZITVEY | 130006 TIVAY SEENIIXT QLA SIENIAXE QIR 1goqng LAy 1¥9d08 gIIIOqV BTYALOY NOILAI¥DBEA INNOJOY
HOVINEDYHA | €202 €202 £202 £z02 £202 zzoz T/0
L / £202 :Je3 [e9S]d 104 8)9|dwioD JA % E€'EE
sainjipuadxg pun4 asidiajug
BINMEO SN STVIONVNI4 ATHLNOW £20Z ANVNNVF s616 1oN qoryud 64 105890

ALID M10d

€€:80 £202/20/20




ZL 9SL 6L TT"ELE ‘65— 60" L96°L9C- nn°o 000 LE'9CH ' T6Z- s3an3 Tpuadxy 'sSA SNUDADY T30l
$06°TC Mo.wﬁm~mmw~N| €E°8G0 ‘PHL— TT 0oLL'’SLE- 00°N9Z*L6E e~ Oo.owlm~hmm~m| 95 ¢€6T'c90'E- Te30l s2injipuadxy pung astadisjuyg
$5T°0C 8L FLS'ETL’C TZ"S83‘¥89 20°€n8’L 00'02Z2°LsE’E D0 09T LEE’E BT LIL'OLL'E Te10] sonusAsSy pung astidasjug
e m EEEEEEEESESEEEEEEE AEESSSESSEEEEENEER SESSSSSSSSEESSSSSS SESCSEEEEESSSSSSSS SCoEEswsSssssaszuEn

% §5°9¢ %5105 9%T 9% L80'68 9€°5LZ'9 00°685'SEE 00°68B5'SEE L6°05C'8E0'T TYIOL INIWINYAEA
% €8°€E L6°69L'S £0°0ET 00°0LT 00°000°'9 00°000'9 08°502°TSL'T g-uoN - sabxeyp burjezado-uoN - I2Y3I0 666-065-50
% L6°9L €5°TIST'T LY 8¥8'E 00°0Q 00°000°'S 00°000°S 0%°295'% adsg-uoN - 392Q Ped 966-065-50
$ 00°0 (00°0LB) 00°0LB 00°0 00°0 00°'0 00°0 1deq-uoN - sjuswAediaap FJO PUNIaY S66-065-S0
% 0070 (6L°€F) 6L EV 00°0 00°0 00°0 1S°6¥L 1ds@-uoN - S934 dued ¥66-065-50
% 9L°¥ S¥°608°€E SS°06T 00°0 00°000'% 00°000'% 9E " VTE'L adsg-uoN - suter) juswhordwsun Z66-065-S0
2 00'0 00°000°00T 00°0 00°0 00°000'00T 00°000'00T 00°000'00T 3jdeg-uoN - pung T[eISUSH 03 IBISURIL 026-065-S0
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 97 B6E'8S 5380) 9D0TAISS 13990 I8Y3I0 0£L-065-50
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°'0 (LS°S5L°'0%) onsSSI LT0¢ PUCH - 1§2I93UI 0ZL-065-50
% 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 00°'0 00°0 00°005'T eg-uoN - BpTg ueyl isyjo sjuswasoxdwl 0£9-065-S0
% TO°LOT (S0°6¥) S0'6¥L 85'SE 00°00L 00°00L 00'02% xauutq AeptroH @vAoTdwd $55-065-50
§ LO'L 00°L69 00°€S 00°0 00°0SL 00°0SL 00°0 spxemy/butisen 2efordwd €55-065-S0
% TE"9TT (00°TZT) 00" €98 00°€S 00°Z¥L 00°2Z¥L 05°2ZHL ssaforduy - suorIeZTUNMLT TSS-065-S0
% 00°0S 00°%TT 00°%TT 00" FTT 00822 00°822 00" ¥TT 3sey Bnag/wexy juewlorduz-214 0S5-065-5S0
% 0S°'€L 66°S0T T0° %62 00°0 00°00% 00°00% 00°0SE NON- sdryszaquep 3 ‘'qns ‘'qnd ‘SYO0H 0¥S-065-50
% €9°¢€ ST LTE'T SS°ZTL S9°LY 00°000°2 00°000°2 L8 EY adsg-uoN - abelsod BZS-065-50
% §S°LT 6€°22T'% T9°LL8 967262 00°000°'S 00°000'S 0% T96'% adsg UON - SwIoFTun STS-065-50
3 T9°% L6°T66'6€E €0°2E6'T 00°0 00°526'T¥ 00°526'T¥ 60°9TE’S 1yexado - ssTousburiuo) B sSIToULbBISWF TZS-065-50
% 08 TO 906°T 86756 00°0 00°'000'2 00°000'T vy 9% adeq-uoN - sa71ddng Butrjexado 0€5-065-S0
% 96°0€ LL"LTS £2°ZE2 05" L6 00°0SL 00°0SL 0L"89L Tejusuixedsg-uoN - s3TTddns 20110 0T1S-065-50
% 1Iv'2L 05°528'¢€2 05°61S'T9 0o0°0 00°SkeE’‘98 00°SHE'98 06°280'€EL jdsg-uoN - soueansul A3JTTTqeTT 0S¥-065-S0
% €€°7¢ 9E£°S67 ‘€ $9°%00'T 6T°L8Y 00°005'% 00°005'% S8°¥LE'T 1deQ-uoN - S9s®a] pue STEIUSY 0FP-065-50
% 65°VE €L TEE'QT LZT°890'TT 8% L9T'T 00°000'TE 00°000‘ZE 0T°B808'0€E adag-uoN - ButiTpny pue BUTIUNOOOY 0ZE-065-50
% 00°0 00°6%L ‘BT Q0" 0 00°0 00°6¥%L 8T 00°6%L'8BT 000 a3dag - UON 43 - I0oQe] =Jjewul STE-065-S0
% 00°'0 00°005‘2 00°0 00°0 00°005'C 00°005'2 00°005°2 Q-UON - ISYl0 - SSDTAISS TRUOTSSSI0Id ZTE-065-50
% LS'€E ST TILE'L GL'820'% 00°0T8'€ 00°'000°'2T 00°000’2T 9L LVT'EE 3deQ-UON - S9OTAISS TBUOTSS38J0Id QTE-065-S0

Tejuswizedsg-uoN g4
e EEEEEEEE EEEEEEEEESSEEEEESE SN EEEEEEEEEESSESSS SSSSSSEEEEEEESSSSS SESSSSSSSSSSSSNEEE SEEESSSSSSsssso==s assssssssssss=ss=s
% 0T 8T T0°TI6T'TISS'T ¥z 189 °'9%¢€ 0T 055°06T 00°L95'%T6'T 00 L95'%T6°T ZB8°'B898°0€2'T TYLOL LNIWLIAVIEA
% 00°0 00°0 000 a0 0 00'0 aadpo I8M35 - S3IS0D 20TAISS 1Gad I2Y30 0EL-SES-S0
% 65°6% 8T 28 Z8° 018 00°0 00°S€9'T 00°5€9°T 8€°'¥Z8 ueo] TesodsTq JUSNTIFA 4AQ - ISSILIUI ZEL-SES-50
% 85°2Y ST°G566°EST SL'9TZ'¥IT SL°9TZ' %11 00°21Z'892 00°21Z'89¢2 90°€22°9L2 19dp I9M®S - 1SISIUI 0TL-SES-50
QIZITYa® | 1IOANE TIVAY SFENEIXE QLA EISNRIXY QIH IEpang Lav 18008 qILI0aV BTVYALOY NOIL4T¥O8HA INOODDY
FOVINZDNEA | €202 €202 €202 €eoz €202 2202 1/9

L / £20Z :1e3aA [e9Sldy 104 9)8|dwio) JA % £€'EE
sainyipuadx3y pung asudiajug
MXNNvOpITE SN STVIONVNIS ATHLNOW £Z0Z AMVANVF S61£6 :0N qor/dud-8d |ossql

ALID M10d

€€:80 £202/20/20




02/02/2023 08:27 Simple gg‘:‘flgeméh cet Page 4 of 5
gb614_pg.php/Job No: 93193 USER: JOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2023 thru Month: Jan
Fund: 08 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - GF IMPACT FEES
Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount

08-101-100 GF Police Public Safety Impact Fees 10,017.04

0B-101-101 GF Fire Public Safety Impact Fees 6,189.70

08-101-102 GF Recreation Impact Fees 23,278.78

08-101-103 GF Gen Gov't Facilities Impact Fees 39,266.07

08-151-100 Investments - FL SAFE GF Police Public Safety 217,190.01

08-151-101 Investments - FL SAFE GF Fire PFublic Saf... 137,271.81

08-151-102 Investments - FL SAFE GF Recreation 410,490.75

08-151-103 Investments - FL SAFE GF Facilities 455,906.97
=+ TOTAL ASSET+* 1,299,611.13
++ TOTAL LIABILITY** a.00
“* TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE+* 0.00

0B-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 1,272,938.66

¢+ TOTAL EQUITY**

#% TOTAL REVENUE*+

*+« TOTAL EXFENSE**

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

1,272,938.66

30,450.74

3,778.27

1,299,611.13




656°0EL’'8F Ly 2Le'9T LL OBPS'H 0o° 0 000D PL60E'SY s8anj Ipuasdxg 'sA SNUAASYH TeIoL

$TT"8 €L TOL'LE LT 8LL'E- 00" 0 00° 086 Th- 00°08b ‘TH- [o10: R4 Te30] sSsanjipuadxg pund 29 joedwr A9

STE EL 92°620'TT pL"0SH ‘OE LL*OBS ‘P 00" 08% ' TF 00" 08% ‘TH L 60E‘S2 Tel0] Sonuaasy pung sS4 joedur I9

R —————————— PR e b

% IT'6 €L°TOL'LE LT BLL'E 0070 00°08%"1¥ 00°08% ‘1% 00°0 STYLOL INIWLYYAAA

% 00°'0 00°'%8T'T a0’ 0 00°0 00" %¥8T'T 00" ¥8T'T 00°0 SPUSPTATQ/IUI 09y ¥ SHIBJ - SIAIBSSY TE6-TLS-8BO

% Tv'S $8°L8T 8T ST 0%0'T 000 00°822'6T 00°82ZZ'61 000 soo3 joedw] D9y I SYIPd - SIAIISOY 0E€6-CLS-BO

% 00°0 00" BEY 00°0 00°0 00°8E¥ 00°'8¢EY 00°0 SPTATGE/IUl A3JTTTORS OTIqNd - S°AISSSY TE6-6ES-80

% L9781 66°2T9°L T 8%L'T 00°0 00°'19€'6 00°T9€'6 00°0 984 joedur AJTTToRd OTTqNd - S9AISEdY 0€6-6E5-80

% 00°0 00°92T 00°0 000 00°9¢T 00°92T 00°0 ATQ/3ul Aje3es OT[qnd SITd - S9AISSSH Te6-225-80

% 60°6 68°0S%'¢E TT'SvE 00°0 00°96L'E 00°96L'€E 000 joedwl A3s37es OTTqNd SITd - S9AISSIA 0£6-TT5-80

% 00°0 00°2s¢ 000 00°0 00252 00°25¢ 0070 a/3ul A3sges oTITqnd 90TT0d - S3AISSIY TE6-T125-80

% 60°6 T0°0S%'9 66°¥%9 00°0 00°S60°L 00°S60°L 00°0 oedur Ajeges OTIQNd SOTTOd - S3AIITA 0£6-TTS-80
SEINLIANIIXE

s=ssmEsnn EEss= ssss mEEEEEESCCCSSSSSSS SESSSEINSSSCINNNNSD SESSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS SESSEOEEERSSSSSSSSSS ESESSESEEEEREESSSS

$ TP EL 9Z°620'1T $LT0SY OE LLTOPS ¥ 00°08% 1% 00°08% ‘T %L 60E°'S9 STVYLOL INIWLYIVIIA

% 88°99L (99 LEE'ET) 99 LEE'ST LL OBS P 00°000'Z 69°5€9°8 HIYS Td - SPUSPTATQ/IE3I33UI 00Z-TIE-80

4 5€£°9¢ 96°S€T'TT %0°266'9 00°0 00°822'6T 00°822'671 ST°022'9¢ o34 3joedwl S3TITTTARd OTTIqnd 0TL-¥TE-80

A SYTERY 9€°002'S %9°09T'%¥ 00°0 00°19¢€'6 00'T3€E’'6 0%°209'ST 284 joedul UOTIEaIDIY R SYIBG 0T9-YTE-80

3 LETO9E 95'81¥%'2 ¥% 0BE'T 00°0 00°96L'€E 00°96L'€E 59°9LT’S 54 1oedur Ajsgyes OoTIqnd - SNOSIY/IITd 0TT-PCE-8O

A 9£°9¢ $0°STS'¥ 96°6L5'Z 000 00°560°L 00°S60°L S8°¥L9'6 o84 joedwr A3eges oT(qnd - 9OTTCd 00T-¥ZE-80

SHNNIATY
QAZITYAY LIDIA=Q/ (8BADXH) FONIATS qLX HANGIASYE INAYEO0D QELVAIOTLNY HONIATY QILVAIDLIINY | IONSATY A YOIY¥d NOILAINDBAA INOODOV
OVIREDNAG | €202 €202 (3414 rae {34114 {441} 4 1/

L / €202 183/ [BOSIY J04 ajajdwo) JA % EE'EE
sanuaaay jabpng
SaNuUaAdy [e19adg J|49

) : dyd-Bd™1,058q6
A Ol STVIONVNIZ ATHLNOW £20Z A¥VANVF e o el




02/02/2023 08:27 Simple Balance Sheet Page 5 of 5
gb614_pg.phplJob No: 93193 P USER: JOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2023 thru Month: Jan
Fund: 09 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - EF IMPACT FEES
Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount

09-101-800 EF Sewer Impact Fee Account 388,300.04

09-101-900 EF Water Impact Fee Account 186,327.64

09-151-800 Investements - Sewer Impact 1,662,114.39

09-151-3900 Investements - Water Impact 270,259.01

09-169-900 CIP - Construction Costs 28,872.10
*% TOTAL ASSET** 2,535,873.18
+* TOTAL LIABILITY** 0.00
** TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE®** 0.00

09-271-100 Unreserved Fund Balance 2,475,545.77
*% TOTAL EQUITY** 2,475,545.77
*% TOTAL REVENUE** 66,489.41
*% TOTAL EXPENSE*+ 6,162.00
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 2,535,873.18




Tk LZE ‘DO- Tk-LZE ‘09 ZI"6BE‘ET 00" 0 000 NDO"EE9’'%T s2anj]1puadxy " SA SDUAAFY TE3I0L
xZe"F D0 BLO'6TT- 00291 ’9- an-=o - D0 0HC“SET— oo.o¢|N:u,N.n| lmw..mmhﬁml Te30], ssanjipusdxyg pung 333 joedmy J9
$60"ES 65" 0DGL ‘8% TH"68% ‘99 ZT°6BE’ET 00°'DBZ*8CT 00'0%E‘SCT GF"8TP‘0TT Tea0], Ssnuaaay pung 233 joedwy J4F
% 26'% 00 BLO'6TT 00°291°'3 Q0" 0 00°0%2°'SCT 00°0%2°'S2T S¥ 58L'56 STYLOL ILNIWLIYIEA
% 00°0 00°005'T 00°0 000 00°00S'T 00°009'T Q0" 0 SPUSPTAT(/IUT IBMIS - S3AIIFSY TE6-5ES-60
% 00°0 00" 00E 88 a0 0 Qo0 00°00€’'88 00°00€ ‘B8 00°0 sa8d joedwl IaM3S - S9AIIEDY QE6-SES-60
% 00°0 (00°STV'¥%) Q0"STV'¥ 00°0 00°0 00°0 00" 0 Iswo3sn) pungay - 834 Joedu] I9M85 GCS-SES-60
% 00°0 00" 00S 00°0 00°0 00°00S 000085 00°0 SPUSPTATE/3UI ISJBM - SIAISSIY TEG-EES-60
% 00°'0 00°0%6'%E 00°0 00°0 00°0%6 ‘%€ 00°0¥%6°'%E 00°0 sosg joedul I8)eM - SDAISS9Y 0E6-EES-60
% 00°0 00'0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 ¥8 02168 g JAI x33eM - ssaxboid UI UOTIONIISUOD 0S9-EES-60
% 00'0 (00" LPL'T) 00" LPL'T Q00 00°0 00°0 000 IBWOISN) pPunjsy - 994 Joedwr I93eM 6TS-EES-60
% 000 00°0 Q0°0 00°0 00’0 00°0 T9°%99°'9 sosg TebaT - S90TAIBS TRUOTSSSJ0Id O0TE-EES-60
STANLIANAdXH
% 60°€S 65°05L'8S T%°68%'99 ZI'6FE‘ET 00°0%Z‘SeT Sv 8TH 01T SIVIOL LNIWLIVAHA
% T8 EIZT (I¥ 9Lz 'eCe) LS 2CTAAS 24 Z1 LBT'L 00°'000°2 00°000°'2 G7°B99°'€T ddYS T4 - SPUSPTATE/IS9IS3UI  00T-T9E€-60
% 00°0¢ 00°0TB'T9 Q0" 06% ‘392 00°ST¥'¥% 00°00€'88 00°00€'88 00°0T8°'TS seag 1oedwul IsmeS QZZ-¥ZE-60
% 00°'S% 00 LTIZ'6T 00 EZL’ST 00°LPL'T 00°0%6'¥E 00°0%6'HE 00°0%6'PE sasg 3joedwI Is3eM 0TZ-%CE-60
% 0070 Q00 000 000 00°0 00°0 00" 0 AY TYLOL
SHANIATT
LIDIZEA/ (BSEDXT) HANIASY dLX AONIARE INIIND AQILVIIDILINY BONSASY QIIY4IOIINY | JONIATE ¥X ¥OI¥d NOILJIIJOBAA INOODOY
HOVINZEDIEHA] | €202 €Z0Z €Z0Z rae €202 zzZoz /9
L | £20T :1B3A |BOSIY 104 313|dWOD A % £E°EE
SINUAAY _u_oonw 4143
MVYNNVOP :¥3sn 661£6 :0N qor/dyd-6d 105896

g8} o g} ebed

STVIONVNId ATHLNOW £20C AUVNNVE

ALID M10d

€€:80 €£202/20/20



POLK COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

STATISTICAL DATA

West

Division

#
e —— ———————————

Date: February 9, 2023
To: Patricia Jackson, City Manager
From: Deputy Christina Poindexter #7376

Subject:  Statistical Report for January 2023

Northwest

District

ACTIVITY

FELONY ARREST

AFFIDAVITS FELONY

MISDEMEANOR ARREST

AFFIDAVITS MISDEMEANOR

OUT OF COUNTY/STATE
WARRANT ARRESTS

OO |O|Ww

PROCAP WARRANT ARREST

TOTAL ARRESTS

SEARCH WARRANTS

FIELD INTERROGATION
REPORTS

TRAFFIC CITATIONS

INTELLIGENCE REPORTS

STOLEN PROPERTY
RECOVERED

HRS. TRANSPORTING/
AGENCIES/DIVISIONS

OFFENSE REPORTS

NARCOTICS SEIZED

ASSETS SEIZED

PATROL NOTICES

FOXTROT REPORTS

TOW-AWAY NOTICES

oMo |O

COMMUNITY CONTACTS

496

TRAFFIC STOPS

45

TOTAL DISPATCHED CALLS
FOR SERVICE

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07)

124

Page 1of 2



In January 2023, there were two (2) PROCAP captured crimes as compared to two (2) in January
2022. There was one (1) Criminal Mischief that occurred involving possibly two separate
subcontractors for Best Buy, who have ongoing issues with each other. There was one (1) Petit
Theft that occurred at Cattleman’s Feed Store of 54 wooden pallets from the location. The
suspect was in a white F250/350 pulling a trailer already loaded with several wooden pallets. The
truck in question pulled on to the property around 0300 hours which is an unreasonable time for
pallet collection, from the contracted company for replacement pallet pick up. In all for 2023 we
are sitting even with two Procap crimes reported in January 2022. These crimes are not related
and do not pose as any crime trend compared to crimes within the County, both crimes appear to
be isolated incidents.

CASE
Sictor. | CaseNa e Fran. ncto DoW Location Narrative Det PRINTS  VIDED.  STATUS
PETIT THEFT :
13 PESO- 2023-01-20/ |2023-01-20/ |Fri 121 COMMONWEALTH AVE N Unk susp driving a white flatbed Ford F250 or F350
230002796 |0313hrs 1006hrs CATTLEMAN'S FEED STORE remaoved approx 54 wood pallets from location at
319Hrs. Scheld no  Ives  |ongoing
CRIMINAL MISCHIEF
13 PCs0- 2023-01-13/ [2023-01-16 / ([Mon |RS06 HWY33 N Unk susp punctured 2 tires on the victs enclosed
230002275 |0700hrs b BEST BUY WAREHOUSE trailer Made contactd with security, Obtaining
viduo. Scheid: ne Vi Ongoin
[ January | Warch Moy une Juby [ Seplember | Ociober | Movember | December | Y10 Tolals | Morthly | ¥TD
022 | 2023 | 2002 | 2023 | 2022 | 2 2002 | 2073 | 2022 3| 2022 [ 2023 | 2022 | 2023 | 2020 | 2023 | 2022 | 2023 2022 | 2 2022 | 2023 [ 2622 | 2023] 2002 | 2023 | Change | 2022 § 2023
o 0 ] 1 o % A 00
1] (] 0 0% A 00
['] 1] 1] -200% . 0.0
] % 00 | 00
[1e3 00 | 00
2 % 10 | 0.0
0 1 o % oo
1 @ '] D 1] i 100% | O L
0 a a o 0 ] 1] 0% 0 X
0 1] O 1 a 0 o 1] ] 0% 0, A
1 1 0 o o o 0 o 1] 1 1 100% | 1. J
2 4 | 0 5__ 1 ] 0 0 10 4 2 0 2 2 0% 2 0
0% N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA INIA HNIA NIA NIA % 0%
[]
[Fir's ]ol4lolnl-olnralaln-|a|-a|-o|r]oli:olulo.]110L4|o|rlo 0] 4 7 YIDFAR |

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof2



Public Works & Utilities Report
January 2023

Public Works Department
BUILDING MAINTENANCE: 38
VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE: 29
EVENT SET UP- INSPECTION: 15
LANDSCAPING, MOWING: 18
PARKS AND RECREATION: 13
PROCUREMENTS:

REPAIRS: 1

REQUISITION PROCESSING: 5
STREETS AND SIGNS: 1
STORMWATER: 1

STREET REP AND MAINTENANCE: 2
TECH SUPPORT: 1

TRASH PARKS AND FACILITIES: 6
TRASH ROADS AND STREETS: 3
AP’S PROCESSED: 81

PO’S PROCESSED: 8

Total Work Orders: 135

Utilities Department
TURN ON: 23
TEMPORARY SHUT OFF: 28
REREAD - FREE: 1
INSTALL - WATER: 1
TURN OFF: 25
METER MAINTENANCE: 94
LAPTOP TEST - FREE: 3
TURN BACK ON FROM SHUT OFF LIST: 24
CUSTOMER CONCERN: 6
LOCATES: 6
LIFT STATION MAINTENANCE: 30
LIFTSTATION REPAIR: 2
WATER LINE REPAIR: 2
WTP REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE: 45
WWTP REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE: 17
NO READS: 346
METERS READ: 3,323
EXERCISE WATER VALVES AND LOCATE
REMOVED DAMAGED FENCE AT OLD SPRAY FIELD

Total Work Orders: 313

Submitted By:

Rick Jiles
Interim PW/UT Director



Utility Billing Report
January 2023

New Accounts Established: 23
Final/Terminated Service: 26
Bills Processed: 2,702

Email/ Bill Customers: 1,784
Work Orders Processed: 206
Lock off for Nonpayment: 25
Nonpayment fees ($50): 54
Billed Consumption: 13,143,000
Billed/Revenue: $290,298.75
Residential Billing: 2593
Irrigation Billing: 574
Commercial Billing: 99

Building Rentals Activity/Bronson Center/Freedom Park: 12

On Going Projects
-Process Deposit Refunds

-Working with the Utilities Department in Diamond Maps to verify that all meter
information is correct.

-Process monthly Adjustment Reconciliations, Zero Charge Reports and Cycle D
(Debt Consolidation).

-Meter Replacement Program
Staff Objectives

Reroute meters into walking order, merge old locations, train in New Global Work
Order System. Review 0 usage accounts. Train new hire.

Respectfully Submitted by:
Chasity Guinn
Utility Billing Supervisor



City Commission Meeting
February 21, 2023

PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS: Irish American Heritage Month

____INFORMATION ONLY
“X__ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

This proclamation is in recognition of Irish American Heritage Month

ATTACHMENT:

Irish American Heritage Month Proclamation
ANALYSIS: N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Recognize March 2023 as Irish American Heritage Month



Proclamation

WHEREAS, by 1776 nearly 300,000 Irish nationals had emigrated to the American colonies and played a crucial
role in America’s War for Independence; and

WHEREAS, five signers of the Declaration of Independence were of Irish descent and three signers were Irish
born; and

WHEREAS, Irish Americans helped to fashion a system of government for our young Nation; and
WHEREAS, twenty-two Presidents have proudly proclaimed their Irish American heritage; and

WHEREAS, in 1792 Irish born James Hoban provided the architectural plans for the White House and served as
one of the supervising architects for the construction of the Capitol; and

WHEREAS, Irish born Commodore John Barry was recognized by the United States Congress in September of
2002 as the “First Flag Officer of the United States Navy”; and

WHEREAS, Commodore John Barry fought the last sea battle of the American Revolution off the coast of Florida;
and

WHEREAS, in 1813, Captain Oliver Perry, An Irish American, achieved a major naval victory in the Battle of
Lake Erie; and

WHEREAS, in 1942, the 5 Sullivan brothers made the ultimate sacrifice for democracy and freedom during the
Naval Battle of Guadalcanal and later had the Destroyer USS Sullivan commissioned in their memory; and

WHEREAS, the Irish first came to Spanish “La Florida” in the 1500s - first as missionaries and mercenary soldiers
and then as planters, traders, businessmen, doctors and administrators; and

WHEREAS, three of the Spanish Governors of “La Florida” were actually Irish military officers; and

WHEREAS, Father Richard Arthur, an Irish-born priest from Limerick who was appointed parish priest for St.
Augustine in 1597 and ecclesiastical judge of “La Florida,” established the first public school in America and
opened it to both boys and girls of all races; and

WHEREAS, Andrew Jackson, whose family came from County Antrim, served as Florida’s military governor
following its acquisition by the United States; and

WHEREAS, Irish Americans, since America’s inception, have provided and continue to provide leadership and
service to this nation’s political, business and religious establishments; and

WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper to celebrate the rich cultural heritage and the many valuable contributions of
Irish Americans.

POLK CITY

Joe LaCascia, Mayor
ATTEST:

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk



City Commission Meeting
February 21, 2023

AGENDA ITEM #1: PUBLIC HEARING-ORDINANCE 2022-11-VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION
INTO THE CORPORATE CITY LIMITS OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA

INFORMATION ONLY
X__ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE.

Ordinance 2022-11 - an Ordinance of the City Commission of Polk City, Florida, voluntarily annexing
property into the corporate limits of Polk City, Florida, Pursuant to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes;
amending the City Boundary to include said property; providing findings; providing for Notice by
Publication of the Proposed Annexation; filing a certified copy this Ordinance as provided by law;
providing for conflicts, severability, and an effective date.

ATTACHMENT:

Ordinance 2022-11

Annexation Exhibit Map

Map of Survey

Application for Voluntary Annexation

ANALYSIS:
Polk City has received an application for Voluntary Annexation into the city limits of Polk City. The
address of the property is currently 0 SR 33 N; Parcel No. 24-27-01-000000-021020. The metes and

bounds of the property are attached. This was approved on First Reading October 18, 2022.

Staff Recommendation

Adopt Ordinance 2022-11 on Second and Final Reading.



ORDINANCE 2022-11

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE POLK
CITY, FLORIDA; VOLUNTARILY ANNEXING PROPERTY INTO
THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA,
PURSUANT TO SECTION 171.044, FLORIDA STATUTES;
AMENDING THE CITY BOUNDARY TO INCLUDE SAID
PROPERTY; PROVIDING FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE
BY PUBLICATION OF THE PROPOSED ANNEXATION; FILING A
CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS ORDINANCE AS PROVIDED BY
LAW:; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Polk City, Florida (“City”), has received a Petition for Voluntary
Annexation of certain lands (“Property”) into the incorporated boundaries of the
City; and,

WHEREAS, Polk City staff has reviewed and subsequently recommended
approval of the annexation of said property to the City Commission of Polk City,
Florida, and have accomplished all actions required under the City Charter and the
Code of Ordinances of Polk City; and,

WHEREAS, the Property is presently located in unincorporated Polk
County, is contiguous to the City, and is reasonably compact and will not result in
the creation of enclave as required by section 171.044, Florida Statutes; and,

WHEREAS, the map and legal description of the Property attached to and
incorporated in this Ordinance as Exhibit “A” depicts the land and parcel proposed
to be annexed by this Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, the City Commission hereby determines that the Petition bears
the signature of the owner of all the Property, which means all of the owners of the
area proposed to be annexed in accordance with and pursuant to Section 171.044,
Florida Statutes, and,

WHEREAS, Polk City has furnished the Board of County Commissioners of
Polk County a copy of the published notice of annexation by certified mail no
sooner than ten (10) days prior to said publication, and said action is hereby ratified
and confirmed by the City Commission; and,

WHEREAS, all other procedural and notice requirements mandated by
State law and the City’s Charter and Code of Ordinances have been followed and
satisfied; and,



WHEREAS, the City Commission of the Polk City, Florida hereby
determines that it is to the advantage of the Polk City and in the best interests of
the citizens of Polk City to annex the property described below.

WHEREAS, the City Commission hereby determines that the owner of the
property and the area proposed to be annexed has consented to the annexation,
and pursuant to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes, no referendum is required.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF
POLK CITY, FLORIDA:

Section 1. Legislative Findings. The above recitals are hereby
adopted and incorporated into this Ordinance as legislative findings of the City
Commission of the Polk City, Florida.

Section 2. Annexation of Property. The Property described in Exhibit
“A” to this Ordinance (hereafter “Property” or “Annexed Property”) shall be and is
annexed into Polk City, Florida, and the boundary lines of the municipality shall be
redefined to include the Property described and depicted in Exhibit “A”, which is
attached to and incorporated in this Ordinance. The City Commission directs and
determines that he boundaries of Polk City as specified by the City’s Charter shall
be redefined to include the Annexed Property.

Section 3. Effect of Annexation. Upon this Ordinance becoming
effective, the property owners of the said Annexed Property shall be entitled to all
the rights and privileges and immunities as are from time-to-time granted to
property owners of Polk City, as further provided in Chapter 171, Florida Statutes,
and shall further be subject to the responsibilities of ownership as may from time-
to-time be determined by the governing authority of Davenport, and the provisions
of said Chapter 171, Florida Statutes.

Section 4. Notice of Proposed Annexation. Notice of the proposed
annexation shall be published at least once each week for two consecutive weeks
in a newspaper published in Polk City, Polk County, Florida, before final passage.
Not fewer than 10 days prior to publishing or posting the ordinance notice required
under section 171.044(2), the City Commission shall provide a copy of the notice,
via certified mail, to the Board of County Commissioners of Polk County, Florida.
A certified copy of this Ordinance shall, after adoption, be filed with the Clerk of
the Circuit Court and the Chief Administrative Officer in and for Polk County,
Florida, and with the Department of State, of the State of Florida, within seven (7)
days after the adoption of this Ordinance.

Section 5. Land Use and Zoning. The said property shall, upon its
annexation, remain subject to the County’s land use plan and zoning or subdivision




regulations until the City adopts a comprehensive plan amendment that includes
the Property annexed, as required by section 171.062, Florida Statutes.

Section 6. Conflicts. All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict with
this Ordinance are hereby repealed.

Section 7. Severability. Upon a determination by a court of competent
jurisdiction that a portion of this ordinance is void, unconstitutional, or
unenforceable, all remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect, it being
the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand notwithstanding the invalidity
of any part.

Section 8. No Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall not
be codified, but the Annexed Property shall be incorporated and included in all
appropriate maps of the City Limits of Polk City, Florida, by the City Manager, and
the City Manager is hereby directed to take any and all appropriate actions relative
to land use planning pertaining to the Annexed Property pursuant to this
Ordinance.

Section 9. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect as provided
by state law within ten (10) days of adoption.

PASSED ON FIRST READING this ___ day of , 2022.

PASSED ON SECOND READING this day of , 2022.

POLK CITY, FLORIDA

Joseph LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST:

Patricia Jackson, City Manager/Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

Thomas A. Cloud, Esquire
City Attorney



Polk County / City of Polk City

ANNEXATION EXHIBIT MAP

000430- n
000440 : .
000011
000470 omso&
UNINCORPORATED %

POLK COUNTY

000010

000020
000030

1010
000880

000040
000670
000970

000852

O BE A )
H 4 01-000000-0 020
000944
000060

000070

000080 000190

(R}

000090
000180

000100 7 000170

000160
000110

UNINCORPORATED . 000150

021030 POLK COUNTY 000130 000140
000120

Parcel Boundaries

Existing Polk City Boundary
SON S NSORACN N NN

:
g
oI 4




orrvess 48 420 30 4D

e ot L0 8 el e e
2645 54 FLLIVTS 3 TUNG AB OSZHORLFTY
YA INIWNION SIHL KD INIHV3dGY V35 TVAISIO GHL
80 . Y344V ONY HOAIAKNS GSNIIN VOINOTY
STHL 40 W3S ONY THAALYNDIS TYNIOIKO IHL LICHLIM QYA LON.
STANSYAS VAIKO IHL 40 £20 2L NOLLIZS
0L LNVSHNA ‘SHOAIAHNS GNYY 10 GHYOR VOIHONS L5 ¥ILIVHD
AG Q3H(ND3Y SV 32ULIVHA 40 SOUVANYLS. IHL SLIIN AIAMNS STHL
_31¥0 NOISIA3Y HO 10 A3AHNS AIVONNOR -
3L 10N 5300 3L -
£6L5 W5d "HLIWS ) QTYNOH et -
bR \
Brrh Tl
e 2
g \
-
st L - /
_S-__-v!\\ /
k) /
AR
- f .
% .wun-w
AJAYNS JHAVEDO4OL ONY AYVAONNOSY # / M
9 04 08 64
1 35¥Hd SIUOHS 4&
3AN0 1N /
WY 85Tk ss1
ER 0 Y \ \ \
aiona \
59700 =
LA N—ﬁﬁ...q / 9€Dd R T / s£09088d / 9E Dd O 4 /
Sion “avn puny T35vHd 3O LW 135vH4 30 LW 135¥Hd 30 1
4 / L 6101
3is
- m..m g, / /
. il S o 1 \ e \
. i R i, M
..hu\....url_.u.WJauvll — %.ﬁ ——— A — e #
CR - S
" -t d 9666 =Y \
| ..r.n ~ 1530 vava 3A4N /J.W : 5
r— — A 2 ma
- i - sE sd0q 84 | 5 \ L%
_ T3SVHA SHHOHS w_ B L s = ..W %
Tzt (ALVA AAAYNS o -\ 5 N \!

ST LAY

s
£ P AIWOST 10 I
ool ¥

5531 %0 WOV S34Y 99T 1D 1134 INYAIDS 26465 SHIVINOD &

3ITUPLIO LIIN3E LNOHUM JOVH S¥M AJAUAS SIHL §

1D NOUYAZII Y DHIAYH ¥SI0 SSYHE HLIM LNINNNDM ILIVINOY
5 53°50+p19 HOLLYLS ‘000-04091 Q1 NOIL23S OVOY YA
1OVLSIO HOILYINOASNYIL 40 INTALY4IO YOIVOT4 RO O3S SHOILY

i o

azNorssY 38 1OH AVA STILWVd QUINLOL ALV
0L 031411833 51 11 ADHAM OL S3I1VTd THL YOS ATHO GITYA I AIAMAS SIHL §

4¥¥ 3Lv4 INTUNSHI GOD1 NO 035vE

IGIFEDE950 OH LTI
b 10504 B
IU¥ AIHLLYHL AILY33 5300 JH HOAOHLIY 03L¥JIONI NDILYIDT LIVHZ JHL K

CORLE PRSI OPHD TN LeteTE ] 2102
ey 012N DONYING 10 SAIANI SHIRTDY

1HORHNIDVY

Y NAMGHS SIILITLLA ANNOUY:
HOAIAN

INDYDUIUNN 3H1 03LYI01 MTYIISAHA LON SWH YDA3ANNS JHL €

INLYIHISINAIN S UO LAY
KNSSIHL €

MLy

#_99 O, TN DNIZ9 T I5¥MH4 STNOHS IANO
L4 40 JN1Y HLODS 3L ND G35YA GNY GIWNSSY S UNLINULS SHINY2E T

( SILON )

ETHTEEP000S T ETHE I TN

]
G ST Lawo v

AINdNS 40 dVIN

31V2S DIHdYY9

e
9 e LN 05 YO RS L3

z

E4

NOILJI23 SIHL Y04 ONINNIOIE 40 INIOS 3HL 0L

1334 ¥£ B6T 40 TINVLSIO ¥ 30 UV JHL ONOTY AWILSIMHLNOS IINTHI L34 59 6665 40
SOUQYY ¥ SHIAVH ‘T 35VHd STUOHS JANO "IN GINDLNIWIHOLY IHL HD4 3N AVVNTIOR
AIHILSIM 3HL ONIZE ATHLSIMHLUON JAVIND3 JAKNI V NO INIOd ¥ 0L 1334 5L 3NN
VIQVY V¥ NQ 'LSV3 .¥¥.02.9 HANGS JONIHL ,5E,55.F 40 NIONV TYHLNID ¥ HONOLHL L334
BE 182 24Y JHL ONOW JINIHL 59 GYHS 40 SAIGVH ¥ ONIAYH ATYILSIMHMIHON JAVINGD
3IA¥ND Y DNIIA EE OVOY FLVLS SO N1 AYM-AG-LHOIY LSV3 JHL NO INIOH ¥ QL 1334 69 bZT
3N AVM-40 LHOIW HLYON GIVS SNOTY ATHILSIMHINGS INNIIND 3INIHL NOILIIIKT
SIHL HDJ ININNID3S 40 LNICd IHL ONI3G "1 35VHd SIHOHS IO LN QINGINIAIL0LY
3HL 40 HINHOD LSIMHLNGS THL O1 1331 £0 QIE INTT AVM JO-LHOIE HIHON OIVS INDTY
ATHALSIMHINGS 3INIHL ‘OYOY JATIQ INNOI 30 INM AYAV-40 LHDIE HLHON 3HL OL 1334
6 060T 40 IINVLSIO Y ‘T NOLLIIS QIVS 40 INN 15¥2 IH1 ONOTY 15V] .£0.00. HANOS NNY
ANV 15¥3 b2 I9NYY HLNDS 27 dIHSNMOL ‘T NOILI35 QIS 40 b/T 35 JHL 40 b/ T 3N 3HLA0
¥INUOD LSYIHLYON TH1 1Y IINIWINOD $L433X3 ONV S531 OSTY ‘YaIHD14 AINNDD 0K 40
SOOI 1NN HL JO 92 30V4 ‘L6 X008 LY1d NI 0IQBOI3H SY ‘2 35WHd 'SIHOHS 3ANO
1 14333 GNY SST) 051V 'VOIIG4 ALNNO2 X104 30 SH0I3H INBNA “LE ONY 9 530V
"8 X008 J¥1d NI 130H0)2H S¥ 'T ISVHd STUOHS JAMIO LW 141DK3 ONY 5531 'EE QVOH
3LVLS 30 1SYI ANY QYO JAIIO INNOW 40 HAHON DNIK] ‘YOIBOTS ‘ALNNOD Y104 ‘LSV3

2 IONVA HLOS £Z dIHSNMDL "L NOILD3S 40 /T 35 IHL 40 /L 3N 2HL 40 NOILUOA LYWL

( NOLLdINDS3a )

{37v2S OL LON) dVIA ALINIDIA

>




APPLICATION TO ANNEX PROPERTY

Polk City
123 Broadway Blvd., SE
Polk City FL 33868

This application provides an applicant with a list of required information for use in
preparing a request to annex property into Polk City. The request must be submitted as
an original form. Additional applications may be obtained by email or picked up at City
Hall. Reproductions of this application will be accepted provided that it is clear and

legible.

Please PRINT unless otherwise specified:
Chad Brooker, PE

Applicant's Name:

Address: " 4371 Conroy Club Drive, Orlando, FL 32835

Nuruddin Musani

Owner's Name:

Address of the Property g g 33 N (Parcel No. 24-27-01-000000-021020)
to be annexed:

Polk City, FL 33868

City, State & Zip Code:

Telephone Number: _ 863-397-1626

(indicate name of company, group, or organization represented.)

has read and understands the instructions on this

ation or misrepresentation made on this application may be
ssued by Polk City. Approval granted by said
plicable Local, State, or Federal

Applicant states that he/she
application. Any false inform
grounds for revocation of any approvals i
Commission in no way constitutes a waiver from any ap

regulations.

Owner's Signature W Date 08-01-2022




Convenient Center (CCX)

PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE: PROPOSED ZONING: Convenient Center (CCX).

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING LAND USES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY:
The subject property is currently vacant.

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING LAND USES SURROUNDING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY:
North: Single Family Development

South: Gas Station

East: Single Family Development

West: SR 33 & Vacant
PROPOSED USE OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY (DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION, SCHEDULE, AND PHASES):

The applicant is annexing this property into Polk City for a retail and convenience store development.

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE DENSITY UNDER EXISTING FUTURE LAND USE MAP DESIGNATION:
N/A

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE DENSITY UNDER PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE MAP DESIGNATION:
N/A

The above application for an amendment to the City of Polk City’s Comprehensive Plan is submitted for the City’s review by the legal
owner(s) of the property subject to the request, whose name(s) and signature(s) follows:

(Please type or print names)
Nuruddin Musani

) n
Signature: W I~

Date: %//bf?ozz

If Other Owners:

Name: Manjani Naushad

Signature: M

02|10l 2022~

Dated:




DATE: 05’/ (6] L

This is a letter of authorization for the agent named below to act for me in all matters relating to an application(s) for the following

action(s), as submitted to the City of Polk City, Planning Services, in regard to my property described in the legal description attached
to the application(s):
X] Annexation
X1 Land Use Amendment
X] Zoning / Rezoning Request
Agent: Chad Brooker (Traditions Engineering LLC)
Ovmer of Property: Nuruddin Musani & Manjani Naushad

4
Signature of Owner: @M Vst
Signature of Owner: 5459‘55—,—_:__——.- _./l/“ -

TO BE NOTARIZED BELOW:

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF 8 i Vl?( 2
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this (O day of /"zf/f:.u%l)“ , 20z, by

/Uq v )L\ch M aviTah j{ N urUcu‘ n l/l UM who is/are personally known to me and who did (did not) take an oath.
LA |.

‘\\||||'lj'
W' CRy.%,
KPR, Pietrohhnd it S
SPGHRA, 7

.
.

-
§ 4y O™ 2020 =
.?“\'Junef-“gsg : ‘(E

Commission Expires: 3 &
% wo



Wherefore, Petitioner requests that the City accept this Petition and annex the
Property into the City at the City's discretion. The undersigned affirms and
represents that all actions required to be accomplished to authorize the action
taken herein have, in fact, been taken, and that the City shall have the right to rely
on the Petitioner's signature ascribed below as obligating the Petitioner and the
Property to the terms and conditions stated herein.

Dated this H dayof (0 2022 .

WITNESS: PETITIONER:
(N
Nivmson~
Signature S?gﬁ‘éfu re

Nuruddin Musani

Printed Name Printed Name

Signature

Printed Name

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF POLK

Td:f‘ &Eregaing instrument was aakn_owled ed before me this ) i day of
.20, by Np(V dip WS, an individual who is

personally known to me or  who produced his/her FL Doiver= [/ (s 2.
as identification.

(SEAL)

RENEE WRIGHT

gj‘ ,%% Notary Public, State of Fiorida
Commission# HH 231822
My comm. expires Apil 22, 2026

Notary Public U




City Commission Meeting
February 21, 2023

AGENDA ITEM #2: PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 2022-12 — FUTURE LAND USE MAP
AMENDMENT

_____INFORMATION ONLY
_X__ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Ordinance 2022-12 — Future Land Use Map Amendment in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State
Concern

ATTACHMENTS:

-Ordinance 2022-12
-Overview Report —Future Land Use Map Amendment and Zoning in the Green Swamp Area of Critical
State Concern

ANALYSIS:

The applicant is requesting a Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning to change the Future
Land Use and zoning of a +/- 1.37 acre parcel in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern “X”
from the Future Land Use of Polk County Convenient Center (CCX) and the zoning of Polk County to
CCX, Convenient Center. The subject parcel is located northeast of the SR 33 and Mt. Olive Road
Intersection, address being 0 State Road 33 N, Polk City.

The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on October 3, 2022 and approved 3/1 to forward to
the City Commission for approval of Future Land Use Map Amendment in the Green Swamp Area of
Critical State Concern.

Ordinance 2022-12 was adopted on First Reading on October 18, 2022 and was transmitted to
DEO for 60-Day DEO Review period (Second Reading, Public Hearing)

DEO has reviewed Ordinance 2022-12 in its entirety and had no comments.

City staff is recommending Option #1 below.

CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS:
Future Land Use Map Amendment Motion Options:

Adopt Ordinance 2022-12 on Second and Final Reading
Deny Ordinance 2022-12 on Second and Final Reading




ORDINANCE 2022-12

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE
FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN BY CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION
OF APPROXIMATELY 1.37 ACRES FROM POLK COUNTY
CONVENIENCE CENTER-X (CC-X) TO CITY CONVENIENCE
CENTER-X (CCX) IN THE GREEN SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL
STATE CONCERN; TRANSMITTING SAID AMENDMENT TO
THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY
FOR FINDING OF COMPLIANCE; PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS,
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK
CITY, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. FINDINGS AND INTENT. In adopting this Ordinance, the City
Commission of Polk City, Florida hereby makes the following legislative findings and
intent:

(1) Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, establishes the Community Planning
Act (“Act”), which empowers and mandates Polk City, Florida (“City”), to plan for future
development and growth and to adopt and amend comprehensive plans, or elements
or portions thereof, to guide the future growth and development of the City.

(2) Pursuant to the Act, the City has adopted a comprehensive plan
(“Comprehensive Plan”).

(3) The Act authorizes a local government desiring to revise its comprehensive
plan to prepare and adopt comprehensive plan amendments.

(4) The City has prepared an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the
Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use classification of approximately
1.37 acres of land within the City from Polk County Convenience Center-X (CCX) to
City Convenience Center-X (CCX) in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State
Concern.

(5) Pursuant to Section 163.3187, Florida Statutes, the City Commission held
a meeting and hearing on this Map Amendment, with due public notice having been
provided, to obtain public comment, and considered all written and oral comments
received during public hearings, including support documents.

(6) In the exercise of its authority the City Commission has determined it
necessary to adopt the proposed amendment to the Future Land Use Map contained

herein and as shown as Exhibit “A” to encourage the most appropriate use of land,
1



water and resources consistent with the public interest; and deal effectively with future
problems that may result from the use and development of land within the City; and to
ensure that the Comprehensive Plan is in full compliance with State law.

(7) The City Commission finds that the proposed amendment to the Future Land
Use Map contained herein furthers the purposes of, and is consistent with, the City’s
Comprehensive Plan, and is consistent with and compliant with State law, including, but
not limited to, Chapter 163, Part Il, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2. PLAN AMENDMENT. The Future Land Use Map of the City’s
Comprehensive Plan is hereby amended to include the map amendment set forth in
Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, which applies the
“Convenience Center -X” Future Land Use designation to approximately 1.37 acres of
land shown on such Exhibit.

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is
declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or
unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain
in full force and effect.

SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. Existing ordinances or parts of existing ordinances in
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 5. CODIFICATION OF ORDINANCE IN PLAN. An official, true, and
correct copy of this Ordinance and the City's Comprehensive Plan, as adopted and
amended from time to time, shall be maintained by the City Clerk. The City Clerk shall
make copies available to the public for a reasonable publication charge.

SECTION 6. TRANSMITTAL TO STATE. Within ten (10) days of final passage
and adoption of this Ordinance, Polk City shall forward a copy hereof, and all supporting
data and analysis, to the Fiorida Department of Economic Opportunity and any other
agencies or local governments that provided timely comments to the City, as required by
Section 163.3184(3)(c)d, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This effective date of the plan amendment
adopted by this Ordinance shall be thirty-one (31) days after the Florida Department of
Economic Opportunity notifies Polk City that the plan amendment package is complete,
or, if the plan amendment is timely challenged, the date on which the Florida Department
of Economic Opportunity or the Administration Commission, whichever is applicable,
enters a final order finding the amendment to be compliance in accordance with Section
163.3184(3)(c)4, Florida Statutes.

[Remainder of Page intentionally left blank.]
2



INTRODUCED AND PASSED on FIRST READING, this __ day of

2022.
POLK CITY, FLORIDA
Joe LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
CORRECTNESS:

Patricia Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum present
and voting by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida meeting in Regular Session this
____day of , 2022.

Joe LaCascia, Mayor ~
ATTEST:

Patricia Jackson, City Manager/Clerk



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-12
EXHIBIT “A”

City of Polk City
PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE MAP

| SUBJECT PARCEL
| Parcel ID#: 24-27-01-000000-021020
| Area: +/-1.37 acres
Existing Future Land Use: County CC-X
Proposed Future Land Use: City CC-X

Parcel Boundaries

] D Polk City Baundary

Polk County Future Land Use

CC-X - Convenience Center

1A

RL-1 - Residential-Low 1
Polk City Future Land Use
=2z RL-X - Residential Lows X

- BPC-X - Business Park Center X

TR T




POLK CITY
FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT & REZONING
OVERVIEW REPORT

February 21, 2023

10:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

Polk City Planning Commission
Central Florida Regional Planning Council

Ordinance 2022-12: Future Land Use Map Amendment in the Green
Swamp Area of Critical State Concern: A applicant-initiated Future Land
Use Map Amendment in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern
“X” to change the Future Land Use from County Convenience Center -X to
City Convenience Center-X on approximately 1.37 acres located at O State
Road 33 North (parcel number 24-27-01-000000-021020).

Ordinance 2022-13: Rezoning in the Green Swamp Area of Critical
State Concern: An applicant-initiated rezoning in the Green Swamp Area
of Critical State Concern “X” to change the zoning from County
Convenience Center-X to City ~ Convenience Center-X of approximately
1.37 acres located at 0 State Road 33 North (parcel number 24-27-01-
000000-021020).

AGENDA AND HEARING DATES:

October 3, 2022, 6:30 PM: Planning and Zoning Board (Public Hearing)
October 18, 2022, 7:00 PM:  Transmittal to DEO for 60 Day DEO review Period

(Second Reading, Public Hearing)

February 21, 2023, 7:00 PM: Second Reading — Adoption Hearing

ATTACHMENTS:

Aerial Photo Map

Existing Future Land Use Map
Proposed Future Land Use Map
Existing Zoning Map

Proposed Zoning Map
Applications

Page 1 of 17

Ovenview Report — SR 33 Fulure Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



PLANNING AND ZONING ACTIONS: The Polk City Planning and Zoning Commission held
a public hearing on the proposed amendments on Monday, October 3, 2022. The
Commission voted to forward the proposed amendments to the City Commission with a
recommendation of approval.

CITY COMMISSION ACTIONS: The City Commission of Polk City held first reading on the
proposed amendments on Tuesday, October 18, 2022. The Commission voted to transmit
Ordinance 2022-12 to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for review and
approve Ordinance 2022-13 on first reading.

STATE AGENCY REVIEW COMMENTS:
All required state agencies reviewed the proposed amendments and no comments were
offered.

CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS:
Future Land Use Map Amendment Motion Options:

1. Move to adopt Ordinance 2022-12 on second reading.
2. Move to adopt with a changes Ordinance 2022-12 on second reading.
3. Move to deny Ordinance 2022-12 on second reading.

Rezoning Motion Options:

1. Move to adopt Ordinance 2022-13 on second reading.

2. Move to adopt with a changes 2022-13 with changes on second reading.
3. Move to deny 2022-13 on second reading.

OVERVIEW:

Applicant/Owner Deelip Wagh and Naushad Manjani
| Agent Chad Brooker

Parcel IDs 24-27-01-000000-021020

Subject Area +/- 1.37 acres

Existing Future Land Use | Polk County

Proposed Future Land Use | Convenient Center (CCX) (Green Swamp)

| Existing Zoning Polk County
Proposed Zoning Convenience Center (CCX) (Green Swamp)

The applicant is requesting a Future Land Use Map Amendment and rezoning to change
the Future Land Use and zoning of a +/- 1.37 acre parcel in the Green Swamp Area of
Critical State Concern “X” from the Future Land Use of Polk County Convenient Center
(CCX) and the zoning of Polk County to CCX, Convenient Center. The subject parcel is
located northeast of the SR 33 and Mt Olive Rd Intersection, address being 0 State Road
33 N, Polk City. See attached Aerial Photo Map.

Page 2 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



BACKGROUND & REASON FOR REQUEST:
The purpose of the request is to change the Future Land Use and zoning.

STANDARDS FOR EVALUATING FUTURE LAND USE AND ZONING CHANGES:

The Polk City Planning Commission will provide recommendations, and the City
Commission will make a final motion to accept, reject, modify, return, or continue to seek
additional information on all proposed Future Land Use and zoning changes. The review
shall be considered and evaluated against the following standards:

e Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code.
e Land Use Compatibility.
e Public Facilities and Services Analysis.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code:

The request is to change the Future Land Use from Polk County Convenience Center
(CCX) and the zoning of Polk County CCX to City Future Land Use of Convenience
Center X and City Zoning of Convenience Center X. Descriptions for the existing and
proposed Future Land Use and zoning designations are provided as follows:

Existing — Future Land Use

Polk County Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Element, Policy 2.131-
B.2.1. A8 — Convenience Center (CCX) : The characteristics of the Convenience
Center future land use district shall be in conformance with Policies 2.110-C1-4 of the
Comprehensive Plan with the following exceptions:

(a) The one-mile minimum separation requirement in Policy 2.1 10-C3 applies only to
other Convenience Center districts and not to higher level activity center districts;

(b) Residential Uses are permitted when combined with commercial or office and are
developed at a minimum of five units per acre to a maximum of ten units per acre;
and,

(c) Off-street parking is to be minimized and placed to the rear of the front building
lines whenever practicable.

(d) Building facades shall include architectural interest and not constructed of entirely
blank walls and/or metal siding;

(e) Development shall include internal pedestrian pathways along roadways and
drives, between buildings and to adjacent residential areas

Proposed — Future Land Use

Polk City Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Element, Policy 44B -
Convenience Center: Convenience Centers are intended to accommodate the

Page 3 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



convenience-shopping needs of residents living within the immediate surrounding
area. The CCX district permits non-residential uses such as offices, convenience
stores, gas stations, dry cleaners and community facilities. The maximum floor area
ratio shall not exceed 0.25. Convenience Centers shall be located at the intersections
of arterial and/or collector roads. There shall be a one (1) mile traveling distance
within the Polk City SPA on public roads between the center of a Convenience Center
and the center of any other Convenience Center, or other higher level Activity Center
or Linear Commercial Corridor providing for the same convenience shopping needs.
This required separation may be reduced if: a) The higher-level Activity Center or
Linear Commercial Corridor within the required distance separation is over 80%
developed: or, b) the proposed Convenience Center market-area radius, minimum
population support is over 5,000 people.

Useable Area 1to 5 acres

Gross Leasable Area 3,000 to 20,000 square feet

Minimum Population Support 2,500 to 5,000 people

Market-Area radius 1 mile

Typical Leading Tenant Convenience Store

Other Typical Tenants Laundry, Dry cleaning, Barber,
Restaurant. Gas Station, Office

Development within a Convenience Center shall conform to the following criteria:

i. Convenience Centers shall have frontage on, or direct access to, an arterial or
collector roadway, or a frontage road or service drive that directly serves an
arterial or collector roadway.

il. Different uses within a Convenience Center shall incorporate the use of
frontage roads or shared ingress/egress facilities wherever practical.

ifi. Adequate parking shall be provided to meet the demands of the uses, and
interior traffic circulation patterns shall facilitate the safe movement of
vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian traffic.

iv. Buffering shall be provided where the effects of lighting, noise, odors, and other
such factors would adversely affect adjacent land uses. Parking lots, loading
areas, dumpsters, utilities and air conditioning units, signage, etc., are
examples of facilities that may require special buffering provisions.

V. Residential uses shall not be permitted in Convenience Centers.

Vi. Offices uses shall not exceed 40 percent of the total area within the
convenience center. Commercial uses may constitute 100 percent of the
convenience center.

Existing — Zoning

Polk County Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Element, Policy 2.131-
B.2.1. A8 — Convenience Center (CCX) : The characteristics of the Convenience
Center future land use district shall be in conformance with Policies 2.110-C1-4 of the
Comprehensive Plan with the following exceptions:

Page 4 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



(a) The one-mile minimum separation requirement in Policy 2.110-C3 applies only to
other Convenience Center districts and not to higher level activity center districts;

(b) Residential Uses are permitted when combined with commercial or office and are
developed at a minimum of five units per acre to a maximum of ten units per acre;
and,

(c) Off-street parking is to be minimized and placed to the rear of the front building
lines whenever practicable.

(d) Building facades shall include architectural interest and not constructed of entirely
blank walls and/or metal siding;

(e) Development shall include internal pedestrian pathways along roadways and
drives, between buildings and to adjacent residential areas

Proposed -Zoning

Polk City Land Development Code, Section 2.04.02.05 - CCX Convenience
Centers: Convenience Centers X are intended to accommodate the convenience-
shopping needs of residents living within the immediate surrounding area.

Table 3.19 — Convenience Centers Usable Area

Useable Area 1 to 5 acres

Gross Leasable Area (GLA) 3,000 to 20,000 square feet

Minimum Population Support 2,500 to 5,000 people

Market-Area radius 1 mile

Typical Leading Tenant Convenience Store

Other Typical Tenants Laundry, Dry cleaning, Barber,
Restaurant. Gas Station, Office

Convenience Centers shall be located at the intersections of arterial and/or collector
roads. There shall be the following traveling distance, on public roads, between the
center of a Convenience Center and the center of any other Convenience Center, or
other higher-level Activity Center, Linear Commercial Corridor, or Commercial
Enclave providing for the same convenience shopping needs: a. One (1) mile within
the Polk City Special Protection Area. This required separation may be reduced if:

The higher-level Activity Center, Linear Commercial Corridor or Commercial Enclave
within the required distance separation is over 80% developed; or,

The proposed Convenience Center market-area radius, minimum population support
is over 5,000 people.

Development within a Convenience Center shall conform to the following criteria:

Page 5 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Fulure Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



a) Convenience Centers shall have frontage on, or direct access to, an arterial or
collector roadway, or a frontage road or service drive that directly serves an
arterial or collector roadway.

b) Different uses within a Convenience Center shall incorporate the use of
frontage roads or shared ingress/egress facilities wherever practical.

c) Adequate parking shall be provided to meet the demands of the uses, and
interior traffic circulation patterns shall facilitate the safe movement of
vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian traffic.

d) Buffering shall be provided where the effects of lighting, noise, odors, and other
such factors would adversely affect adjacent land uses. Parking lots, loading
areas, dumpsters, utilites and air conditioning units, signage, etc., are
examples of facilities that may require special buffering provisions.

e) Residential uses shall not be permitted in Convenience Centers.

f) Offices uses shall not exceed 40 percent of the total area within the
convenience center. Commercial uses may constitute 100 percent of the
convenience center.

g) The maximum floor area ratio shall not exceed 0.25 unless developed as a
Planned Unit Development.

h) Planned Unit Developments within the Convenience Center may be permitted
a maximum floor area ratio up to 0.50. Intensity increases shall only be
awarded to innovative, efficient, and compatible Planned Unit Development
proposals that are consistent with the general district characteristics. Such
Planned Unit Developments shall also be designed to be compact and require
less land area than other alternatives.

Page 6 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



Land Use Compatibility

The subject parcel is surrounded by a mix of Low and Medium Density Residential Future
Land Use, and Commercial Future Land Uses. The adjacent parcels consist of single-
family homes, Vacant Land and Commercial. The Land Use Matrix below outlines the
existing and proposed Future Land Use and zoning of the subject parcels, the existing
Future Land Use and zoning of adjacent properties, and the existing land use of the
subject parcels and adjacent properties. Proposed Future Land Use and Zoning Maps

are also provided for reference.

Land Use Matrix

Northwest

North

Northeast

Future Land Use:
Business Park Center-X

Zoning:
Business Park Center-X

Existing Land Use:
Warehouse/Distribution Center

Future Land Use:

Residential Low-1 (County)

Zoning:
MH

Existing Land Use:

Single Family Development

Future Land Use:
Residential Low-1 (County)

Zoning:
MH

Existing Land Use:
Single Family Development —
Mobile Homes

West

Subject Parcels

East

Future Land Use:
Business Park Center-X

Zoning:
Business Park Center-X

Existing Land Use:
Warehouse/Distribution Center

Future Land Use:
Existing: Polk County
Proposed: CCX

Zoning:
Existing: Polk County
Proposed: CCX

Existing Land Use:
Vacant

Future Land Use:
Residential Low-1 (County)

Zoning:
Residential Low-1 (County)

Existing Land Use:
Single Family Development —
Mobile Homes

Southwest

South

Southeast

Future Land Use:
Business Park Center

Zoning:
Business Park Center

Existing Land Use:
Warehouse/Distribution Center

Future Land Use:
Convenience Center-X

Zoning:
CCX

Existing Land Use:
Gas Station

Future Land Use:
Residential Low (City)

Zoning:
Planned Unit Development X

Existing Land Use:
Single Family Development

Public Facilities and Services Analysis:

Potable water, wastewater, solid waste, transportation and emergency services will be
reviewed prior to any development approval.

Page 7 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning

February 21, 2023




City of Polk City
AERIAL PHOTO MAP

_ UNINCORPORH

-

POLKCOL

SUBJECT PARCEL !
Parcel ID# 24-27-01-000000-021020 |
| Area: +/-1.37 acres

Page 8 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Fulure Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



City of Polk City
EXISTING FUTURE LAND USE MAP

v
%
%(%
RL-1 ‘%
O
RL-1
SUBJECT PARCEL
Parcel ID#: 24-27-01-000000-021020
Area: +/-1.37 acres
Existing Future Land Use: County CC-X
T = RL-1
L-’
o
& RL-1
&
g
O
7 RL-1
Legend
D Subject Parcel
Parcel Boundaries -
[ poik city Boundary -
Polk County Future Land Use
CC-X - Convenience Center
RL-1 - Residential-Low 1 =
Polk City Future Land Use
——— RL-X - Residential Low X
___— BPC-X - Business Park Center X
CC-X - Convenience Center X
RLX |

Page 9 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



City of Polk City

RL-1

SUBJECT PARCEL
Parcel ID#: 24-27-01-000000-021020
Area: +/-1.37 acres

Existing Future Land Use: County CC-X
Proposed Future Land Use: City CC-X

= RL-1
&
- 4y
@3 éﬁ’ RL-1
)
g
S
7 RL-1
Legend
D Subjecl Parcel
Parcel Boundaries -
D Polk City Boundary =

Polk County Future Land Use
CC-X - Convenience Center

RL-1 - Residential-Low 1

Polk City Future Land Use 2
RL-X - Residential Low X
= BPC-X - Business Park Center X
CC-X - Convenience Center X
RLE—

Page 10 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



City of Polk City
EXISTING ZONING MAP

= | SUBJECT PARCEL
§ Parcel ID#: 24-27-01-000000-021020

| Area: +/-1.37 acres
Existing Zoning: County CC-X

RL-1

Legend

[ subiect Parcel

Parcel Boundaries
[ poi city Boundary
Polk County Zoning
CC-X - Convenience Center
RL-1 - Residential-Low 1
Polk City Zoning

PUD-X - Planned Unit Development - Special Protection Area
| BPC-1X - Business Park Center - Special Protection Area

|

PUD-X

PUDA

Page 11 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendme

nt and Rezoning

February 21, 2023



City of Polk City
PROPOSED ZONING MAP

| SUBJECT PARCEL

# Parcel ID#: 24-27-01-000000-021020
| Area: +/-1.37 acres

§ Existing Zoning: County CC-X

{ Proposed Zoning: City CC-X

@3

RL-1

Legend

: Subject Parcel

Parcel Boundaries

D Polk Cily Boundary

Polk County Zoning

CC-X - Convenience Center

i

1

RL-1 - Residential-Low 1

Polk City Zening
PUD-X - Planned Unit Development - Special Protection Area

CC-X - Convenience Center - Special Proteclion Area

PUD-X PUDX ]

Page 12 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Fulure Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



Proposed Amendment: #
Receipt: # Fee: §
Small Scale? (< 10 acres) YES () NO ()

CITY OF POLK CITY

APPLICATION FOR FUTURE LAND USE MAP AND/OR ZONING AMENDMENT
City of Polk City FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
Planning Services Eégglsggsé\fo:
PO Box 1139 P & Z HEARING:
Polk City, Florida 33868 (LS) TRANSMITTAL HEARING:
Phone: 863-984-1375 oD HON HEARING:
APPLICANT NAME: Nuruddin Musani PHONE: 404-786-1212

ADDRESS: 4371 Conroy Club Drive, Orlando, FL 32835

(Enclose Letter of Authorization from owner(s))

AGENT NAME: _Chad Brooker PHONE: _863-397-1626

ADDRESS: 6039 Cypress Gardens Blvd, Winter Haven, FL 33884

OWNER NAME: PHONE: 404-786-1212
(Enclose Proof of Ownership; i ¢. photocopy of Deed, Tax Receipt)

ADDRESS: 4371 Conroy Ciub Drive, Orlando, FL 32835

REQUEST DCA REVIEW: () YES ( )NO ( )N/A # of acres: Legal description attached 9

SUMMARY AND LOCATION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT:

The subject property is located along SR 33 just northeast of the SR 33 & Mt Olive Rd intersection. The parcel number for
the property is 24-27-01-000000-021020.

JUSTIFICATION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT:

The applicant is annexing this property into Polk City for a retail and convenience store development. A Pre-
Application meeting was help on 03/17/2022 with Polk City and CFRPC. It was then that we were advised that
the appropriate zoning and FLU designations for the site are Convenient Center (CCX).

EXISTING FUTURE LAND USE: Polk County  cyrrenT zonmNg: _Polk County

Page 13 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



et R o L

WHEREFORE, the petitioner requests that the City Commission of Polk City to annex
the real property described in Schedule “A” attached hereto into the city limits of Polk

City, Florida, and petitioner requests the assignment of a land use designation of

Convenient Center (CCX)

At such time as the City's Future Land Use Map can be amended upon annexation of

the real property.

SIGNED AND DATED this _(0fh_day of _ AVAVST 2022
Witnessed By: Petitioner(s)
(Signature)

NURVDDEN MV AT

(Print name)

Page 14 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



City of Polk City

e 123 Broadway Bivd, SE @ Polk City, Florida 33868 e (863) 984-31375 @  Fax (B63) 984-2334

Application for Zoning or for Rezoning of Property

Applicant
The following information is required for submission of an application for assignment of a Zoning District

in the City or the Rezoning of property in the City limits of Palk City, Florida. Please print or type the
required information below. _Attach three copies of the current survey of subject property
certified to the City of Polk City along with an aerial photograph and location map.

Name of Property Owner, Nuruddin Musani

Mailing Address: _4371 Conroy Club Drive, Orlando, FL32835  phone: 404-786-1212
Name of Representative, if applicable; _Chad Brooker (Traditions Engineering LLC)

Mailing Address:_6039 Cypress Gardens Blvd, Winter Have, FL 33884 phone: 863-397-1626
Reason for Request: _The applicant is annexing into Polk City and needs a zoning classification.

Property ldentification
Property Address or General Location: _Parcel: 24-27-01-000000-021020

Present Use of the Property; _acant

Existing Structures Located on the Site: None

Total Acreage: _1-37 Number of Residents on Site: _None
Parcel I.D.#: 24-27-01-000000-021020

Section: 01 Township: 27 Range: 24

Legal Description of the Property: _See Survey
Subdivision

( if any):

Planning and Zoning Information
Current City Zoning Classification: _POlk County
Current Future Land Use Classification: Polk County
Requested City Zoning Classification: _Convenient Center (ccx)

Note: Unless specific zoning designations are requested, the City will assign designations, which most closely conform with the
actual use of the property or with designations of surrounding properties. An application fee will be assessed anly on requests
for land use and zoning changes which result in an increase in land use or zoning intensity over that allowed under the County

designations.
Date Received: Received By:
Fee Paid: File Number:

Page 15 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



City of Polk City Zoning/Re-Zoning Application
page 2

OWNER'S SIGNATURE PAGE

(1) (We), Nuruddin Musani & Manjani Naushad being

duly swom, depose and say that (I) (we) own one or more of the properties involved in this
petition and that (1) (we) authorize the City of Polk City to process this petition for Zoning or Re-
zoning, in accordance with all adopted City rules and regulations, and in conformance with

State law.

Further (I) (we) or any agent or lessee of the subject property authorized by (me) (us) to file
this petition, deposes and say that the statements and answers contained in the application
and any information attached thereto, present the arguments in behalf of this petition to the
best of (my) (our) ability; and that the statements and information referred to above are in all

respects true and correct to the best of (my) (our) knowledge and belief.

OWNERS
@VWVM\N: aem—
Signature of Owner Signature of Owner
Nuruddin Musani Manjani Naushad
Printed Name of Owner Printed Name of Owner
/A NIA.
Signature of Owner Signature of Owner
uh\.: !ﬁ JL{? -
Printed Name of Owner Printed Name of Owner
STATE OF FLORIDA OWNER’S NOTARIZATION
COUNTY OF POLK
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this {0 day of
|
, . 2022, by A »rr.;w{,um’ Mansaw and Uy raddin Wogury . who is
personally known to me or who has produced a driver's license as identification and who did
“'l‘ll”'j’
not take an oath. o o E c RU; .,
S é)? STAR "'.___ 2
‘a,’t!",?-._..{:ugk\.f‘%q“-‘ S "Notarial Seal and Commission
a,‘?rg OF q.\,\‘\\‘ Expiration Date

Page 16 of 17

Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023



City of Polk City Zoning/Re-Zoning Application
page 3

AGENT, LESSEE, OR BUYER'S SIGNATURE PAGE

0 wey, NURYDDEN MUSANT. J NAU (HAD  MANTANMT

being duly swom, depose and say that (1) (we) serve as for the

owner(s)
(agent or lessee}

in making this petition and that the owner(s) (has) (have) authorized (me) (us) to act in this

capacity.

Further, (1) (we) depose and say that the statements and answers herein contained and other
information attached hereto present the arguments in behalf of the petition herein requested to
the best of (my) (our) ability and that the statements and information above referred to are in

all respects true and correct to the best of (my) (our) knowledge and belief.

AGENT, LESSEE, OR BUYER(S)

(Diwon- N

S1gnélﬁre of Agent, Lessee, or Buyer(s) Signature of Agent, Lessee, or Buyer(s)
NURID DN AV SAME A/a-.

Printed Name of Agent, Lessee, or Buyer(s] Printed Name of Agent, Lessee, or Buyer(s)
e—e— el — A

Signature of Agent, Lessee, or Buyer(s) Signalure of Agent, Lessee, or Buyer(s)
NAGCHAD  MANTAN | U/

Printed Name of Agent, Lesseg, or Buyer(s) Prinled Name of Agent, Lessee, or Buyer(s)

STATE OF FLORIDA AGENT, LESSEE, OR BUYER(S) NOTARIZATION

COUNTY OF POLK

The foregoing instrun.1ent was acknowledged before me this 10 day of
f’_ ] 20_2_2. by I%USI‘-‘Tl /l‘ﬂgl Fopvli ‘[: !UU- u:ltl ;-‘\ ,k-”'w')iul. . who is
nse as identification and who did

personally known to n'lgmimm, as produced a driver's lice
Wy E CRy,”

s, ;
not take an oath, S0 0 %
-'? QE_.:‘OTJ\R;' '°“.q‘ ,"7_
s ooy =
S fwoomhoms i = Adic.
s i :“:‘:‘Hiaﬁﬁoft.‘: Nofa blic
Z @} ‘PU y \.",.-‘;2{93 Notarial'Seal and Commission
L o UBL -~ A
,,,’: Eor ?\'0\\\‘ Expiration Date

Page 17 of 17
Overview Report — SR 33 Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning February 21, 2023




City Commission Meeting
February 21, 2023

AGENDA ITEM #3 PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 2022-13 — REZONING IN THE
GREEN SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL CONCERN

INFORMATION ONLY
_X_ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Ordinance 2022-13 — Rezoning in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern

ATTACHMENTS:

-Ordinance 2022-13
-Overview Report —Future Land Use Map Amendment and Zoning in the Green Swamp Area of
Critical State Concern

ANALYSIS:

The applicant is requesting a Future Land Use Map Amendment and rezoning to change the Future
Land Use and Zoning of a +/- 1.37 acre parcel in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern “X”
from the Future Land Use of Polk County Convenient Center (CCX) and the zoning of Polk County to
CCX, Convenient Center. The subject parcel is located northeast of the SR 33 and Mt Olive Rd
Intersection, address being 0 State Road 33 N, Polk City.

The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on October 3, 2022 and approved 3/1 to forward to
the City Commission for approval of Rezoning in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern.

The City Commission held a Public Hearing on October 18, 2023 and approved Ordinance 2022-13 on
First Reading to be transmitted to DEO for 60-day Review period. DEO has reviewed Ordinance 2022-
13 in its entirety and had no comments.

City staff is recommending Option #1 below.

CITY COMMISSION MOTION OPTIONS:
Rezoning Motion Options:
Adopt Ordinance 2022-13 on Second and Final Reading
Deny Ordinance 2022-13 on Second and Final Reading




ORDINANCE 2022-13

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING THE
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, TO
CHANGE THE ZONING FOR APPROXIMATELY 1.37 ACRES
FROM POLK COUNTY CONVENIENCE CENTER-X (CCX) TO
CITY CONVENIENCE CENTER-X (CCX) IN THE GREEN
SWAMP AREA OF CRITICAL STATE CONCERN; PROVIDING
FINDINGS, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK
CITY, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. FINDINGS AND INTENT. In adopting this Ordinance, the City
Commission of Polk City, Florida hereby makes the following legislative findings and
intent:

(1)  The City Commission of Polk City held meetings and hearings regarding the
parcels show on Exhibit “A”, with due public notice having been provided, to obtain public
comment, and considered all written and oral comments received during public hearings,
including supporting documents.

(2) In exercise of its authority, the City Commission has determined it
necessary to amend the Official Zoning Map to change the City zoning classification
assigned to this property.

SECTION 2. ZONING AMENDMENT: The official zoning map of Polk City is
amended so as to assign the City Zoning Classification of CCX (Convenience Center-X)
on approximately 1.37 acres of land in the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern
on the property located at 0 State Road 33, as shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY: If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is
declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or
unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain
in full force and effect.

SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed
to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect, provided however,
that nothing herein shall be interpreted so as to repeal any existing ordinance or resolution
relating to means of securing compliance with the City's Land Development Code (LDC),
unless such repeal is explicitly set forth herein.

SECTION 5. CODIFICATION. This Ordinance shall be codified in the Code of
Ordinances of Polk City, Florida. A certified copy of this enacting ordinance shall be
located in the Office of the City Clerk of Polk City. The City Clerk shall also make copies
available to the public for a reasonable publication charge.

1



SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall not take effect unless and
until Ordinance 2022-12 adopting the companion future land use map amendment to this
rezoning becomes final and non-appealable.

INTRODUCED AND PASSED on FIRST READING, this 18th day of _October ,

2022.
POLK CITY, FLORIDA
Joe LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
CORRECTNESS:

Patricia Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum present
and voting by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida meeting in Regular Session this
____dayof , 2023.

Joe LaCascia, Mayor
ATTEST:

Patricia Jackson, City Manager/Clerk



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-13

City of Polk City
PROPOSED ZONING MAP

EXHIBIT “A”

| SUBJECT PARCEL

Parcel |D#: 24-27-01-000000-021020
Area: +/-1.37 acres

Existing Zoning: County CC-X
Proposed Zoning: City CC-X

Legend

: Subject Parcel

Parcel Boundaries
D Polk City Boundary
Polk County Zonhing
CC-X - Convenience Center
RL-1 - Residential-Low 1
Polk City Zoning

PUD-X - Planned Unit Development - Special Protection Area

' BPC-1X - Business Park Center - Special Protection Area

CC-X - Convenience Center - Special Protection Area

1

PUD-X

PUDX




City Commission Meeting
February 21, 2023

AGENDA ITEM #4: Cattle Grazing Lease Agreement with TJC&D Management, Inc.

INFORMATION ONLY
X__ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE.:

Cattle Grazing Lease Agreement

ATTACHMENT:

Letter from George Trenen Bush
Cattle Grazing Lease Agreement

ANALYSIS:

In 2015 Mr. Bush contacted Polk City regarding five acres the City owns adjacent to the Joshua Land
property which he currently leases for his cattle business. Upon accidental discovery there is no
perimeter fence in place. Therefore, his cattle has been free to graze on the five acres that Polk City
owns. Itis Mr. Bush’s desire to continue occupying this property and will maintain such at his expense.

Upon discovery that the 2015 lease expired, Mr. Bush desires to renew the lease for five years in the
amount of $10.00 per month, but with an automatic extension for an additional five (5) years, which
would terminate this lease in 2033.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Cattle Grazing Lease Agreement



TJC & D MANAGEMENT, INC
205 Avenue K., S.E.
Winter Haven, Florida 33880
(863) 401-8866
Fax (863) 401-8503

January 12, 2023
To Whom it may concern,
I wish to continue my lease on the property in Polk City for my cattle for the next 5 years,

longer if allowed. I will make the monthly payment on a yearly basis on due date set up
in lease.

Sincerely,
74781
Georg€ Trenen Bush a

George Trenen Bush CPA & CO. P.A.



CATTLE GRAZING LEASE

THIS LEASE, effective the 21st day of February, 2023, by and between
POLK CITY, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation (hereafter “LESSOR"),
and TJC&D MANAGEMENT, INC., a company residing at 205 Avenue K, SE,
Winter Haven, FL 33880, (hereafter “LESSEE”).

RECITALS

1. The LESSOR owns that property more particularly described in Exhibit
“A” attached to and incorporated in this Lease.

2. LESSEE desires to lease said property to All that property described in
Exhibit "A" attached hereto for the purpose of grazing cattle.

ACCORDINGLY, in consideration of the above stated Recitals and other
good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is
acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1. TERM AND RENT. The term of this lease shall be for a
period of five (5) years commencing on February 21, 2023. LESSEE shall pay
LESSOR rent in the amount of ten dollars ($10) per month, with each monthly
payment being paid by LESSEE within ten days after the end of each calendar
month in which this Lease is effective. This Agreement will have an automatic
extension for an additional five (5) years, unless either party provides a 90-day
notice of termination for this Agreement. Therefore, unless otherwise decided,
this lease will expire in 2033.

SECTION 2. QUIET ENJOYMENT. Provided LESSEE shall keep and
perform all of the terms, covenants and conditions hereof, LESSEE shall
peaceably possess and quietly enjoy the Property without hindrance or
interruption subject only to the terms hereof, reservations, restrictions,
easements, and mortgages of record and applicable zoning and other
governmental regulations.

SECTION 3. USE OF PROPERTY. LESSEE shall use the said property
solely for the grazing and keeping of cattle, and no other use shall be made
thereof without the prior express written consent of LESSOR. LESSEE shall at
all times keep at least 25 head of livestock (including cows, bulls, calves and
horses) grazing on the Property. LESSEE shall not permit any person to reside
on the Property or any part thereof. LESSEE shall make no immoral, offensive,
or illegal use of the Property or do anything thereon deemed extra hazardous or
which would cause insurance rates to increase. LESSEE shall abide by all
reasonable directions and requirements of any insurance company insuring the
property and shall keep and abide by all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations




of all governmental bodies and their respective regulatory agencies having any
jurisdiction over the property. LESSEE shall not commit or suffer any strip or
waste in or about the Property. LESSEE covenants to at all times follow good
husbandry and conservation practices with respect to LESSEE's agricultural use
of the Property. LESSEE further covenants that LESSEE's use of the said
property will be of sufficient intensity at all times to satisfy "greenbelt"
requirements.

SECTION 4. MAINTENANCE OF PROPERTY. LESSEE shall keep the
property clean and in presentable order at all times and will permit no trash,
rubbish, or hazardous wastes to be dumped or accumulated on the property.
LESSEE shall mow the property from time to time should same be necessary to
keep it presentable and orderly and shall maintain all perimeter fencing on the
property in good order and repair. LESSEE shall regularly inspect the property
and take reasonable steps to secure it from trespassers. LESSEE shall not
make any alterations or improvements of a permanent nature to the Property
without the prior written consent of LESSOR.

SECTION 5. TAXES. LESSOR shall pay all taxes and assessments
against the property and all improvements places thereon during the term hereof.

SECTION 6. _INDEMNIFICATION. LESSOR shall not be liable to
LESSEE or any other person for any damage to property or injury to persons
upon the property from any cause whatever, including, but not limited to, act of
God, fire, water, defects in the property or otherwise. LESSEE shall indemnify
and hold harmless LESSOR from and against any and all liabilities, claims,
demands, damages, expenses, fees, fines, penalties, suits, proceedings, actions
and causes of action of any and every kind and nature arising or growing out of
or in any way connected with LESSEE's use, occupancy, management or control
of the property or any portion thereof, or arising out of or in any way connected
with any act or omission of the LESSEE, any of LESSEE's subtenants, licensees,
agents or representatives and their respective successors and assigns or anyone
claiming by, through, under or against LESSEE, or resulting from any breach,
violation or nonperformance of any covenant, condition or agreement herein
contained on the part of the LESSEE to be kept and performed resulting in loss
of life or injury to any person or persons or damage to any property. LESSEE
shall defend any and all actions, suits or proceedings which may be brought
against LESSOR, or in which LESSOR may be impleaded or joined with others
and shall satisfy, pay and discharge any and all judgments, orders and decrees
that may be recovered against LESSEE or LESSOR in any such action or
proceedings. The foregoing provisions of this Paragraph 6 shall survive -the
termination of this lease.

SECTION 7. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. No waiver of any breach of any of
the terms, covenants and conditions hereof shall be taken or construed to be the
waiver of any other or succeeding breach of the same or any other term,
covenant or condition hereof.




SECTION 8. CORRECTIONS OF DEFAULTS. If LESSEE defaults in
any of the terms, covenants and conditions hereof, LESSOR may perform the
same or procure the performance thereof without waiving or affecting the option
to terminate the term hereof or waiving such default or waiving any rights
hereunder, and all payments or expenditures (including reasonable attorney's
fees as hereinafter provided) made by LESSOR in so doing shall be charged to
LESSEE, shall become immediately due and payable and shall bear interest at
the rate of 15 percent per annum from the date of disbursement by LESSOR until
paid by LESSEE .

SECTION 9. DEFAULT. In the event LESSEE shall continue in default in
the observance or performance of any of the terms, covenants and conditions
hereof after 15 days notice of such default in writing, LESSEE shall become a
tenant at sufferance, thereby waiving all right of notice. In such event, LESSOR,
or LESSOR's duly authorized agents, shall be entitled to re-enter and take
possession of the Property without legal process and to dispossess and remove
all persons, their goods and chattels, without liability in law or in equity for any
damages caused by such removal, possession and reentry, and LESSEE hereby
waives any and all claims for damages therefore and hereby discharges
LESSOR therefrom. Such re-entry and repossession shall be a cumulative
remedy and shall not deprived LESSOR of any other legal rights which LESSOR
may have as a matter of law. LESSEE agrees to pay, in the event of a default
under the terms hereof, all costs, expenses and reasonable attorneys’ fees
incurred in the enforcement by LESSOR of any of the terms and conditions
hereof, or in regaining the Property, including those costs, expenses and
reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in appeliate proceedings.

SECTION 10. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING. This lease may not
be assigned in whole or in part and no portion of the Property may be sublet
without the prior written consent of LESSOR, which consent may be withheld
arbitrarily. Any attempted assignment of this lease or subletting of any of the
Property without such written consent shall be void.

SECTION 11. ENVIRONMENTAL RESTRICTIONS. LESSEE agrees to
abide by any and all Federal, State or local environmental laws, including, but not
limited to, the following: (1) the Federal Clean Air Act, the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, the Federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, the Federal
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
("CERCLA" or "SUPERFUND"), the Federal Safe Water Drinking Act, the Federal
Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, the National Environmental Policy
Act, and regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency; (2) all State laws
covering environmental and agricultural matters as each may be amended from
time to time together with applicable administrative rules and regulations of the
Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the Florida Department of
Agriculture and other government agencies; and (3) any rule of common law or
any judicial interpretation giving rise to environmental liability. The following
activities are strictly prohibited under this Lease:




(a)  Dumping or burying of any trash or waste on the Property.

(b)  Improper storage or disposal of chemical or fuels which may
lead to environmental contamination.

(c) Improper use of chemicals or fuels which may lead to or
result in a hazardous or toxic discharge to the environment.

(d)  Improper burning of chemicals, waste, fuels or containers
which may lead to or result in a hazardous or toxic
discharge to the environment.

SECTION 12. ACCESS TO PROPERTY BY LESSOR. LESSOR and
any of LESSOR's agent shall have free access to the Property and all parts
thereof at all reasonable times provided LESSEE's use of the Property is not
unreasonably disturbed.

SECTION 13. TERMINATION. In the event LESSOR enters into a
contract for the sale or development of all or any portion of the Property,
LESSOR shall have the right to terminate the term of this lease with respect to all
or any portion of the Property upon 90 days' written notice to LESSEE. In the
event LESSEE requests a copy of the executed contract, LESSOR shall
immediately furnish the same to him. Upon any termination pursuant to the
preceding sentence, LESSOR shall reimburse LESSEE promptly after the date of
termination, and after delivery by LESSEE to LESSOR of copies of invoices
documenting the expenses, for all out of pocket expenses incurred by LESSEE
for the six months prior to the date of termination directly related to improving the
grazing conditions on the Property, which expenses shall include the cost of
herbicide, fence repair and replacement, irrigation (electricity and equipment
rental), land clearing, burning or chopping expenses (including equipment rental,
fuel and labor [other than labor of LESSEE]), grass seed, fertilizer and lime.
Such expenses shall not include expenses such as medicine, supplemental feed,
minerals, pregnancy testing or other cattle health care costs, bangs testing,
spraying, branding and marketing and similar expenses not directly related to
grazing conditions. LESSEE shall discontinue all efforts to improve the grazing
conditions on the Property upon receiving notice of termination. Upon such
termination, neither LESSOR nor LESSEE shall have any further rights or
obligations hereunder except as expressly provided herein.

SECTION 14. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS AND DEFINITIONS. All
of the terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, devisees, personal
representatives, successors and assigns. Whenever used herein, the singular
number shall include the plural, the plural the singular and the use of any gender
shall include all genders. This lease and all instruments or documents relating to
same and all references herein shall be construed under Florida law.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this lease to be executed the

day and year first above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered
before these witnesses:

Print Name:

Print Name:

ATTEST:

LESSEE

TJC&D MANAGEMENT, INC. a
company

By:

George Trenen Bush, President

Date:

LESSOR

CITY OF POLK CITY, a Florida
municipal corporation

Joe LaCascia, Mayor

Approved as to form and correctness

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk

Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A

Property Description

Parcel ID: 252633296500041010
Owneril: POLK CITY CITY OF
Lacation Address: 0 ORANGE BLVD
City/St/Zip: POLK CITY FL 33868

MAP DISCLAIMER:

All maps are worksheets used for illustrative purposes
only, they are not surveys. The Polk County Property
Appraiser assumes no responsibility for errors in the
information and does not guarantee the data is free from

error or inaccuracy. The information is provided “as is."

PROPERTY DESC DISCLAIMER:

This property description is a condensed version of the
original legal description recorded in the public records. It
does not include the section, township, range, or the
county where the property is located. The property
description should not be used when conveying property.
The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the
consequences of inappropriate uses or interpretations of Z £ 039010
the property description. No warranties, expressed or | Hizisogio SRy cls ¢y{s
implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its

interpretation.

Property Description:
POLK CITY PB 24 PG 1 & 1A S28 29 32 33 & 34 T26 R25 PT OF BLK 41 DESC AS: COM SE COR OF BLK 20 562-53-34W ALG SELY BNDRY

OF BLK 20 861.00 FT FOR POB SWLY 365.87 FT ALG CURVE TO SE COR OF BLK 41 WEST ALG S LINE OF BLK 41 436.30 FT N06-17-00E
140.13 FT N37-38-30E 460.10 FT N68-28-00E 100.77 FT S73-41-30E 98.07 FT TO E LINE OF BLK 41 S38-39- 40EALG E LINE 336.78 FT

TO POB




City Commission Meeting
February 21, 2023

AGENDA ITEM #5: Resolution 2023-01 — Adoption of Polk City Employee Handbook

INFORMATION ONLY
_X_ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Polk City Employee Handbook

ATTACHMENT:

Employee Handbook — Revised January 2023

ANALYSIS:

From time to time, it is necessary to revise the Employee Handbook. The last revision was adopted in
2001. As many changes have taken place since 2001, itis necessary to revise the Employee Handbook
again. This latest revision being adopted by Resolution will supersede any previous versions.

The City Commission was provided a copy via email on December 12, 2022 for review.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution 2023-01



RESOLUTION 2023-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA;
REVISING THE CITY’S EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK; PROVIDING FINDINGS,
REPEALING CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the City previously adopted an Employee Handbook; and,

WHEREAS, from time to time the City has revised its Employee Handbook in 2001, 2006,
and 2018; and,

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds it necessary and in the public interest to revise its
Employee Handbook as set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY,
FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. FINDINGS. The City Commission hereby adopts the above Recitals as
legislative findings and incorporates them into this Resolution.

SECTION 2. ADOPTION OF REVISED EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK. The City Commission
hereby adopts the Revised Employee Handbook attached to and incorporated in this Resolution
as Exhibit “A.”

SECTION 3. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS. All resolutions and previous
versions of the City’s Employee Handbook are hereby superseded and repealed by virtue of this
Resolution.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
passage.

RESOLVED, PASSED, AND CERTIFIED AS TO PASSAGE THIS DAY OF
, 2023.

CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY,
FLORIDA

Joe LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST:

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM & LEGALITY

Thomas A. Cloud, Esquire, City Attorney



Polk City

123 Broadway Boulevard SE
Phone 863.984.1375 « Fax 863.984.2334

EMPLOYEL
HANDBOOK

Revised January 2023




Welcome!

Welcome to Polk City. | am pleased that you have joined our team of professionals. To acquaint
you with the City's personnel policies, procedures and benefits, this Handbook has been prepared
for your use.

The City operates in accordance with its established Charter. The City has five (5) elected
Commissioners with one of the Commissioners elected to serve as the Mayor and another to
serve as the Vice Mayor. The Commission serve as the City’s legislative body and perform the
functions as authorized by the Charter. Under the Charter, the City Manager has overall
responsibility for the administration of the City. The Charter also requires that all personnel
matters regarding the City’s officers and employees are handled by the City Manager who has
responsibility for the direction and supervision over City employees. This Handbook provides
guidance to City employees to assist them in their understanding of the City’s established policies.
If you have questions about any of the policies in this Handbook or other matters regarding your
employment please reach out to me.

| hope that your employment experience here will be challenging, enjoyable, and rewarding.
Please feel free to contact me at any time for assistance. Again, welcome!

Sincerely,

Patricia Jackson
City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS:

101 PUBLIC RECORDS LAW

102 NATURE OF EMPLOYMENT

103 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

104 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

105 DISABILITY LAW COMPLIANCE, REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS AND GINA

106 RELIGIOUS ACCOMMODATIONS

107 BUSINESS ETHICS AND CONDUCT
108 HIRING OF RELATIVES

109 EMPLOYEE MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS
110 IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE

111 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

112 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

113 MISINFORMATION

114 JOB POSTING AND EMPLOYEE REFERRALS
115 POLITICAL ACTIVITY

116 EMPLOYEE DEBTS

201 EMPLOYMENT CATEGORIES

202 ACCESS TO PERSONAL FILES

203 EMPLOYMENT VERIFICATION CHECKS
204 PERSONNEL DATA CHANGES

205 INTRODUCTORY PERIOD

206 EMPLOYMENT APPLICATIONS

207 PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS

301 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

302 BENEFIT CONTINUATIONS (COBRA)
303 DENTAL INSURANCE

304 EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE

305 HEALTH INSURANCE

306 HOLIDAYS

307 LIFE INSURANCE

308 LONG-TERM DISABILITY

309 MEMBERSHIP DUES

310 RELOCATION BENEFITS

W 00 N N O o o

10

11
11
12
13
13
14
15
15
16
17
17
17
18
18
18
19
20
20
21
22
23
23
23
24



311 RETIREMENT PROGRAM
312 SHORT-TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE
313 SICK TIME AND SICK LEAVE BANK

314 DONATION OF SICK TIME FROM AN EMPLOYEE’S SICK LEAVE BANK

315 SOCIAL SECURITY
316 TIME OFF TO VOTE

317 REEMPLOYMENT ASSISTANCE BENEFITS (UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE)

318 VACATION TIME AND LEAVE BANK

319 WITNESS DUTY

320 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE
321 PERSONAL DAYS

401 TIMEKEEPING

402 PAYDAYS

403 EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION

404 PAY ADVANCES

405 ADMINISTRATIVE PAY CORRECTIONS
406 PAY DEDUCTIONS

407 SALARY AND WAGE INCREASES

501 SAFETY

502 WORK SCHEDULES

503 EXPENDITURE POLICY

504 USE OF PHONE AND MAIL SYSTEM

505 SMOKING/TOBACCO/VAPING

506 REST AND MEAL PERIODS

507 OVERTIME

508 USE OF CITY VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT
509 EMERGENCY OPERATIONS

510 BUSINESS TRAVEL EXPENSES

511 COPIER, FAX MACHINE, COMPUTER AND E-MAIL USAGE
512 INTERNET USAGE

513 WORKPLACE MONITORING

514 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION
515 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

601 MEDICAL LEAVE

602 FAMILY LEAVE

24
25
25
27
27
27
27
28
29
30
30
31
31
32
32
32
32
33
34
34
35
35
35
35
36
36
37
38
39
39
41
41
42
42
44



603 MILITARY LEAVE 44

604 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 45
605 JURY DUTY 46
606 ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE 46
607 ABSENCE WITHOUT LEAVE 46
701 EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND WORK RULES 47
702 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICIES 47
703 DISCRIMINATION, SEXUAL AND OTHER UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT, AND
RETALIATION 48
704 ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY 51
705 REMOTE WORK ARRANGEMENTS — EXEMPT EMPLOYEES 52
706 PERSONAL APPEARANCE 52
707 RETURN OF PROPERTY 52
708 RESIGNATION 53
709 SECURITY INSPECTION 53
710 SOLICITATION 53
711 COUNSELING AND CORRECTIVE ACTION 54
712 PROBLEM RESOLUTION 55
901 APPENDIX A - COMMERCIAL DRIVER'S LICENSE (CDL) HOLDER FEDERAL DRUG-
FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 57
902 APPENDIX B - DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY PER FLORIDA LAW 69
903 APPENDIX C - TABLE OF INFRACTIONS 77
ADDENDUM 1 - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE FAMILY AND
MEDICAL LEAVE ACT - (WHD PUBLICATION 1420) 80



101 Public Records Law

As an employee of the City you must comply with Florida’s Public Records Law (Chapter 119,
Florida Statutes), including its requirements for (1) record retention, (2) record disposition, and
(3) record requests. All City records must be maintained and preserved in accordance with Florida
law, and only disposed in accordance with applicable law. Employees are reminded that call logs,
texts, or other messages or communications may be subject to dissemination under the Public
Records Act. Nearly every email sent or received by an employee in the scope of their duties is
likely to constitute a public record and be subject to disclosure, unless otherwise exempt. Public
records created or received by an employee may be released in response to a records request
without prior notification to the employee. If an employee has any questions about what is
required, the employee should contact the City Manager Assistant City Manager. The City
Manager is the person designated to guide the City regarding records management. |If any City
employee receives a request for the City's public records, the request must be immediately
provided to the City Manager who will process the public records request in accordance with
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.

102 Nature of Employment

Employment with Polk City (“the City”) is voluntarily entered into, and the employee is free to
resign at will at any time, with or without cause. Similarly, the City may terminate the employment
relationship at will at any time, with or without cause, so long as there is no violation of applicable
federal or state law.

Policies and procedures set forth in this Handbook are not intended to create a contract for a term
of employment, nor are they to be construed to constitute contractual obligations of any kind
binding the City. The policies and procedures in this Handbook do set forth the expectations the
City has for its employee’s and they are expected to following the policies and procedures. Except
for its policy of employment-at-will, changes or deletions may occur by the City Manager. As
policies and procedures are revised or added, changes will be communicated to employees.

This version of the Handbook supersedes all prior versions and all prior policies that were adopted
outside of this Handbook. The City reserves the right to change or modify the Handbook and its
policies. The City Manager is responsible for the overall administration of the City’s personnel
policies and procedures.

103 Employee Relations

The City believes that the work conditions, wages, and benefits it offers to its employees are as
competitive as possible with those offered by other employers in our area. |If employees have
concerns about work conditions or compensation, they are strongly encouraged to voice these
concerns openly and directly to their supervisors or to the City Manager.

Our experience has shown that when employees deal openly and directly with management, the
work environment can be excellent, communications can be clear, and attitudes can be positive.

We believe that the City amply demonstrates its commitment to employees by responding
effectively to employee concerns.

The City Manager maintains an open-door policy. If at any time you feel you have not been

6



listened to or a situation has not been resolved to your satisfaction, you are free to contact the
City Manager who will listen to your views and concerns.

104 Equal Employment Opportunity

It is the policy of the City to select, develop and promote employees based on the individual's
ability and job performance and to select the best-qualified candidates for the position. It has
been and shall continue to be, the policy of the City to provide equal employment opportunity to
all people in all aspects of the applicant and employer/employee relations without discrimination
because of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth and related medical
conditions, sexual orientation), gender (including gender identity, transition, and/or expression),
genetic information, national origin, ancestry, marital status, age, citizenship status, physical or
mental disability, genetics, veteran status, or other basis that are prohibited by federal, state
and/or local law and are applicable to the City.

The City also makes reasonable accommodations for qualified disabled employees so long as
the City is not caused undue hardship. This policy affects decisions including, but not limited to,
an employee’s compensation, benefits, terms and conditions of employment, opportunities for
promotion, training and development, transfer, termination, and other terms of employment. It
has been, and shall continue to be, the City’s policy to maintain a working environment free of
discrimination, unlawful harassment (including by example racial and sexual harassment), and
retaliation. The City's goal is to ensure that all team members are treated in a non-discriminatory
manner and with respect and given the opportunity to contribute to our City's success.

Any employee with questions or concerns about any type of discrimination in the workplace are
encouraged to bring these issues to the attention of Human Resources or the City Manager.
Employees can raise concerns and make reports without fear of reprisal. Anyone found to be
engaging in any type of unlawful discrimination will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and
including termination of employment.

105 Disability Law Compliance, Reasonable Accommodations and GINA

The City is committed to complying fully with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and
applicable Florida law, and ensuring equal opportunity in employment for qualified persons with
disabilities. The City prohibits discrimination against a qualified individual with a known disability.
This includes, but is not limited to, discrimination with respect to application, hiring, promotion,
discharge, compensation, benefits, training, and all other aspects of employment. The City also
complies with any requirement to make the workplace readily accessible to and usable to enable
disabled employees to enjoy equal benefits and privileges of employment.

Hiring procedures have been reviewed and provide persons with disabilities meaningful
employment opportunities. Pre-employment inquiries are made only regarding an applicant's
ability to perform the duties of the position.

Post-offer medical examinations are required only for those positions in which there is a bona fide
job-related physical requirement. They are given to all persons entering the position only after

conditional job offers. Medical records will be kept separate and confidential, subject to
compliance with Florida’s Public Records Law

The City will reasonably accommodate qualified individuals with a known disability if necessary

7



to enable an individual to perform the essential functions of the individual’s job and/or to ensure
the workplace is readily accessible to and usable by an employee. Such reasonable
accommodation will be made unless it creates an undue hardship for the City. The individual
must make known to the City the need for a reasonable accommodation and is free to suggest
an accommodation but there is no guarantee that the suggested accommodation will be provided.
The individual must contact Human Resources if a reasonable accommodation is being requested
and provide sufficient information for the request to be evaluated. When a reasonable
accommodation is requested, the City will engage in an interactive process with the employee in
order to assess the request and the City's business needs. Sufficient medical
information/accommodation assessment will be required to support the request and need for an
accommodation. Requests by qualified individuals with disabilities for reasonable
accommodations will be considered by Human Resources and the City Manager and discussed
with others on a need-to-know basis to determine the nature and scope of the accommodation to
be made (if appropriate), after consideration of the particular circumstances, including any
hardship to the City. Please refer to the City’s policy addressing leave of absences, including the
Medical Leave Policy, if the request for an accommodation includes a request for time off or an
extended leave of absence. The City will work with the employee on a reasonable
accommodation, but it may not be the accommodation that is being specifically requested by the
employee. Employees with questions on this policy must direct those questions to the City
Manager.

The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (GINA) prohibits employers and other
entities covered by GINA Title Il from requesting or requiring genetic information of employees or
their family members. In order to comply with this law, the City will not request, and asks that an
employee not provide, any genetic information when responding to any request by the City for
medical information. ‘genetic information,” as defined by GINA, includes an individual's family
medical history, the results of an individual’s or family member's genetic tests, the fact that an
individual or an individual's family member sought or received genetic services, and genetic
information of a fetus carried by an individual or an individual's family member or an embryo
lawfully held by an individual or family member receiving assistive reproductive services.

This policy is neither exhaustive nor exclusive. The City is committed to taking all other actions
necessary to ensure equal employment opportunity for persons with disabilities in accordance
with the ADA and all other applicable federal, state, and local laws.

106 Religious Accommodations

It is the policy of the City to offer equal employment opportunity to all persons, regardless of their
religious beliefs and practices, or lack thereof, in compliance with all federal, state, and local laws.
The City respects the religious beliefs, observances, and practices of all employees and
embraces religious diversity. The City will make good faith efforts to reasonably accommodate
an employee's sincerely held religious belief, unless such an accommodation would create an
undue hardship for the City.

An employee whose sincerely held religious beliefs (or non-beliefs), observances, or practices
conflicts with his/her job, work schedule, with the City’s policy or practice on dress and
appearance, or with other aspects of employment, and who seeks a religious accommodation,
must submit a written request for the accommodation to Human Resources . The written request
must include the type of religious conflict that exists and the employee’s suggested
accommodation. The request must contain sufficient information for the request to be properly
evaluated and a determination made as to whether the City must make a religious

8



accommodation as social, political, economic philosophies, and personal preferences generally
speaking (and unless as provided under applicable law), are not “religious” beliefs or practices
which must be accommodated. An accommodation may be a change in job, using paid leave or
leave without pay, providing a specific time and/or place to pray, allowing an exception to the
dress and appearance code which does not impact safety or uniform requirements, or for other
aspects of employment. Religious accommodation requests are considered on a case-by-case
basis.

Human Resources, and as applicable, the City Manager, and the department director, will meet
with the employee to discuss the request. The City Manager, who may consult with other
managers, will determine the nature and scope of the accommodation to be made, after
consideration of the particular circumstances, the type of conflict and suggested accommodation,
including any hardship to the City and considering any work related matters that are permitted to
be assessed. The employee will be informed of the decision on the accommodation to be
provided and if no accommodation is able to be made that will be explained to the employee. If
the employee accepts the proposed religious accommodation, the decision will be implemented.
If the employee rejects the proposed accommodation, the employee will be provided with an
opportunity to further discuss this situation with the City Manager to ensure the City had all
available information when making the decision. The employee will be informed of the final
decision.

Any department director or supervisor who becomes aware of any situation that may require the
City to consider a religious accommodation must immediately notify Human Resources or the City
Manager. Any Supervisor or other employee who has questions concerning the application of
this policy, including the denial of a requested accommodation, must raise them with Human
Resources or the City Manager.

An employee who is not requesting a religious accommodation, but who has a concern about a
matter involving religion in the workplace, must bring those matters to the City's attention in
accordance with the policy on Discrimination, Harassment and Retaliation.

There will be no retaliation against an employee who has requested a religious accommodation
or who has made a good faith report of religious discrimination.

107 Business Ethics and Conduct

The successful business operation and reputation of the City is built upon the principles of fair
dealing and ethical conduct of our employees. Our reputation for integrity and excellence requires
careful observance of the spirit and letter of all applicable laws and regulations, as well as a
scrupulous regard for the highest standards of conduct and personal integrity.

The continued success of the City is dependent upon our citizen's trust and we are dedicated to
preserving that trust. Employees owe a duty to the City, its customers, and its citizen shareholders
to conduct themselves in a way that will merit the continued trust and confidence of the public.
The City will comply with all applicable laws and regulations and expects all employees to conduct
business in accordance with the letter, spirit, and intent of all relevant laws and to refrain from any
illegal, dishonest, or unethical conduct.

In general, the use of good judgment, based on high ethical principles, will guide you with respect

9



to lines of acceptable conduct. If a situation arises where it is difficult to determine the proper
course of action, the matter should be discussed openly with your department director and, if
necessary, with the City Manager for advice and consultation.

Compliance with this policy of business ethics and conduct is the responsibility of every City
employee. Disregarding or failing to comply with this standard of business ethics and conduct
could lead to disciplinary action, up to and including possible termination of employment as well
as criminal charges.

108 Hiring of Relatives

The employment of relatives in the same area of an organization may cause conflicts or concerns
with the appearance of favoritism and may effsct employee morale. In addition to claims of
partiality in treatment at work, personal conflicts from outside the work environment can be carried
into day-to-day working relationships.

Relatives of persons currently employed by the City may be hired only if they will not be working
directly for or supervising a relative or will not occupy a position in the same line of authority within
the organization. This policy applies to any relative, higher or lower in the organization, who has
the authority to review employment decisions. The City employees cannot be transferred into
such a reporting relationship. If the relative relationship is established after employment, the
individuals concerned will decide who is to be transferred. If that decision is not made within 30
calendar days, the City Manager with input from the department director and/or other
management persons will decide. An employee transferred to a lesser paying position will not
receive the same rate of pay received in the position held prior to the transfer.

The City will comply with the applicable provisions of §112.3135 Florida Statutes, which precludes
a public official (as defined in the statute) from appointing, employing, promoting, or advancing or
advocating for the appointment, employment, promotion, or advancement of certain relatives in
or to a position in the City or department in which the public official is serving or over which he/she
exercises jurisdiction or control.

For purposes of this policy, the City defines relatives in accordance with §112.3135, Florida
Statutes, as:

Father, Mother

Son-in-law, daughter-in-law
Son, Daughter
Brother-in-law, sister-in-law
Brother, Sister

Stepfather, Stepmother
Uncle, Aunt

Stepson, stepdaughter

First Cousin, Nephew, Niece
Stepbrother, Stepsister
Husband, Wife

Half-Brother, half-sister Father-in-law,
Mother-in-law

10



In other cases where a conflict or the potential for conflict arises, even if there is no supervisory
relationship involved, the parties may be separated by reassignment or terminated from
employment as determined by the City.

109 Employee Medical Examinations

To help ensure that employees are able to perform their duties safely, medical examinations may
be required for employees in designated job categories, as allowed by law.

After an offer has been made to an applicant entering a designated job category, a medical
examination will be performed at the City's expense by a health professional of the City's choice.
The offer of employment and assignment to duties is contingent upon satisfactory completion of
the exam.

Other medical examinations or documentation from an employee’s treating licensed medical, or
other approved health care provider, may be required to determine an employee’s eligibility for
certain benefits or to determine the employee’s ability to perform the employee’s job duties.

Information on an employee's medical condition or history will be kept separate from other
employee information and maintained confidentially. Access to this information will be limited to
those who have a legitimate need to know.

110 Immigration Law Compliance

The City is committed to employing only United States citizens and aliens who are authorized to
work in the United States and does not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of citizenship or
national origin.

In compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, each new employee, as a
condition of employment, must complete the Employment Eligibility Verification Form [-9 and
present documentation establishing identity and employment eligibility. Former employees who
are rehired must also complete the form if they have not completed an I-8 with the City within the
past three years, or if their previous 1-9 is no longer retained or valid.

Employees with questions or seeking more information on immigration law issues are encouraged
to contact the City Manager. Employees may raise questions or complaints about immigration
law compliance without fear of reprisal.

111 Conflict of Interest

To avoid any misunderstandings and/or conflicts of interest that may arise, this policy must be
followed by employees in addition to the provisions of applicable state law that govern the code
of ethics for public employees (Chapter 112, Part lll, Florida Statutes). In the event of any conflict
between this policy and state law requirements, which are applicable to the City, the state law
requirements must be followed.

Employees have an obligation to conduct business within guidelines that prohibit actual or
potential conflicts of interest. This policy establishes only the framework within which the City

11



wishes the business to operate. The purpose of these guidelines is to provide general direction
so that employees can seek further clarification on issues related to the subject of acceptable
standards of operation. Contact the City Manager for more information or questions about
conflicts of interest.

Transactions with outside firms must be conducted within a framework established and controlled
by the executive level of the City. Business dealings with outside firms should not result in unusual
gains for those firms. Unusual gain refers to bribes, product bonuses, special fringe benefits,
unusual price breaks, and other windfalls designed to ultimately benefit either the employer, the
employee, or both. Promotional plans that could be interpreted to involve unusual gain require
specific executive-level approval. The penalty for violation of this policy will be termination of
employment with the City.

An actual or potential conflict of interest occurs when an employee is in a position to influence a
decision that may result in a personal gain for that employee or for a relative as a result of the
City's business dealings. For the purposes of this policy, a relative is any person who is related
by blood or marriage, or whose relationship with the employee is similar to that of persons who
are related by blood or marriage.

No "presumption of guilt" is created by the mere existence of a relationship with outside firms.
However, if employees have any influence on transactions involving purchases, contracts, or
leases, it is imperative that they disclose to the City Manager as soon as possible the existence
of any actual or potential conflict of interest so that safeguards can be established to protect all
parties. The employee must also file a sworn statement to this effect with the City Manager.

Employees shall not disclose confidential information gained by reason of their official position,
nor shall they otherwise use such information for their personal gain or benefit or the gain or
benefit of others with whom they have a relationship or affiliation of any sort.

Employees will not transact any business in their official capacity with any business entity of which
they are an officer, director, agent or member, or in which they own a controlling interest,
excluding civic, charitable, or religious organizations.

Employees shall not have personal investments in any enterprise which will create a conflict
between their private interest and public interest.

Personal gain may result not only in cases where an employee or relative has a significant
ownership in a firm with which the City does business, but also when an employee or relative
receives any kickback, bribe, substantial gift, or special consideration as a result of any
transaction or business dealings involving the City.

Any monetary gifts such as gift card from a vendor, customer, or member of the public, to be
provided to one or more City staff persons requires the approval of the City Manager. No

employee is permitted to accept a gift in the form of cash. Any nominal gift accepted must be in
accordance with §112, Part I, Florida Statutes.

112 Outside Employment

Full-time employees of the City are expected to be available to fulfill their responsibilities and
duties. Positions with the City are the principal and primary occupation of full-time employees

12



and they are expected to devote their full energies to the performance of their duties. Employees
may hold outside jobs as long as they meet the performance standards of their job with the City
and the outside job does not create a conflict or a potential for a conflict of interest as determined
by the City. All employees will be assessed by the same performance standards and will be
subject to the City's scheduling demands, regardless of any existing outside work requirements.

If the City determines that an employee's outside work interferes with performance or the ability
to meet the requirements of the City as they are modified from time to time, the employee may be
asked to terminate the outside employment if the employee wishes to remain with the City.

Outside employment that constitutes a conflict of interest is prohibited. Employees may not
receive any income or material gain from individuals outside the City for materials produced or
services rendered while performing their jobs.

Any employee who intends to or obtains outside employment must promptly notify their
department head, in writing of such employment. Department heads must then immediately notify
the City Manager in writing.

113 Misinformation

The spreading of misinformation is damaging to the reputation and morale of the City. It is
expected that employees will not engage in gossip or the spreading of rumors. Employees are
not to discuss City business which is confidential outside the performance of their duties.

Employees are prohibited from discussing, disclosing or using confidential knowledge of official
business which is acquired as a result of employment with the City. Divulging, discussion, or
using such knowledge shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment, even if they do not actually benefit from the disclosed information, consistent with
applicable law.

114 Job Posting and Employee Referrals

The City provides employees an opportunity to indicate their interest in open positions and
advance within the organization according to their skills and experience. In general, notices of all
regular, full-time job openings are posted, although the City reserves its discretionary right to not
post a particular opening.

Job openings will be posted on the employee bulletin board and normally remain open for seven
(7) calendar days. Each job posting notice will include the dates of the posting period, job title,
department, location, grade level, job summary, essential duties, and qualifications (required skills
and abilities).

To be eligible to apply for a posted job, employees must have performed competently for at least
180 calendar days in their current position. Employees who have a written warning on file, or are
on probation or suspension are not eligible to apply for posted jobs. Eligible employees can only
apply for those posted jobs for which they possess the required skills, competencies, and
qualifications.

To apply for an open position, employees should submit a job posting application to the City
Manager listing job-related skills and accomplishments. it should also describe how their current

13



experience with the City and prior work experience and/or education qualifies them for the
position.

The City recognizes the benefit of developmental experiences and encourages employees to talk
with their supervisors about their career plans. Supervisors are encouraged to support
employees' efforts to gain experience and advance within the organization.

An applicant's supervisor may be contacted to verify performance, skills, and attendance. Any
staffing limitations or other circumstances that might affect a prospective transfer may also be
discussed.

Job posting is a way to inform employees of openings and to identify qualified and interested
applicants who might not otherwise be known to the hiring manager. Other recruiting sources
may also be used to fill open positions in the best interest of the organization.

The City also encourages employees to identify friends or acquaintances who are interested in
employment opportunities and refer qualified outside applicants for posted jobs. Employees
should obtain permission from the individual before making a referral, share their knowledge of
the organization, and not make commitments or oral promises of employment.

An employee should submit the referral's resume and/or completed application form to the City
Manager for a posted job. If the referral is interviewed, the referring employee will be notified of
the initial interview and the final selection decision.

115 Political Activity

City employees are encouraged to exercise their normal civic rights and responsibilities. They
retain the right to vote and to freely express their opinion on all political subjects, to become or
continue to be a member of any political party or to attend political meetings on their own time.

In accordance with Florida law, and as specified herein, municipal employees will not take any
active part in any political campaign for the election of the City Commission for the City, Florida
while on duty.

No employee will solicit, orally or by letter, or be in any other manner concerned in obtaining any
assessments, contributions, or services for any political candidate or political cause while on duty
or otherwise if prohibited by Florida law.

Employees are prohibited from conducting or participating in any political activity while on work
time. Employees shall not wear or display political badges, buttons, or stickers when on duty,
when wearing a City insignia, riding in or on City equipment, or when in a City uniform.

All employees are subject to all legal restrictions on political activity as provided by state, federal,
or local law. It is each employee's responsibility to familiarize themselves with any such
restrictions or limitations before engaging in any political activity.

Nothing herein contained shall be construed to restrict the right of the employee to hold

membership in and support a political party, to vote as he/she chooses, to maintain political
neutrality, or to attend political parties after working hours.

14



116 Employee Debts

An employee's financial transactions are the employee's affair. The City will notactas a collection
agency against an employee unless so ordered to carry out a garnishment by a court of competent
jurisdiction or the United States Internal Revenue Service.

However, should complaints concerning an employee's failure to meet financial obligations result
in interference with municipal service, the employee concerned will be so informed and
appropriate action taken by the City Manager.

201 Employment Categories

It is the intent of the City to clarify the definitions of employment classifications so that employees
understand their employment status and benefit eligibility. These classifications do not guarantee
employment for any specified period of time. Accordingly, the right to terminate the employment
relationship at will at any time is retained by both the employee and the City.

Each employee is designated as either nonexempt or exempt from federal and state wage and
hour laws. Nonexempt employees are entitled to overtime pay under the specific provisions of
federal and, if applicable, state laws. Exempt employees are excluded from specific provisions
of federal and state wage and hour laws. Employees will be notified of their exempt or nonexempt
classification applicable for the position they hold. Only the City Manager has the ability to change
a classification in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.

In addition to the above categories, each employee will belong to one other employment category:

REGULAR FULL-TIME employees are those who are not in temporary or introductory status and
who are regularly scheduled to work the City's full-time schedule. Generally, they are eligible for
the City's benefit package, subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations of each benefit
program.

REGULAR PART-TIME employees are those who are not assigned to a temporary or introductory
status and who are regularly scheduled to work less than the full-time work schedule, but at least
20 hours per week. Regular part-time employees are eligible for some benefits sponsored by the
City, subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations of each benefit program.

PART-TIME employees are those who are not assigned to a temporary or introductory status and
who are regularly scheduled to work less than 20 hours per week. While they do receive all legally
mandated benefits (such as Social Security and workers' compensation insurance), they are
ineligible for all of the City's other benefit programs.

INTRODUCTORY employees are those whose performance is being evaluated to determine
whether further employment in a specific position or with the City is appropriate. Employees who
satisfactorily complete the introductory period will be notified of their new employment
classification.

TEMPORARY employees are those who are hired as interim replacements, to temporarily
supplement the work force, or to assist in the completion of a specific project. Employment
assignments in this category are of a limited duration. Employment beyond any initially stated
period does not in any way imply a change in employment status. Temporary employees retain

15



that status unless and until notified of a change. While temporary employees receive all legally
mandated benefits (such as workers' compensation insurance and Social Security), they are
ineligible for all of the City's other benefit programs.

202 Access to Personal Files

The City maintains a personnel file on each employee. The personal file includes such information
as the employee’s job application, resume, records of training, documentation of performance
appraisals and salary increases, and other employment records.

Generally, only supervisors and management personnel of the City who have a legitimate reason
to review information in a file may do so.

Employees who wish to review their own file should contact the City Manager. With reasonable
advance notice, employees may review their own personnel files in the City's offices and in the
presence of an individual appointed by the City to maintain the files.

Personnel files are the property of the City, and as such, are a Public Record under Florida Law,

unless an exemption applies. The City must comply with a Public Records request for an
employee’s personnel file.

16



203 Employment Verification Checks
The City conducts background checks on applicants for employment. .

For current or former employees, the City will respond in writing only to those employment
verification check inquiries that are submitted in writing and contain a signed employee
authorization. The City’s written response to such inquiries will confirm dates of employment, and
position(s) held, unless the employee or former employee authorizes the disclosure of other
information. Copies of any records will be provided only if there is a Public Records request.

204 Personnel Data Changes

It is the responsibility of each employee to promptly notify Human Resources of any changes in
personnel data. Personal mailing addresses, telephone numbers, number and names of
dependents, individuals to be contacted in the event of an emergency, educational
accomplishment, and other such status reports should be accurate and current at all times. [f any
personnel data has changed, notify Human Resources.

205 Introductory Period

The introductory period is intended to give new employees the opportunity to demonstrate their
ability to achieve a satisfactory level of performance and to determine whether the new position
meets their expectations. The City uses this period to evaluate employee capabilities, work
habits, and overall performance. Either the employee or the City may end the employment
relationship at will at any time during or after the introductory period, with or without cause or
advance notice.

All new and rehired employees work on an introductory basis for the first 180 days the employee
works after their date of hire. Employees who are promoted or transferred within the City must
complete a secondary introductory period of 90 days with each reassignment to a new position.
Any absences during an introductory period will automatically extend an introductory period by
the length of the absence. If the City determines that the designated introductory period does not
allow sufficient time to thoroughly evaluate the employee's performance, the introductory period
may be extended for a specified period.

In cases of promotions or transfers within the City, an employee who, in the sole judgment of
management, is not successful in the new position can be removed from that position at any time
during the secondary introductory period. [f this occurs, the employee may be allowed to return
to his or her former job (if available) or to an available comparable job for which the employee is
qualified, depending on the availability of such positions and the City's needs.

Upon satisfactory completion of the initial introductory period, employees enter the "regular”
employment classification.

During the initial introductory period, new employees are eligible for those benefits that are
required by law, such as workers' compensation insurance and social Security. They may also
be eligible for other benefits provided by the City, subject to the terms and conditions of each
benefits program. Employees should read the information for each specific benefits program for
the details on eligibility requirements.

17



Employment status is not changed during the secondary introductory period that result from a
promotion or transfer within the City.

An introductory period employee is subject to dismissal without the right of appeal at any time
during his/her introductory period for failing to meet performance standards of for violation of any
City policy as herein described. The appropriate supervisor, shall make a written evaluation(s)
during the introductory period using the City’s established form.

206 Employment Applications

The City relies upon the accuracy of information contained in the employment application, as well
as the accuracy of other data presented throughout the hiring process and employment. Any
misrepresentations, falsifications, or material omissions in any of this information or data may
result in the exclusion of the individual from further consideration for employment or, if the person
has been hired, termination of employment.

207 Performance Evaluations

Supervisors and employees are strongly encouraged to discuss job performance and goals on an
informal, day-to-day basis. Formal performance evaluations are conducted at the end of an
employee's initial period in any new position. This period, known as the introductory period, allows
the supervisor and the employee to discuss the job responsibilities, standards, and performance
requirements of the new position. Additional formal performance evaluations are conducted to
provide both supervisors and employees the opportunity to discuss job tasks, identify and correct
weaknesses, encourage and recognize strengths, and discuss positive, purposeful approaches
for meeting goals.

The performance of all employees’ is generally evaluated according to an ongoing 12-month
cycle, beginning at the fiscal-year end.

Merit-based pay adjustments may be provided in an effort to recognize truly superior employee
performance. The decision to award such an adjustment is dependent upon numerous factors,
including the information documented by this formal performance evaluation process, other
performance matters, and the City budget.

301 Employee Benefits

Eligible employees at the City are provided a wide range of benefits. A number of the benefits
(such as Social Security, workers' compensation, and reemployment assistance (unemployment)
insurance) cover all employees in the manner prescribed by law. Benefits provided by a third
party insurance carrier have eligibility requirements that employees must to qualify for the
benefits. Some of the benefits are not sponsored by the City but are made available for
employees to voluntary purchase through a third party.

Other fringe benefits provided by the City have eligibility requirements dependent upon a variety

of factors, including employee classification. Your supervisor or the City Manager can identify the
benefits for which you are eligible. Whether benefits apply to a particular employee will be

18



governed by this Handbook or by the particular benefit plan and its requirements. Additional
information, including summary plan descriptions, which explain the details of the coverage and
benefits, is available from the City . Employees should contact Human Resources if they have
any questions about their eligibility. The actual plan document is the final authority and will govern
in the event of any conflict between this Handbook and the plan. The City reserves the right to
change or eliminate benefits at any time consistent with applicable law.

The following are available to eligible employees:

Benefits Continuation - COBRA
Dental Insurance

Educational Assistance

Health Insurance

Holidays

Life Insurance

Long-Term Disability
Membership Dues

Personal Days

Relocation Benefits

Retirement Program
Short-Term Disability

Sick Leave Benefits

Social Security

Time off to Vote
Unemployment Insurance
Vacation Benefits

Vision

Witness Duty

Workers’ Compensation Insurance

e ® 2 © & © © o ©o © o ® °o e °o @& ©°o ° °o @

Some benefits can be fully purchased by the employee and are not sponsored by the City. Other
City sponsored benefits may require contributions from the employee. Some benefits are fully
paid by the City.

302 Benefit Continuations (COBRA)

The federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) gives employees and
their qualified beneficiaries the opportunity to continue health insurance coverage under the City's
health plan when a "qualifying event" would normaily result in the loss of eligibility. Some common
qualifying events are resignation, termination of employment, or death of an employee; a
reduction in an employee's hours or a leave of absence; an employee's divorce or legal
separation; and a dependent child no longer meeting eligibility requirements.

Under COBRA, the employee or beneficiary pays the full cost of coverage at the City's group
rates plus an administrative fee. The City provides each eligible employee with a written notice
describing rights granted under COBRA when the employee becomes eligible for coverage under
the City's health insurance plan. The notice contains important information about the employee's
rights and obligations.

19



303 Dental Insurance

The City's health insurance plan provides employees and their dependents access to dental
insurance benefits for purchase by the employee. Employees in the following employment
classifications are eligible to participate in the health insurance plan:

e Regular full-time employees

Eligible employees may participate in the Dental insurance plan subject to all terms and conditions
of the agreement between the City and the insurance carrier.

A change in employment classification that would result in loss of eligibility to participate in the
health insurance plan may qualify an employee for benefits continuation under the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA). Refer to the Benefits Continuation (COBRA) policy
for more information.

Details of the health insurance plan are described in the Summary Plan Description (SPD). An
SPD and information on cost of coverage will be provided in advance of enroliment to eligible
employees. Contact Human Resources for more information about health insurance benefits.

304 Educational Assistance

A. Policy: The City recognizes that the skills and knowledge of its employees are critical to
the success of the organization. The educational assistance program encourages
personal development through formal education so that employees can maintain and
improve job-related skills or enhance their ability to compete for reasonably attainable jobs
within the City. All course work is done voluntarily, outside the employee’s regular work
time, and is not being required by the City.

B. Eligibility: The City will provide educational assistance to any fulltime (working 40 hours
per week) employees who have successfully completed six (6) months of employment
and have completed their introductory period. To maintain eligibility employees must
remain on active payroll and be performing their job satisfactorily through completion of
each course. This program is based only on the annual funding in the Annual City Budget.
Should funds not be appropriated for the program it would be suspended until the next
fiscal year's budget. If the program were subsequently funded, retroactive payment would
not be allowed.

C. Conditions for Approval

1. Prior to the start of the course, the employee must complete for approval the Educational
Assistance Reimbursement Form. A separate application form must be used for each
course submitted for approval.

2. Reimbursement shall be made for coursework, books, fees and travel expenses when a
town vehicle is not available for courses completed at only accredited public, business, or
trade schools, colleges, or universities, or through accredited correspondence schools.
The South Association of Schools and Colleges will determine accreditation. The City
Manager will evaluate courses not accredited by this association.

3. Courses of study must be related to the maintenance and improvement of skills in the

20



employee’s present job or must be required course for a degree related to the employee's
present job. The City has the sole discretion to determine whether a course relates to an
employee’s current job duties.

Reimbursements are provided following the course completion. The employee must
present an official report of the grade. The reimbursable amount will not exceed the
normal cost for credit hour of tuition at a state or public institution. Reimbursable
percentage will be granted for the employee who receives the following applicable grades:

A 100%
B 80%
C 60%

D or lower no reimbursement

The employee must also present an official school receipt or canceled check indicating
the cost of tuition for the course. The reimbursed amounts will be processed and paid
following the receipt of all required documents and forms (payments to generally be made
within thirty (30) days).

. The City shall not reimburse if the full tuition is paid by another source: e.g, G. L. Bill,
scholarship, grant, etc., and for which the employee is reimbursed. If the tuition is partially
funded by another source, the City shall reimburse the difference up to the normal current
credit hour cost at state or public institutions.

. The City shall not reimburse an employee for more than six (6) credit hours in one
semester.

. Reimbursement Requirements: The City invests in educational assistance to
employees with expectation that the investment be returned through enhanced job
performance. However, if an employee voluntarily separates from the City’s employment
within two (2) years of the last educational assistance payment, the employee will be
required to repay 100 percent of all educational assistance payments made in the prior
two (2) years. Employees must sign a reimbursement agreement and a promissory note
each time an educational assistance payment is made which will be cancelled by the City
once the employee meets the two (2) employment year requirement.

. Time: Course schedules shall not conflict with the employee’s normal work schedule.

. No Entitlements: While educational assistance is expected to enhance employees
performance and professional abilities, the City cannot guarantee that participation in
formal education will entitle the employee to automatic advancement, a different job
assignment, or pay increases.

305 Health Insurance

The City's health insurance plan provides employees and their dependents access to medical and
dental insurance benefits. Employees in the following classifications are eligible to participate in
the health insurance plan:

Regular full-time employees

21



Eligible employees may participate in the health insurance plan subject to all terms and conditions
of the agreement between the City and the insurance carrier.

A change in employment classification that would result in loss of eligibility to participate in the
health insurance plan may qualify an employee for benefits continuation under the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA). Refer to the Benefits Continuation (COBRA) policy
for more information.

Details of the health insurance plan are described in the Summary Plan Description (SPD). An
SPD and information on cost of coverage will be provided in advance of enroliment to eligible
employees. Contact the City Manager for more information about health insurance benefits.

306 Holidays

The City will grant holiday time off to employees on the holidays listed below:

New Year's Day (January 1)

Martin Luther King, Jr (third Monday in January)
Good Friday

Memorial Day (Last Monday in May)
Independence Day (July 4)

Labor Day (first Monday in September)
Veteran's Day (November 11)

Thanksgiving (fourth Thursday in November)
Day after Thanksgiving

Christmas (December 25)

Floating Holiday

The City will grant paid holiday time off to all eligible employees immediately upon assignment to
an eligible employment classification. Holiday pay will be calculated based on the employee's
straight-time pay rate (as of the date of the holiday) times the number of hours the employee
would otherwise have worked on that day. Eligible employee classifications(s):

e Regular full-time employees
¢ Regular part-time employees

To be eligible for holiday pay, employees must work the last scheduled day immediately preceding
and the first scheduled day-immediately following the holiday.

A recognized holiday that falls on a Friday or Saturday will be observed on the preceding
Thursday. A recognized holiday that falls on a Sunday will be observed on the following Monday.

If a recognized holiday falls during an eligible employee's approved prescheduled paid absence
(such as vacation or sick leave), holiday pay will be provided instead of the paid time off benefit
that would otherwise have applied.

If eligible nonexempt employees work on a recognized holiday, they will receive holiday pay, plus
wages at their straight-time rate for the hours worked on the holiday (and overtime, if applicable).

22



In addition to the recognized holidays previously listed, eligible employees will receive one (1)
floating holiday in each anniversary year. To be eligible, employees must complete 180 calendar
days of service in an eligible employment classification. These holidays shall be scheduled by
the City Manager.

Paid time off for holidays will not be counted as hours worked for the purposes of determining
overtime.

307 Life Insurance

Life Insurance offers you and your family important financial protection. The City provides a basic
life insurance plan for eligible employees.

Employees in the following employment Classifications are eligible to participate in the life
insurance plan.

¢ Regular full-time employees

Eligible Employees may participate in the life insurance plan subject to all terms and conditions
of the agreement between the City and the insurance carrier.

Details of the basic life insurance plan including benefit amounts are described in the Summary
Plan Description provided to eligible employees. Contact Human Resources for more information
about life insurance benefits.

308 Long-Term Disability

The City provides a long-term disability (LTD) benefits plan to help eligible employees cope with
an illness of injury that results in a long-term absence from employment. LTD is designed to
ensure a continuing income for employees who are disabled and unable to work.

Employees in the following employment classifications are eligible to participate in the LTD plan:

o Regular full-time employees

Eligible employees may participate in the LTD plan subject to all terms and conditions of the
agreement between the City and the insurance carrier. Details of the LTD benefits plan including
benefit amounts, and limitations and restrictions are described in the Summary Plan Description
provided to eligible employees. Contact Human Resources for more information about LTD
benefits.

309 Membership Dues
The City recognizes that the membership in certain job-related organizations are beneficial to

both the employee and the City. It is the policy of the City to provide to provide funding for these
memberships through the budget process each year.

23



For questions or information on which memberships may be covered, contact the City Manager.

310 Relocation Benefits

When the City asks an eligible employee to locate to a new area, certain relocation benefits may
be provided to facilitate the transition. Relocation may be available to any eligible newly hired
employee who must relocate in order to reside within the city limits of the City, Florida. The
employment position eligible for relocation benefits is:

e Full-time salaried administrative employees (City Manager)

For specific information regarding the terms and extent of relocation benefits, please contact the
Mayor and City Commission.

Available forms of relocation assistance include:

House hunting trips

Sale of former residence

Moving household goods

Reemployment assistance for working spouse
Temporary housing

Furniture storage

Mortgage assistance

Rental assistance for non-nomeowners.

Utility hookups

Services of relocation firm to coordinate move

An eligible employee must request relocation assistance for specific items in advance of the date
the expenses are incurred. The City will reimburse expenses only if the employee has received
advance approval, incurs reasonable expenses and submits satisfactory proof of the expense
within 30 calendar days of the date the expense was incurred.

The City extends these relocation benefits in an effort to contribute to the success of an employee
relocation. However, if the eligible employee separates from the City's service, for any reason,
within one year of the relocation, 100 percent of the amount of the relocation reimbursement must
be reimburse by the employee. The employee must sign a reimbursement agreement and a
promissory note for the amount of the relocation expenses prior to any monies being reimbursed.
The agreement and the promissory note will be cancelled by the City once the employee meets
the one employment year requirement.

311 Retirement Program

The City is a member of the Florida Retirement System (a state agency) to provide employees
the potential for future financial security for retirement.

To be eligible to join you must complete 30 days of service and be 18 years of age or older.
Eligible employees participate in the plan subject to all terms and conditions of the plan.

24



The Florida Retirement System allows you to elect, at retirement, how you can tailor your own
retirement package to meet your individual needs. The City contributes an additional matching
amount to each employee's retirement contribution.

Because your contribution to the Florida Retirement System is automatically deducted from your
pay before federal and state tax withholdings are calculated, you save tax dollars now by having
your current taxable amount reduced. While the amounts deducted generally will be taxed when
they are finally distributed, favorable tax rules typically apply to state retirement plans.

Complete details of the Florida Retirement System plan are described in the Summary Plan
Description provided to eligible employees. Contact the City Manager for more information about
the Florida Retirement System plan.

312 Short-Term Disability Insurance

The City provides access for eligible employee to purchase short-term disability insurance which
provides benefits for those who are unable to work because of a qualifying disability due to an
injury or illness. Employees in the following employment classification are eligible to participate
in the short-term disability plan:

¢ Regular full-time employees

Eligible employees may participate in the short-term disability insurance subject to all terms and
conditions of the agreement between the employee and the insurance carrier. The short-term
disability insurance is not a plan sponsored by the City.

Details of the short-term disability benefits plan including benefit amounts, when they are payable,
and limitations, restrictions, and other exclusions are described in the Summary Plan Description
provided to eligible employees. Contact Human Resources for more information about short-term
disability benefits.

313 Sick Time and Sick Leave Bank

The City provides paid sick time to all eligible employees for legitimate health/medical purposes.
Eligible employee classification(s):

e Regular full-time employees
o Regular part-time employees

Eligible full-time employees can accrue sick time at the rate of 12 days per anniversary year
(accrued each payroll period). Eligible part-time employees will accrue sick time on a pro-rata
basis per anniversary year (accrued each payroll period on a pro-rata basis which is determined
by the employee’s regular part-time base schedule). Beginning on the first day of employment,
sick time is accrued and earned over time during periods of active service. When an employee
is on an extended unpaid leave of absence sick time will not continue to accrue as the benefits
are earned based on active employment. Active employment includes when the employee is out
on paid sick time or vacation time but not when the employee is using any sick leave bank or
other banked leave (see vacation policy). Sick time will be pro-rated in any anniversary year

25



where the employee does not work the employee’s assigned schedule on a continuous active
basis.

Paid sick time can be used in minimum increments of one hour. Eligible employees may use sick
time for an absence due to their own illness or injury or that of a family member who resides in
the employee's household and to meet medical or dental appointments or other sickness
prevention measures. The City can require an employee to use available sick time, including
those from the sick leave bank for any medically related absences.

If an employee has contracted a contagious disease which may be passed on or carried from one
person to another such as COVID-19, influenza, meningitis, chicken pox, etc., then for the health
and safety of all employees and customers, the City has the right to condition the employee’s
ability to remain at work or to return to work from an absence, on the receipt of a statement from
the employee’s physician that the employee is no longer contagious/communicable and is able to
reenter the workplace.

If a non-exempt employee exhausts all available earned sick time, unless they have available
vacation benefits, or any sick or other leave bank benefits, the employee will be paid only for
actual hours worked. Exempt employees will be paid, and deductions from pay made, as required
and allowed by the Fair Labor Standards Act. A request for time off without pay will not be
authorized unless the employee has used all earned paid time (sick time, vacation time, sick bank
or other leave bank benefits).

Employees who are unable to report to work due to illness or injury must notify their direct
supervisor before the scheduled start of their workday as soon as possible. For emergency and
other unexpected situations, the employee must notify the direct supervisor of the absence as
soon as possible. The direct supervisor must also be contacted on each additional day of
absence, unless the employee has been approved in advance for an extended sick leave absence
(such as for pre-scheduled surgery, etc.). If an employee is absent for three or more consecutive
days due to illness or injury, a physician's statement must be provided verifying the reason for the
absence and its beginning and expected ending dates. Such verification may be requested for
any other sick leave absences as well and may be required as a condition to receiving sick leave
time. Before returning to work from a sick leave absence of three (3) or more consecutive working
days, an employee must provide a physician's verification that the employee has been released
to return to work, and if there are any work restrictions those must be explained as well, including
the expected duration of the restrictions. To maintain the confidentiality of the medical information,
for anyone outside of Administration, any documentation containing medical information must be
provided to Human Resources or to the City Manager and is not to be provided to the direct
supervisor.

Sick time and time in the sick leave bank will be calculated based on the employee’s base pay
rate at the time of the absence and will not include any special forms of compensation, such as
incentives, commissions, bonuses, or shift differentials.

Earned unused sick time at the end of an employee's anniversary year will be allowed to carry
into the employee’s sick leave bank until the employee has accrued a maximum of 720 hours of
banked sick leave. If the employee's sick leave bank reaches this maximum, no further accrual
of any sick time will be allowed until the employee has reduced the employee’s sick leave bank
balance below the limit.

Sick time and the sick leave bank are intended solely to provide income protection in the event of

26



illness or injury, and may not be used for any other absence. Unused sick time and sick leave
bank has no cash value and unless the time is used, the sick leave benefits will not otherwise be
paid to employees while they are employed or upon termination of employment.

314 Donation of Sick Time From an Employee’s Sick Leave Bank

Employees who have time in their sick leave bank may confidentially donate some of their time
to a specifically named and identified non-exempt employee to be used by that employee during
the current calendar year. To be eligible for a sick bank donation, the recipient must be on an
approved Medical Leave for their own personal illness/event or out of work for an illness that
would qualify as a disability and must have exhausted all of their paid time hours (vacation, sick,
sick leave bank). Sick leave bank time can be donated in whole day increments of 8.0 hours and
will be paid to the recipient at the recipient’s hourly rate. All recipient payroll deductions (i.e.
Insurance premiums, tax withholdings, etc.) will apply to all donated sick leave bank hours.
Donated sick leave bank hours must be used by the recipient during their qualified leave. If
donated sick leave bank hours are not used by the recipient (the recipient returns to work before
using the donated time) then the donated hours revert back to the donor. No employee may
solicit a donation from another employee.

315 Social Security

All City employees are required to participate in the Social Security system. Both the employee
and the City are required to contribute to Social Security. Employee and City contributions are
determined by federal law and are subject to change.

316 Time Off to Vote

The City encourages employees to fulfill their civic responsibilities by participating in elections.
Generally, employees are able to find time to vote either before or after their regular work
schedule. If employees are unable to vote in an election during their nonworking hours, the City
will grant up to one (1) hour of unpaid time off to vote. Employees may use available vacation or
personal time (in half day increments) to vote.

Employees should request time off to vote form their supervisor at least two working days prior to
the Election Day. Advance notice is required so that the necessary time off can be scheduled at
the beginning or end of the work shift whichever provides the least disruption to the normal work
schedule.

317 Reemployment Assistance Benefits (Unemployment Insurance)

The City is registered with the State of Florida Bureau of Unemployment Compensation.
Employees who voluntarily resign or are terminated for misconduct from employment with the City
are not eligible for reemployment assistance benefits (unemployment compensation). Employees
who are terminated from town employment, who file a claim and meet certain qualifications, may
be eligible to receive unemployment compensation benefits.

27



318 Vacation Time and Leave Bank

Vacation time off with pay is available to eligible employees to provide opportunities for rest,
relaxation, and personal pursuits. Employees in the following employment classification(s) are
eligible to earn and use vacation time as described in this policy:

e Regular full-time employees
e Regular part-time employees

Except for the first year of employment, vacation time for the benefit year is credited to an
employee on the employee’s anniversary date and in advance of the vacation being accrued and
earned for the current (upcoming) benefit year. Vacation time is accrued and earned
incrementally each payroll period to be used during the employees current benefit year. The
amount of paid vacation time employees are eligible to receive each year increases with the length
of employment as shown in the following schedule:

e Employees will begin accruing vacation on their first payroll and employees may request the
use of vacation after it is earned, so long as the employee has completed six (6) months of
continuous service (full-time or part-time as applicable). In the first year of service, an
employee is eligible to earn up to five (5) vacation days, to be used after 6 months of service.

o After one (1) year of eligible service, the employee is eligible to earn up to ten (10) vacation
days each year.

o Afterfive (5) years of eligible service, the employee is eligible to earn up to fifteen (15) vacation
days each year.

 After ten (10) years of eligible service, the employee is eligible to earn up to twenty (20)
vacation days each year.

The City is aware that exempt positions ordinarily work over and above the normal forty (40) hour
workweek. In recognition of this, exempt positions within the City earn five (5) additional vacation
days in addition to those prescribed above.

The length of eligible service is calculated based on the employee’s anniversary date, which is
also referred to as a "benefit year." An employee's benefit year may be extended for any
significant leave of absence except military leave of absence. Military leave has no effect on this
calculation. (See individual leave of absence policies for more information.) Vacation time will
be pro-rated in any benefit year where the employee does not work his or her assigned schedule
on a continuous active basis. For example, when an employee is on an extended unpaid leave
of absence vacation time will not continue to accrue as the benefits are earned based on active
employment. Active employment includes when the employee is out on paid sick time or vacation
time, but not when the employee is using any sick leave bank or other leave bank (see below).
The City can require an employee to use available vacation time or leave bank time, for any
absence from work.

Employees earn paid vacation time according to their employment classification and the above
schedule and so long as they remain in their employment classification as an active employee.
Employees can request use of vacation time after it has been credited even if not yet earned and
so long as they have completed six (6) months of continuous service (full-time or part-time as
applicable).

Paid vacation time can be used in minimum increments of one-half day. To take vacation,

28



employees must request advance approval from the direct supervisor. Requests will be reviewed
based on a number of factors, including business needs and staffing requirements. No vacation
time shall be approved if doing so adversely affects the essential services of the department.

Vacation time as well as the banked time is paid at the employee's base pay rate at the time of
its use. The pay does not include overtime or special forms of compensation such as incentives,
commissions, bonuses, or shift differentials.

If a non-exempt employee exhausts all available earned vacation time, unless the employee has
available leave bank benefits, the employee will be paid only for actual hours worked. Exempt
employees will be paid, and deductions from pay made, as required and allowed by the Fair Labor
Standards Act. A request for time off without pay will not be authorized unless the employee has
used all earned paid time (vacation time and leave bank benefits).

In the event that earned unused vacation time is not used by the end of the employee’s benefit
year, employees may carry over earned unused time to a leave bank up to a maximum of
maximum of 240 hours. If the employee reaches the maximum of 240 hours in the leave bank
then no further time can be added to the leave bank until the employee has reduced the leave
bank below the hour limit. If at the end of the benefit year the employee has unused vacation
time and the leave bank is at the maximum hours then any vacation time not taken in that benefit
year is lost and has no cash or other value. Time in the leave bank can be used by the employee
for vacation, sick (including that of an ill family member), extended leave of absence, or military
leave.

Upon termination of employment, employees will be paid for unused vacation time that has been
earned through the last day of work at 100%, and will be paid for any leave bank time at 50%,
with all sums being paid at the base pay rate at the time of termination.

For any vacation time taken by an employee before the time has been accrued and earned, the
payment of the vacation is considered a cash advance against future wages and is subject to
repayment if the employee’s employment ends and they have taken more vacation than has been
earned as of the date of termination. At the time of termination the City will deducted from the
employee’s wages some or all of the balance remaining in the amounts as allowed by law,
including the Fair Labor Standards Act (applicable to exempt and non-exempt employees) and
the Florida Minimum Wage laws (applicable to non-exempt employees). Any deduction(s) made
by the City will not reduce an employee’s pay below any statutorily-required minimum wage or
overtime premium that is due to a non-exempt employee. For exempt employees, deductions
from salary, or other monies owed to the exempt employee, will be made only as allowed by law.

319 Witness Duty

The City encourages employees to appear in court for witness duty when subpoenaed to do so.
If employees have been subpoenaed or otherwise requested to testify as witnesses in a case
where the City is a named party, they will receive paid time off for the day(s) they are testifying
as a witness. Employees must return to work when their witness service is completed for the day
(unless they are excused for duty within two hours of the end of the employee’s normal workday).
Employees will be granted a maximum of eight (8) hours of paid time off to appear in court as a

witness in a case where the City is not a party to the lawsuit. Employees will be paid at their base
rate and are free to use any remaining paid leave benefits (such as vacation leave) to receive

29



compensation for any period of witness duty absence that would otherwise be unpaid.

The subpoena must be shown to the employee's supervisor immediately after it is received so
that operating requirements can be adjusted, where necessary, to accommodate the employee's
absence. The employee is expected to report for work whenever the court schedule permits.

320 Workers' Compensation Insurance

The City provides a comprehensive workers' compensation insurance program at no cost to
employees. This program covers any injury or illness sustained in the course of employment that
requires medical, surgical, or hospital treatment. Subject to applicable legal requirements,
workers' compensation insurance provides benefits after a short waiting period or, if the employee
is hospitalized, immediately.

Employees who sustain work-related injuries or ilinesses must inform their supervisor
immediately. No matter how minor an on-the-job injury may appear, it is important that it be
reported immediately. This will enable an eligible employee to qualify for coverage as quickly as
possible. Failure to timely report the injury by an employee may result in the delay or the loss of
the workers’ compensation benefits. Supervisors must immediately report injuries to Human
Resources.

Neither the City nor the insurance carrier will be liable for the payment of workers' compensation
benefits for injuries that occur during an employee's voluntary participation in any off-duty
recreational, social, or athletic activity sponsored by the City.

Employees in need of extended time off from work due to a work related injury must request a
leave of absence per the Medical Leave policy.

321 Personal Days

Two (2) personal days off with pay are available to eligible employees to provide opportunities for
personal pursuits. Employees in the following employment classification(s) are eligible to earn
and use personal days as described in this policy:

¢ Regular full-time employees
e Regular part-time employees

The length of eligible service is calculated on the basis for a "benefit year.” This is the 12-month
periods that begins when the employee starts to earn vacation time. An employee's benefit year
may be extended for any period of an unpaid leave of absence except military leave of absence.
Military leave has no effect on this calculation. (See individual leave of absence policies for more
information.)

Once employees enter and eligible employment classification, they begin to earn personal days.
After the 180-day introductory period, employees can request the use of personal days that
accrued during the introductory period.

Paid personal days can be used in minimum increments of one-half day. To take personal days,
employees must request advance approval from their supervisors. Requests will be reviewed

30



based on a number of factors, including business needs and staffing requirements. No time shall
be granted if doing so adversely affects the essential services of the department.

Personal days are paid at the employee's base pay rate at the time of use. It does not include
overtime or any special forms of compensation such as incentives, commissions, bonuses, or
shift differentials.

In the event that available personal time is not used by the end of the benefit year, employees
may carry unused time forward to the next benefit year to a maximum of ten (10) calendar days.
Any remaining personal time will be forfeited and has no cash value.

Upon termination of employment, employees will be paid for unused personal days that have
been earned through the last day of work.

401 Timekeeping

Accurately recording time worked is the responsibility of every nonexempt employee by using the
City's designated time recording system. Federal and state laws require the City to keep and
accurate record of time worked in order to calculate employee pay and benefits. Time worked is
all the time actually spent on the job performing assigned duties.

Nonexempt employees must accurately record the time they begin and end their work, as well as
the beginning and ending time of each meal period. They must also record the beginning and
ending time of any spilit shift or departure from work for personal reasons. Overtime work must
always be approved before it is performed.

Altering, falsifying, tampering with time records, failing to records hours, or recording time on
another employee’s time record may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination
of employment.

Nonexempt employees are not to report to work or begin to work before their scheduled starting
time nor stay after their scheduled stop time without expressed, prior authorization from their
supervisor. Employees must be ready to work and begin work as soon as they are clocked in.

It is the employee’s responsibility to review and electronically sign their time records through the
electronic system to certify the accuracy of all time recorded. Employees on call out must
compete their call our sheets to report the additional hours they worked so it can be entered into
the system. Supervisors are to review all time record before it is submitted for payroll processing.
All hours worked by a non-exempt employee must be recorded. No employee has the authority

to direct an employee to not record hours or to work “off the clock.” If that occurs the employee
must immediately report the situation to the City Manager, without fear of reprisal or retaliation.

402 Paydays

All employees are paid bi-weekly on Thursday. Each paycheck will include earnings for all work
performed through the end of the previous payroll period.

In the event that a regularly scheduled payday falls on a day off such as a holiday, employees will

31



receive pay on the last day of work before the regularly scheduled payday.

If a regular payday falls during an employee’s vacation, the employee may receive his or her
earned wages before departing for vacation if a written request is submitted at least one week
prior to departing for vacation.

403 Employment Termination

Termination of employment is an inevitable part of personal activity within any organization, and
many of the reasons for termination are routine. Below are examples of some of the most
common circumstances under which employment is terminated:

e Resignation - voluntary employment termination initiated by an employee

« Discharge - involuntary employment termination initiated by the organization

e Layoff - involuntary employment termination initiated by the organization for non-disciplinary
reasons

¢ Retirement - voluntary employment termination initiated by the employee meeting age, length
of service, and any other criteria for retirement from the organization

Since employment with the City is based on mutual consent, both the employee and the City have
the right to terminate employment at will, with or without cause, at any time. Employees will
receive their final pay in accordance with applicable state law.

Employee benefits will be affected by employment termination in the following manner. All
accrued, vested benefits that are due and payable at termination will be paid. Some insurance
benefits may be continued at the employee's expense if the employee so chooses. The employee
will be notified in writing of the benefits that may be continued and of the terms, conditions, and
limitations of such continuance.

404 Pay Advances
The City does not provide pay advances on unearned wages to employees. The only exception
is the crediting of vacation and allowing it to be used before it has been earned and accrued.

405 Administrative Pay Corrections

The City takes all reasonable steps to ensure that employees receive the correct amount of pay
in each paycheck and that employees are paid promptly on the scheduled payday.

In the unlikely event that there is an error in the amount of pay, even if the error is in the
employee’s favor, the employee must promptly bring the discrepancy to the attention of the

Finance Administrator so that corrections can be made as quickly as possible. If any improper
deductions or other error was made, it will promptly be corrected.

406 Pay Deductions

32



The City endeavors to properly pay all employees and to make only proper withholdings from
employees’ paychecks. All employees must review their paychecks regularly to confirm that all
payroll deductions are correct. It is not our intention to make improper deductions from an
employee’s pay (including from the salary of exempt employees) but if any improper deduction
was made it will be promptly corrected.

If an employee that finds, or believes, that an improper deduction has been made from his or her
paycheck the employee must immediately report the issue to Finance Administrator. All errors
must be reported, even if the error is in the employee's favor. The City encourages and expects
employees to use this complaint procedure. No employee will be retaliated against for reporting
any suspected improper deductions. All complaints of improper deductions will be promptly
investigated. If valid, the City will provide the employee with payment for the previously deducted
amount. If there was an overpayment arrangements must be made to repay the monies.

In the event an employee has been paid in excess of what he/she has earned, the employee will
need to return the overpayment to the City as soon as possible. No employee is entitled to retain
any pay/compensation in excess of the amount he/she has earned according to the agreed-upon
rate of pay/compensation. If a wage overpayment occurs, the overpayment will be regarded as
an advance of future wages payable and will be deducted in whole or in part from the next
available paycheck(s) until the overpaid amount has been fully repaid.

The City withholds from employees’ paychecks all required deductions such as for federal, state
or local taxes and other legal withholdings. The City may also take deductions from employees’
paychecks for absences which are not covered by the City’s vacation or sick leave policies or for
other time off that is not covered by the City’s policies for such time off. In accordance with
applicable law, the City also reserves the right to take deductions from employees’ paychecks for
any other type of deductions that may be necessary or appropriate and that are not specifically
related to an employee's absence.

Full time exempt employees who are absent for one or more full days due to personal reasons,
or for sickness or disability without accrued sick leave or vacation leave or are absent for a
personal reason (other than sickness or disability) are considered to have taken a personal day
off and therefore will not be paid for the day(s) that the employee is absent. In addition, the City
may take deductions from the pay of full time exempt salaried employees if the employee receives
compensation for his or her absences under any of the City's sick leave or disability plans or
policies. The City is permitted to offset any amounts received as payment for jury duty, witness
fees or military pay. The City also does not pay the full salary of full time exempt employees in
their initial or last weeks of employment (if the employee works less than a full workweek in those
weeks).

If an employee violates any safety rules of major significance or any workplace conduct rules,
disciplinary action may include unpaid disciplinary suspensions for a period of time. This applies
to both hourly non-exempt and salaried exempt employees.

Deductions for the City’s benefits coverage will be withheld upon receipt of appropriate
authorization forms from the employee.

407 Salary and Wage Increases

Salary and wage increases, as a result of job performance or cost of living adjustment increases

33



may be given on an annual basis in accordance with budget appropriations by the City
Commission. No probationary employee will receive pay increases until their introductory period
has ended. Successful completion of an introductory period is not a guarantee of a pay increase.
Pay increases are effective as designated in the annual budget or as directed by the City
Manager.

501 Safety

To assist in providing a safe and healthful work environment for employees, customers, and
visitors, the City has established a workplace safety program. This program is a top priority for
the City. The City Manager has responsibility for implementing, administering, monitoring, and
evaluating the safety program. lts success depends on the alertness and personal commitment
of all.

The City provides information to employees about workplace safety and health issues through
regular internal communication channels such as supervisor-employee meetings, bulletin board
postings, memos or other written communications.

Employees and supervisors receive periodic workplace safety training. The training covers
potential safety and health hazards and safe work practices and procedures to eliminate or
minimize hazards.

Each employee is expected to obey rules and to exercise caution in all work activities. Employees
must immediately report any unsafe condition to the appropriate supervisor. Employees who
violate safety standards, who cause hazardous or dangerous situations, or who fail to report or,
where appropriate, remedy such situations, may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and
including termination of employment.

In the case of accidents that result in injury, regardless of how insignificant the injury may appear,
employees must immediately notify the City Manager or the appropriate supervisor. Such reports
are necessary to comply with laws and initiate insurance workers’ compensation benefits
procedures.

502 Work Schedules

The normal work schedule for al regular fulltime employees is eight (8) hours a day, five (5) days
a week. Regular part-time employees work schedules will vary depending on the position and
requirements of the job. Supervisors will advise employees of the times their schedules will
normally begin and end. Staffing needs and operational demands may necessitate variations in
starting and ending times, as well as variations in the total hours that may be scheduled each day
and week.

Fiexible scheduling, or flextime, is available in some cases to allow employees to vary their
starting and ending times each day within established limits. Flextime may be possible if a
mutually workable schedule can be negotiated with the supervisor involved. However, such
issues as staffing needs, the employee's performance, and the nature of the job will be considered
before approval of flextime. Employees should consult their supervisor to request participation in
the flextime program.

34



503 Expenditure Policy

From time to time a Department may have the need to make a repair or incur an expense. Any
expense to be incurred by a Department in excess of $500.00 MUST be approved in advance
and in writing by the City Manager. Department Heads must provide the City Manager with
sufficient information regarding the need for the expense (in excess of $500.00) and the cost to
be incurred, and any estimates that have been obtained. No such expenses can be incurred until
the City Manager has approved the expense. Regardless of the amount of the expense all
invoices received by a Department are to be provided to the City Manager for final approval before
the Finance Department is authorized to pay the invoice.

504 Use of Phone and Mail System

Personal use of the telephone for long-distance and toll calls is not permitted. Employees should
practice discretion when making local personal calls and may be required to reimburse the City
for any charges resulting from their personal use of the telephone.

The use of the City paid postage for personal correspondence is not permitted.

To ensure effective telephone communications, employees should always use the approved
greeting and speak in a courteous and professional manner. Please confirm information received
from the caller, and hang up only after the caller has done so.

505 Smoking/Tobacco/Vaping

In keeping with the City's intent to provide a safe and healthful work environment, the use of
tobacco products, smoking and vaping is prohibited throughout the workplace and in City vehicles.
This policy precludes the use of all forms of cigareties or tobacco products, including cigars, pipes
and chewing tobacco.

The City is a smoke-free workplace and complies with Florida law that prohibits both smoking and
any vapor generating electronic devices in all indoor areas of a workplace and in all public
buildings. This includes all buildings and public places owned or under the control of the City,
Florida. This policy applies equally to all employees, customers, and visitors.

506 Rest and Meal Periods

Each workday, full-time nonexempt employees are allowed two (2) short rest periods when work
schedules permit and the supervisor has approved the break. Supervisors will advise employees
of the regular rest periods length and schedule (to be no more than 15 consecutive minutes). To
the extent possible, rest periods will be provided in the middle of work periods. Since this time is
counted and paid as time worked, employees must not abuse this privilege and may not take
longer rest periods than 15 consecutive minutes. Employees will not be paid for time taken in
excess of the approved 15-minute rest period.

All full-time nonexempt employees are provided with one unpaid meal period of either thirty (30)
or sixty (60) minutes in length each workday, as determined by the City Manager. Supervisors
will schedule meal periods to accommodate operating requirements. Employees will be relieved
of all active responsibilities and restrictions during meal periods and will not be compensated for
that time. Employees must record the meal period in the time recording system.

35



Breaks may be scheduled at staggered times to allow department coverage.

507 Overtime

When operating requirements or other needs cannot be met during regular working hour’s
employees will be given the opportunity to volunteer for overtime work assignments. All overtime
work must receive the supervisor's prior authorization. Overtime assignments will be distributed
as equitably as practical to all employees qualified to perform the required work.

Overtime compensation is paid to all nonexempt employees in accordance with federal and state
wage and hour restrictions. Overtime pay is based on actual hours worked. Time off on sick
leave, vacation leave, or any leave of absence will not be considered hours worked for purposes
of performing overtime calculations.

Failure to work scheduled overtime or working overtime without prior authorization from the
supervisor may result in disciplinary action, up to and including possible termination of
employment.

508 Use of City Vehicles and Equipment

City vehicles are not to be utilized for personal business. Employees are assigned City vehicles
for work only. Employee are allowed to use the vehicle for transportation from home (if an
employee has been explicitly permitted to drive a vehicle home) to the jobsite or office and return.
Unauthorized passengers in City vehicles will not be permitted. This applies to transporting family
member, picking up hitchhikers, friends, and personal pets. Vehicles must be locked when
unattended. During working time an employee is permitted to get gas or pick up lunch from a
store/restaurant if they are in the City's utility service area or City limits. For any employee
permitted to take a vehicle home, the use of the vehicle will be taxed as a fringe benefit when
required by IRS regulations. The City has the right to monitor all vehicles with GPS or another
monitoring system. If a monitoring system in installed in a vehicle it is not to be removed or
tampered with by the employee.

Each employee is responsible for any traffic citations. Drivers may have to be approved by City's
insurance carrier and if so, must maintain the requirements imposed by the carrier to qualify for
automobile insurance policy. Any employee who has a revoked or suspended driver’s license
must immediately notify their supervisor and discontinue operation of any and all vehicles.
Supervisors must in turn immediately notify the City Manager. Failure by the employee or the
supervisor to report the required information may result in disciplinary action, including dismissal.
An employee who has a revoked or suspended driver's license or who has a poor driving record
and who is required to operate a motor vehicle as part of their job with City may be terminated
from the City on account of not having a driver’s license or because of their driving record. There
is no smoking, vaping, or using tobacco in any City vehicle.

Equipment and vehicles essential in accomplishing job duties are expensive and may be difficult
to replace. When using city property, employees are expected to exercise care, perform required
maintenance, and follow all operating instructions, safety standards, and guidelines.

Employees must immediately the supervisor if any equipment, machines, tools, or vehicles

36



appear to be damaged, defective, or in need of repair. Prompt reporting of damages, defects,
and the need for repairs could prevent deterioration of equipment and possible injury to
employees or others. The supervisor can answer any questions about an employee's
responsibility for maintenance and care of equipment or vehicles used on the job. The negligent,
careless or unsafe use of City vehicles or other equipment may result in discipline, up to and
including termination.

The improper, careless, negligent, destructive, or unsafe use or operation of equipment or
vehicles, as well as excessive or avoidable traffic and parking violations, will result in disciplinary
action, up to and including termination of employment. If an employee should fail to return the
assigned City vehicle/equipment, or should the City vehicle/equipment be returned in a broken or
damaged condition as a result of the employee's carelessness or neglect, the City will take all
appropriate legal action to recover the vehicle/equipment, the value of the City vehicle/equipment,
and/or the cost to repair such City vehicle/equipment.

509 Emergency Operations

At times, emergencies such as severe weather, fires, power failures, hurricanes, or pandemics,
can disrupt municipal operation. In extreme cases, these circumstances may require the closing
of the work facility or extending the hours of operation.

Emergency closing during the workday will be announced by the City Manager to the various
managers, who will be responsible for communicating the information to their employees. If
emergency conditions develop during non-working hours, it is the employee’s responsibility to
make every effort to be in contact with their manager during these emergency situations to
determine what the work schedule may be and if they are needed to report to work. Emergency
contact information such as mobile phone numbers, emails and other means that may be used to
communicate in an emergency situation must be provided to Human Resources (and updated as
the information changes).

Except in the case of an emergency, the City expects employees to work their regular hours. If
the City is open for business and an employee does not report to work, the time off will be unpaid,
as allowed by law (or the City Manager may direct the employee to use available vacation) and
you may be subject to disciplinary action. The City recognizes that depending on the reason for
the business closure, some employees may need additional time off to repair extensive home
damage, to address transportation to work, and a variety of other emergency situations. These
will be assessed on a case-by-case basis and decisions will also be affected by the employee’s
job requirements. If you are unclear whether you should report to work due to any emergency
situation, contact your manager for further instructions.

When operations are officially closed due to emergency conditions, the City Manager will notify
employees whether the time off from scheduled work will be paid, and if so for how many days.
Policies regarding overtime pay apply in these situations for all nonexempt employees. In
addition, exempt employees are also eligible for additional pay due to the number of possible
emergency hours worked when the emergency conditions are determined by a declaration of
local, state, or federal agency.

Employees may request available paid leave times such as unused vacation benefits, however
the City Manager has the right to deny the use of paid leave time during emergency situations.

37



Employees in essential operations may be asked to work on a day when operations are officially
closed. In these circumstances, employees who work will receive regular pay and for non-exempt
employees the time will count as hours worked for purposes of determining overtime.

510 Business Travel Expenses

In accordance with the City Ordinance regarding Travel Expenses the City will reimburse
employees for reasonable business travel expenses incurred while on assignment away from the
normal work location. All business travel must be approved in advance by the City Manager.

Employees whose travel plans have been approved are responsible for making their own travel
arrangements.

When approved, the actual costs of travel, meals, lodging, and other expenses directly related to
accomplishing business travel objectives will be reimbursed by the City. Employees are expected
to limit expenses to reasonable amounts.

Expenses that general will be reimbursed include the following:

Airfare or train fare for travel in coach or economy class or lowest available fare.
e Car rental fees, only for compact or mid-sized cars.
Fares or shuttle or airport bus service, where available; costs of public transportation for other
ground travel.
Taxi fares, only when there is no less expensive alternative.
Mileage costs for use of personal cars, only when less expensive transportation is not
available.
Cost of standard accommodations in low to mid-prices hotels, motels, or similar lodgings.
Cost of meals, no more lavish that would be eaten at the employee's own expense.
Charges for telephone calls fax and similar services required for business purposes.
Charges for one personal telephone call each day.
Charges for laundry and valet services, only on trips of five or more days. (Personal
entertainment and personal care items are not reimbursed.)

e o

Employees who are involved in an accident while traveling on business must promptly report the
incident to their immediate supervisor. The supervisor must immediately notify Human
Resources. Vehicles owned, leased, or rented by the City may not be used for personal use.

With prior approval, employees on business travel may be accompanied by a family member or
friend, when the presence of a companion will not interfere with successful completion of business
objectives. Generally, employees are also permitted to combine personal travel with business
travel, as long as time away from work is approved. Additional expenses arising from such
nonbusiness travel are the responsibility of the employee.

When travel is completed, employees must submit completed travel expense reports within
fourteen (14) days. If there is a special circumstance that would delay the submission of the
expense report the employee must notify the supervisor before the 14 days has expired to request
an extension and receive an approval. Reports should be accompanied by detailed receipts for
all individual expenses. Failure to timely submit the expense report may result in the expense not
being reimbursed.

38



Employees should contact their supervisor for guidance and assistance on procedures related to
travel arrangements, expense reports, reimbursement for specific expenses, or any other
business travel issues.

Abuse of this business travel expenses policy, including falsifying expense reports to reflect costs
not incurred by the employee, can be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment.

511 Copier, Fax Machine, Computer and E-mail Usage

Photocopiers, facsimile machines, computers, computer files, the e-mail system, and software
furnished to employees are the City’s property intended for business use. Employees should not
use a password, access a file or retrieve any stored communication without authorization. To
ensure compliance with this policy, computer and e-mail usage may be monitored.

The City strives to maintain a workplace free of harassment and sensitive to the diversity of its
employees. Therefore, the City prohibits the use of computers and the e-mail system in way that
are disruptive, offensive to others, or harmful to morale.

For example, the display or transmission of sexually explicit images, messages, and cartoons is
not allowed. Other such misuse includes, but is not limited to, ethnic slurs, racial comments, off-
color jokes, or anything that may be construed as harassment or showing disrespect for others.

E-mail may not be used to solicit others for commercial ventures, religious or political causes,
outside organizations, or other no-business matters.

The City purchases and licenses the use of various computer software for business purposes and
does not own the copyright to this software or its related documentation. Unless authorized by
the software developer, the City does not have the right to reproduce such software for use on
more than one computer.

Employees may only use software on local networks or on multiple machines according to the
software license agreement. The City prohibits the illegal duplication of software and its related
documentation.

Employees are expected to notify their immediate supervisor or the City Manager upon learning
of violations of this policy. Employees who violate this policy will be subject to disciplinary action,
up to and including termination of employment.

512 Internet Usage

Internet access to global electronic information resources on the World Wide Web is provided by
the City to assist certain employees in obtaining work-related data and technology. The following
guidelines have been established to help ensure responsible and productive internet usage. All
internet usage is limited to job-related activities. Use of the Internet for non-business related
purposes may be permitted if such use is reasonable, done during lunch or non-working time and
does not interfere with an employee's work performance.

39



All internet data that is composed, transmitted, or received via our computer communications
system is considered to be part of the official records of the City and, as such, is subject to public
disclosure to third parties. Consequently, employees should always ensure that the business
information contained in internet e-mail messages and other transmissions is accurate,
appropriate, ethical, and lawful.

The equipment, services, and technology provided to access the internet remain at all times the
property of the City. As such, the City reserves the right to monitor internet traffic, and retrieve
and read any data composed, sent, or received through our online connections and stored in our
computer systems.

Data that is composed, transmitted, accessed, or received via the intemnet must not contain
content that could be considered discriminatory, offensive, obscene, threatening, harassing,
intimidating, or disruptive to any employee or other person. Examples of unacceptable content
may include, but not limited to, sexual comments or images, racial slurs, gender-specific
comments, or any other comments or images that could reasonably offend someone on the basis
of race, age, sex, religious or political beliefs, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, or any
other characteristic protected by law.

The unauthorized use, installation, copying, or distribution of copyrighted, trademarked, or
patented material on the internet is expressly prohibited. As a general rule, if an employee did
not create material, does not own the rights to it, or has not gotten authorization for its use, it
should not be put on the internet. Employees are also responsible for ensuring that the person
sending any material over the internet has the appropriate distribution rights.

Internet users should take the necessary anti-virus precautions before downloading or copying
any file from the internet. All downloaded files are to be checked for viruses; all compressed files
are to be checked before and after decompression.

Abuse of the internet access provided by the City in violation of law or the City's policies will result
in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. Employees may also be
held personally liable for any violations of this policy. The following behaviors are examples of
previously stated or additional actions and activities that are prohibited and can result in
disciplinary action:

Sending or posting discriminatory, harassing, or threatening messages or images

Using the organization’s time and resources for personal gain

Stealing, using, or disclosing someone else's code or password without authorization
Copying, pirating, or downloading software and electronic files without permission

Violating Copyright law

Failing to observe licensing agreements

Engaging in unauthorized transactions that may incur a cost to the organization or initiate
unwanted internet services and transmissions

Sending or posting messages or material that could damage the organization's image or
reputation

Participating in the viewing or exchange of pornography or obscene materials

Sending or posting messages that defame or slander other individuals

Attempting to access or break into the computer system of another organization or person
Refusing to cooperate with a security investigation

Sending or posting chain letters, solicitations, or advertisements not related to business

40



purposes or activities

Using the internet for political causes or activities, religious activities, or any sort of gambling
Jeopardizing the security of the organization's electronic communications systems

Sending or posting messages that disparage another organization's products or services
Passing off personal views as representing those of the organization

Sending anonymous e-mail messages

Engaging in any other inappropriate or illegal activities

513 Workplace Monitoring

Workplace monitoring may be conducted by the City to ensure quality control, employee safety,
security, and customer satisfaction.

Computers furnished to employees are the property of the City. As such, computer usage and
files may be monitored or accessed.

While employees should have no expectation of privacy when using City equipment or systems,
the City will endeavor to conduct workplace monitoring in a respectful manner.

514 Workplace Violence Prevention

The City is committed to preventing workplace violence and to maintaining a safe work
environment. Given the increasing violence in society in general, the City has adopted the
following guidelines to deal with intimidation, harassment, or other threats of (or actual) violence
that may occur during business hours or on its premises.

All employees, including supervisors and temporary employees, should be treated with courtesy
and respect at all times. Employees are expected to refrain from fighting, "horseplay”, or other
conduct that may be dangerous to others. Firearms, weapons, and other dangerous or hazardous
devices or substances are prohibited from the premises or in any vehicle owned by the City.

Conduct that threatens, intimidates, or coerces another employee, a customer, or a member of
the public at any time, including off-duty periods, will not be tolerated. This prohibition includes
all acts of harassment, including harassment that is based on an individual's sex, race, age, or
any characteristic protected by federal, state, or local law.

All threats of (or actual) violence, both direct and indirect, should be reported as soon as possible
to your immediate supervisor or any other member of management. This includes threats by
employees, as well as threats by customers, vendors, solicitors, or other members of the public.
When reporting a threat of violence, you should be as specific and detailed as possible.

All suspicious individuals or activities should also be reported as soon as possible to a supervisor.
Do not place yourself in peril. If you see or hear a commotion or disturbance near your
workstation, do not try to intercede or see what is happening.

The City will promptly and thoroughly investigate all reports of threats of (or actual) violence and

of suspicious individuals or activities. The identity of the individual making a report will be
protected as much as is practical. In order to maintain workplace safety and the integrity of its

41



investigation, the City may suspend employees, either with or without pay, pending an
investigation.

Anyone determined to be responsible for threats of (or actual) violence or other conduct that is in
violation of these guidelines will be subject to prompt disciplinary action up to and including
termination of employment.

The City encourages employees to bring their disputes or differences with other employees to the
attention of their supervisors or the City Manager before the situation escalates into potential
violence. The City is eager to assist in the resolution of employee disputes, and will not discipline
employees for raising such concerns

515 Family and Medical Leave Act

As a governmental entity, the City is a covered employer under the Family and Medical Leave Act
of 1993, as amended, and its implementing regulations (the "FMLA"). As a covered employer, the
City is only required to provide unpaid family and medical leave, or military family leave to an
"Eligible Employee” in accordance with the provisions of the FMLA. An "Eligible Employee" is an
employee who: has worked for the City for at least twelve (12) months; meets the hours of service
requirement in the 12 months preceding the commencement of the leave (i.e., worked at least
1,250 hours during the 12 month period preceding the commencement of the leave and/or was
on a leave of absence from work due to or necessitated by USERRA-covered service); and is
employed at a job site where there are 50 or more employees within a 75 mile radius. Employees
are not eligible for FMLA unless they meet this definition of being an Eligible Employee. Unless
the City employees 50 or more employees none of its employees will be “Eligible Employees” for
FMLA. As the City is required to have a policy addressing FMLA even if it does not have any
“Eligible Employees,” all District employees are directed to review the Department of Labor Notice
to Employees referenced as "Employee Rights and Responsibilities Under the Family and Medical
Leave Act" (WHD Publication 1420) included as Addendum 1 to this Handbook, and incorporated
herein, which contains additional information on their FMLA entitlements, if any.

To address an employee’s need for time off for certain qualifying situations, the City has looked
to the FMLA for guidance and has adopted its own policies to provide both Medical Leave and
Family Leave to those employees who meet the eligibility requirements under the policies. The
City has not adopted all of the FMLA’s requirements into its policies but has looked to the FMLA
to determine who qualifies as a health care provider.

601 Medical Leave

The City provides medical leaves of absence to eligible employees who are temporarily unable to
work due to their own serious health condition (including when due to a work related injury, or
pregnancy), disability protected under the ADA, that prevents the employee from performing their
job duties. Unless required by law the time off for medical leave is consecutive time. Employees
must use all available earned paid time (sick, vacation and personal) during an approved medical
leave. Once paid time is exhausted, the remainder of the time is unpaid, unless the employee has
qualified for short-term or long-term disability benefits. For purposed of this policy, in determining
whether an employee qualifies for a medical leave for a “serious health conditions,” for guidance,
the City looks to the FMLA’s definition which requires inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or
residential medical care facility; or continuing treatment by a health care provider. And in

42



determining whether the employee has a disability, the City looks to the ADA's definition of who
is a qualified individual with a disability for guidance.

Employees in the following classifications are eligible to request medical leave as described in
this policy:

e Regular full-time employees

Eligible employees may request medical leave only after having completed 180 calendar days of
service. Exceptions to the service requirement will be considered to accommodate protected
disabilities in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Eligible employees must make requests for medical leave to their supervisors at least 30 days in
advance of foreseeable events and as soon as possible for unforeseeable events. All supporting
medical information is to be provided only to Human Resources and not to supervisors.

A treating health care provider's medical certification must be submitted to Human Resources,
verifying the need for medical leave and its beginning and expected ending dates. Detailed
medical information is not to be provided, however, the certification must clearly indicate that the
employee has a medical condition (serious health condition or disability) requiring an absence
from work and must certify that the employee is not able to perform their job duties during this
time. The statement must also have a beginning and end date of the requested leave. If the
medical leave is approved, any changes to employee’s ability to qualify for the medical leave, or
changes in the expected length of the leave must be promptly reported to Human Resources.

Eligible employees are normally granted leave up to a maximum of twelve (12) weeks within any
twelve (12) month period. The 12-month period is measured backward from the date an employee
uses any family or medical leave. Any combination of medical leave, family leave, or other
approved leave may not exceed this maximum limit. Employees will be required to first use any
and all accrued paid leave time before taking unpaid medical leave. If the leave request is
approved Human Resources will notify the employee and the notice will set out the employee’s
return to work date.

Employee leave of absences ("LOA") will run at the same time. Employees who sustain work-
related injuries that are also serious health conditions, or a need for a qualifying family leave
situation, and are in need of time off must request the time off under this policy. For example, an
employee may incur a non-work related illness or a work-related iliness or injury that also causes
a "serious health condition” making the employee unable to perform the functions of his/her
position. In such circumstances, any period of time covered by a short-term disability insurance
policy, or time off for a workers' compensation injury will also count against the employee's 12
weeks of medical leave.

Subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations of the applicable plans, health insurance benefits
will continue in the same manner as if the employee remained at work through the last day of the
month in which the medical leave ends, employees must continue to pay their dependent health
insurance premiums to continue the spouse/family coverage during their medical leave. The
maximum time period that the City will continue to pay for the employee’s health insurance is for
12 weeks. For any leave that is longer than 12 weeks, the employee will become responsible for
the full costs of these benefits if they wish coverage to continue. When the employee returns
from medical leave, benefits will again be provided by the City according to the applicable plans,
including any eligibility requirements.

43



All paid benefit accruals, such as vacation, sick leave, holiday, etc., will be suspended during the
leave and will resume upon return to active employment.

Employees returning from medical leave must submit a health care provider's verification of their
fitness to return to work and ability to perform the essential functions of the employee’s position
and noting any work limitations and the duration of those limitations. The fitness for duty form
must be provided to Human Resources no later than two (2) business days before the employee’s
scheduled return date so the City has time to assess the information and determine if the
employee can be returned to work. During the medical leave, an employee must promptly notify
their supervisor and Human Resources if there is any change to their return to work date. When
a medical leave ends, the employee will be reinstated to the same position, if it is available, or to
an equivalent position for which the employee is qualified.

If an employee fails to return to work on the agreed return date, absent extenuating
circumstances, the employee will be terminated for resigning their position.

602 Family Leave

The City provides family leaves of absence without pay to eligible employees who wish to take
time off from work duties to fulfill family obligations for childbirth, adoption, or placement of a foster
child: or to care for a child, spouse, or parent with a serious health condition (as defined by the
FMLA). When the family leave is for a child, spouse, or parent with a serious health condition, a
supporting health care certification form must be submitted to Human Resources, verifying the
need for medical leave and its beginning and expected ending dates and the estimated time
required. The City will only approve intermittent family leave if it is certified to be medically
necessary. The City will use the Department of Labor's recommended Form WH-380-F,
Certification of Health Care Provider for Family Member's Serious Health Condition under the
Family and Medical Leave Act.

Employees in the following employment classification are eligible to request family leave as
described in this policy:

e Regular full-time employees

Eligible employees may request family leave only after having completed 180 calendar days of
service. Eligible employees must make requests for family leave to their supervisors at least 30
days in advance of foreseeable events and as soon as possible for unforeseeable events.
Supervisors must immediately notify Human Resources when a request for family leave is made.

All other terms and conditions for medical leave also apply to family leave, including determining
the 12 week period, continuation or discontinuation of health insurance, discontinuation of paid
accruals, use of paid time, (however, only vacation and personal time may be used, not for a
family members serious health condition), the provision of a certification to return to work if the
family leave was due to the employee’s serious health condition, etc. Please refer to the policy
for Medical Leave for this information.

603 Military Leave

44



The City will comply with all applicable federal and state laws regarding military leave. Employees
who are reserve members of the United States military or who are members of the Florida National
Guard shall be entitled to up to thirty (30) days leave of absence per calendar year from their
respective duties without loss of pay for such time as they are ordered to military service or field
training status in accordance with federal and state laws, including Sections 115.07, 115.09 and
115.14, Florida Statutes.

The employee must submit an order or statement from the appropriate military commander as
evidence of any such duty unless restricted by law. This must be submitted as soon as possible
to the City Manager.

A regular full-time City employee who is a reservist or is mobilized for activation for a period of
more than thirty (30) days will be granted military leave of absence and will continue to receive
benefits as required by applicable federal and/or state law.

Upon honorable discharge from active military service, an employee who wishes to return to City
employment must contact the City Manager within ninety (90) days from the date of military
separation unless a more extended period is allowed by law. An employee requesting
reinstatement with the City must submit to a medical examination to verify the employee's physical
and mental fitness to perform the essential functions of the position, with or without reasonable
accommodation.

An employee returning to City employment in his or her former position will start at the salary the
employee would have received, including all adjustments, had he or she remained continuously
employed with the City instead of entering the armed services.

If a position vacated by an employee who entered military service is reclassified or retitled during
the period of military service, the employee will be reinstated in the new or revised position, unless
the employee does not meet the job requirements or is not capable of satisfactorily performing
the essential functions of the position, even with reasonable accommodation. If the former position
has been abolished or if the employee is incapable of satisfactorily performing the essential
functions, the employee shall be reinstated to a position as nearly comparable as possible in
salary and duties to the position vacated, providing a vacancy is available.

604 Bereavement Leave

Employees who wish to take time off due to the death of an immediate family member must notify
their supervisor immediately and request the time off.

Paid bereavement leave (up to 3 days for in state and up to 5 days for out-of-state) will be provided
to eligible employees in the following classification(s):

° Regular full-time employees
Bereavement pay is calculated based on the base pay rate at the time of the absence and will not
include any special forms of compensation, such as incentives, commissions, bonuses, or shift

differentials.

Bereavement leave will normally be granted unless there are unusual business needs or staffing
requirements. Employees may, with their supervisors' approval, use any available paid leave for

45



additional time off as necessary.

The City defines "immediate family" for this policy as the employee's spouse, domestic partner,
parent, parent in law, child, stepchild, grandchildren, and grandparent.

605 Jury Duty

The City encourages employees to fulfill their civic responsibilities by serving jury duty when
required. Employees in an eligible classification may request paid jury leave for either state or
federal court proceedings.

Jury duty pay will be calculated on the employee's base pay rate times the number of hours the
employee would otherwise have worked on the day of absence. Employee classifications that
qualify for paid jury duty leave are:

e Regular full-time employees

If employees are required to serve jury duty, they will receive pay at their normally scheduled rate.
Up to one week of paid jury duty leave will be provided (unless the federal Fair Labor Standards
Act requires additional paid time for exempt employees). Any jury duty fees paid by the court
shall be signed over to the City. Any expense payments provide by the court should be retained
by the employee.

Employees must show the jury duty summons to their supervisor as soon as possible so that the
supervisor may make arrangements to accommodate their absence. Of course, employees are
expected to report for work whenever the court schedule permits. Proof of service must be
submitted to Human Resources when the jury service has been completed.

The City will continue to provide health insurance benefits for the full term of the jury duty absence.
Vacation, sick leave, and holiday benefits will continue to accrue during paid jury duty leave.

606 Administrative Leave

Administrative Leave is used to account for an employee's time while away from the office. The
absence maybe due to a number of work related factors such as training, travel, or some other
circumstance that warrants that the employee be away from his/her work station with his

employers acknowledgement. The City Manager has the right to place an employee on
Administrative Leave.

Administrative Leave will be granted or directed by the City Manager on a case-by-case basis.
The leave may be paid or unpaid at the sole discretion of the City Manager. Vacation, sick leave,

and holiday benefits will continue to accrue during a paid administrative leave, but not an unpaid
administrative leave if it lasts more than one (1) week.

607 Absence Without Leave

Any employee who is absent from duty without notifying his immediate supervisor in advance
shall be deemed to be absent without leave and will be subject to disciplinary action. After two

46



(2) consecutive days, the employee shall be determined to have voluntarily resigned and will be
terminated.

701 Employee Conduct and Work Rules

To ensure orderly operations and provide the best possible work environment, the City expects
to follow rules of conduct that will protect the interests and safety of all employees and the
organization.

It is not possible to list all the forms of behavior that are considered unacceptable in the workplace.
The Table of Infractions in this handbook as well as the following, are some examples of conduct
that may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment:

e Unsatisfactory, inappropriate or unbecoming behavior, performance or conduct

e Failure to meet performance expectations, including failing to notify the City Manager of safety
and other operational matters impacting the City or the public.

Theft or inappropriate removal or possession of property

Falsification of timekeeping records

Working under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs

Possession, distribution, sale, transfer, or use of alcohol or illegal drugs in the workplace,
while on duty, or while operating employer-owned vehicles or equipment

Fighting or threatening violence in the workplace

Boisterous or disruptive activity in the workplace

Negligence or improper conduct leading to damage of employer-owned or customer-owned
property

Insubordination or other disrespectful conduct

Violation of safety or health rules

Smoking/vaping in prohibited areas

Sexual or other unlawful or unwelcome harassment, discrimination, or retaliation

Possession of dangerous or unauthorized materials, such as explosives or firearms, in the
workplace. The City complies with Section 790.251, Florida Statutes.

Excessive absenteeism or any absence without notice

Unauthorized absence from work station during the workday

Unauthorized use of telephones, mail system, or other employer-owned equipment
Violation of personnel policies

Any personal use of City vehicles

Employment with the City is at the mutual consent of the City and the employee, and either party
may terminate that relationship at any time, with or without cause, and with or without advance
notice. Employees should also refer to the Counseling and Discipline policy and the Table of
Infractions set out in Appendix B.

702 Drug Free Workplace Policies

In accordance with Department of Transportation (DOT), Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Administration (FMCSA) regulations, the City has established a drug-free workplace program
designed to help prevent accidents and injuries resulting from the misuse of alcohol or use of
controlled substances by drivers of commercial motor vehicles. This drug-free workplace program

47



applies to every employee who operates a commercial motor vehicle in the course and scope of
employment. The details of this drug policy are set out attached and incorporated into this
Handbook as Appendix A.

In a commitment to promote a healthy, safe, and productive workforce and to safeguard our
employees and the working environment for employees, contractors, customers, and the like, the
City has also established a Drug-free Workplace Program. This policy is implemented pursuant
to the Drug-free Workplace Program requirements under §440.102, Florida Statutes, and its
implementing rules. This policy applies to all employees (including those who operate a
commercial motor vehicle) and certain job applicants of the City as set out in the detailed policy.
The details of this drug policy are set out attached and incorporated into this Handbook as
Appendix B.

Employees with drug or alcohol problems that have not resulted in, and are not the immediate
subject of, disciplinary action may participate in a rehabilitation or treatment program through the
City's health insurance benefit coverage.

An employee who performs work for a government contract, grant, or holds a CDL license, must
notify the City of a criminal conviction for drug-related activity occurring in the workplace. The
report must be made within five days of the conviction.

To help ensure a safe and healthful working environment, job applicants for certain positions, as
well as any employee, may be asked to provide body substance samples (such as urine and/or
blood) to determine the illicit or illegal use of drugs and alcohol as allowed by state and federal
law.

Any employee with questions regarding the drug policies are encouraged to contact the City
Manager for more information.

703 Discrimination, Sexual and Other Unlawful Harassment, and Retaliation

Purpose
The City does not and will not condone discrimination or unlawful harassment against employees

on the basis of race, color, religion, age, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical
conditions, sexual orientation, or sexual stereotyping), gender (identity, expression, transition),
national origin, genetics, physical or mental disability, marital status, veteran’'s status, pay, or
other legally protected classification under federal, state and/or local law ("Protected
Characteristic").

It is the intent of the City to exclude unlawful discrimination, unlawful harassment in all forms, and
retaliation, in all of its workplaces and working relationships. This prohibition covers discrimination
harassment, or retaliation by anyone in the workplace to include but not limited to city employees,
contractors, volunteers, or non-employees. All employees have the right to work in an
environment free of discrimination any form of unlawful harassment, or retaliation.

Scope
This Policy applies to all city employees, volunteers, contractors, or non-employees in all the City

locations. This Policy applies to individuals who report concerns as well as to individuals who may
participate in the investigation of any reported concerns as investigators, witnesses, decision-
makers, or other roles.

Conduct

48



To help ensure that no employee feels him/herself to be subject to discrimination or unlawful
harassment, the City prohibits any offensive physical, written, or spoken conduct of a sexual
nature, off-color jokes, racial, ethnic, or religious slurs or innuendos, whether in person, in writing,
or by way of electronic media, or any other inappropriate or offensive conduct directed at a
person(s) based on a Protected Characteristic (the “Conduct”).

Sexual harassment is a form of unlawful sex discrimination and is prohibited by the City. Offensive
Conduct of a sexual nature may constitute unlawful harassment when engaged in by someone
employed by the City in a position to influence employment decisions when (1) submission to
such conduct is made, either expressly or implicitly, a condition of the recipient's continued
employment; or (2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by the recipient is used as the basis
for employment decisions affecting the recipient. This includes gender and sex based harassment
against a person of the same sex as the alleged wrongdoer. Any sexual advances or personal
relationships between a Supervisor and a subordinate are prohibited.

All prohibited Conduct is unacceptable in the workplace and any work- related settings such as
business trips and City-sponsored social events, regardless of whether the conduct is engaged
in by a supervisor, co-worker, vendor, or other third parties.

The City's emphasizes that while this policy sets forth its goal of promoting a workplace that is
free from the above-referenced Conduct. This Policy does not limit the City from taking corrective
action for any workplace conduct that it determines is unacceptable, regardless of whether that
conduct violates this Policy.

Definitions

Discrimination - Discrimination under this Policy means treating differently or denying or granting
a benefit to an individual because of the individual's Protected Characteristic.

Unlawful Harassment - Unlawful harassment is not always capable of precise definition. For
example, what may be unwelcome sexual harassment to one person could be nothing more than
socializing, teasing, locker room banter, or flirtation to another person. Sexual harassment may
include a range of subtle and not so subtle behaviors and may involve individuals of the same or
different gender. Therefore, the City must treat all complaints seriously and admonishes all
employees to guard against any conduct that tends to cause discomfort or harassment to another
employee, even though one might not believe it to be offensive.

The following are examples of what may be considered sexual (regardless of the sex or gender
of the persons involved) or other unlawful harassment, depending on the facts and circumstances:

1. Verbal Harassment: derogatory or vulgar comments regarding sex or demands for
sexual favors, sexual jokes, epithets, slurs, and innuendo, racial or religious slurs, or the like.

2. Visual Harassment: distribution or viewing of written or graphic materials
containing sexually explicit or sexually or racially demeaning pictures or language (including email
messages with attached files).

3. Physical Harassment: unwelcome or unsolicited sexual advances or other physical
conduct of a sexual nature, such as touching, pinching, or causing one to fear that they will be
touched inappropriately.

These examples apply whether during working hours, outside working hours, in person, or by
other means of communications such as phone or electronic communications (e-mail, text
messages, tweets, blogs, social networking sites or other means).

49



Management Responsibilities

Any supervisor or department head who becomes aware of possible violation of this policy
(whether personally observed, suspected or reported to the supervisor or department head) must
promptly advise Human Resources or the City Manager, who will handle the matter in a timely,
discreet and appropriate manner. All such situations and potential situations must be reported so
the City can look into the situation. When a complaint has been brought to a supervisor or
department head, it must be reported, even when the employee complaining asks the supervisor
or department head to keep the allegation confidential and take no action. Supervisors and
department heads should not undertake an investigation on their own. they must instead follow
the required reporting process under this policy.

Supervisors or department heads who fail to report, who engage in or allow discrimination,
harassment, or retaliation will be in violation of this policy will be subject to corrective action which
may include disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

Reporting Procedures
If an employee believes that s/he is being subjected to any of these forms of harassment or

believes s/he is being discriminated against because other employees are receiving favored
treatment in exchange, for example, for sexual favors, s/he must promptly bring this to the
attention of Human Resources or City Manager so the matter may be reviewed. Employees who
believe others are being subjected to such behavior are likewise asked to inform Human
Resources or City Manager about the situation. No one is authorized to discourage anyone from
reporting what a person, in good faith, believes is or may be a problem under this policy or from
participating in the City's investigation of a situation under this policy. Consequently, in order for
the City to address the situation, employees must report such offensive Conduct. If it would be
inappropriate to contact either Human Resources or the City Manager (e.g., the complaint is about
that person or the employee is uncomfortable discussing it with that individual), the employee
must immediately contact the other person, or the City Attorney.

Complaint Process/Investigation/No Retaliation

The person reporting the matter will be asked to provide a written statement of the date(s), times,
location, and nature of the Conduct as well as the names of any witnesses. After a complaint has
been received, the City will promptly investigate the allegations.

It is understood that any person electing to utilize this complaint resolution procedure will be
treated courteously, and the investigation and resolution of the situation will be handled as quickly
as possible. The registering of a valid complaint, nor the participation in an investigation (as a
witness or investigator), will not be used or held against the employee, nor will it have an adverse
impact on the complaining individual's employment status. Employees must also report any future
occurrences of the complained of actions, or similar actions, and advise Human Resources or
City Manager, if they feel there is any reprisal or if they feel that they are being retaliated against
for reporting any action under this policy or participating in an investigation (as a witness,
investigator, or otherwise).

Retaliation or attempted retaliation in response to lodging a complaint or invoking the complaint
process is a violation of this policy. Retaliatory conduct is prohibited. Some examples of
retaliatory conduct include: (i) threatening action or criticizing an employee for filing a complaint
or providing information; or (i) firing, demoting, disciplining an employee or taking any other
adverse action against an employee because the employee filed a valid a complaint or
participated in an investigation. Reports of retaliation will be investigated and appropriate action
will be taken consistent with the findings of the investigation.

50



The City urges all employees who are involved in an investigation to respect the privacy of both
the complaining employee and the alleged wrongdoer so as not to impair the careers or
reputations of either or the integrity of the investigation. All parties must be aware of the
seriousness of such complaints and the damage that can be done to everyone concerned.

Actions

Appropriate action will be taken consistent with the findings of the investigation. Atthe completion
of the investigation the complainant will be informed of the outcome to the extent appropriate. An
employee engaging in discrimination, sexual or other form of unlawful harassment, or retaliation,
or failing to report Conduct will be subject to corrective action, which may include disciplinary
action, up to and including discharge. False and malicious complaints may result in appropriate
disciplinary action. No discipline will result, however, if a complaint is made in good faith, even if
the City’s investigation is inconclusive or determines no discrimination, harassment, or retaliation
occurred.

Confidentiality
The reporting complaining employee must understand that complete confidentiality of the

complaint involving the substance of the allegations cannot reasonably be expected due to the
very nature and process of the investigation of the complaint. Nonetheless, due to the serious
nature of such complaints, the City will make an effort to restrict the dissemination of the complaint
to those having a need to know. At the conclusion of the investigation, any public records will be
subject to disclosure under Florida’s Public Records Act.

Employees’ Responsibilities
As an employee of the City, it is the employee’s responsibility to conduct his/herself in a manner
that will minimize the possibility that someone else will regard the employee’s conduct as
discrimination, harassment, or retaliation. The City trusts that all employees will act respectfully
and responsibly in maintaining a pleasant working environment free of discrimination,
harassment, and retaliation.

As an employee of the City, do not assume that the City is aware of your problem. It is the
employee’s responsibility to bring this information to the City's attention so that the issue can be
promptly investigated and resolved.

704 Attendance and Punctuality

Regular and punctual attendance by City employees is necessary to maintain a productive work
environment. Attendance is an essential function of every position at the City. Tardiness and
absenteeism negatively impact the quality, safety and delivery services and daily operations. To
maintain a safe and productive environment, the City expects employees to be reliable and to be
punctual in reporting for scheduled work and to work their scheduled hours. Absenteeism and
tardiness place a burden on other employees and on the City. Employees are required to be
present at their assigned jobs for the total hours in the established workday or work period unless,
the department head authorizes the absence from duty. Employees who expect to be absent from
work for any reason must request approval from their department head as much in advance as
possible

In the rare instances when employees cannot avoid being late to work or are unable to work as

51



scheduled, they must notify their supervisor as soon as possible in advance of the anticipated
tardiness or absence.

Poor attendance and excessive tardiness are disruptive. Either may lead to disciplinary action,
up to and including termination of employment.

705 Remote Work Arrangements — Exempt Employees

In most circumstances, exempt employees are required to work at the City’s business locations,
as the City must have a work environment where the needs of its business operations and service
to the public can be met. While there may be situations where the City can be flexible for limited
time periods, to allow certain exempt employees to work remotely, when approved, remote work
is not a right and may not be appropriate for all positions. This allows employees to be accessible
to management and the public and permits collaboration among work teams. Remote work may
be permitted on an “as needed basis” but not for all positions. In determining when a remote work
situation will be permitted for an exempt employee the City will assess such factors as the job
position, whether the duties can be properly and adequately performed remotely, the employee’s
accessibility to management and the public, whether collaboration among work teams can be
maintained, the City’s ability to properly protect its data and information that may be accessed
from a remote location and the equipment that will be used to access the City information. All
remote work arrangements are subject to approval by the City Manager. When a remote work
arrangement has been approved the exempt employee must remain in Florida, must still attend
all required meetings (including in person when required), must be readily accessible and
responsive during the work day, and must report on work performed during the day. Employees
may be required to enter into a remote work agreement as a condition of being approved for
remote work to address other conditions for remote work. Remote will be provided as a
reasonable accommodation for a qualified disabled employee as required by law.

706 Personal Appearance

Dress, grooming, and personal cleanliness standards contribute to the morale of all employees
and affect the business image the City presents to customers and visitors

During business hours, employees are expected to present a clean and neat appearance and to
dress according to the requirements of their positions. Employees who appear for work
inappropriately dressed will be sent home and directed to return to work in proper attire. Under
such circumstances, non-exempt employees will not be compensated for the time away from
work.

Consult your supervisor or department head if you have questions as to what constitutes
appropriate attire.

707 Return of Property

Employees are responsible for items issued to them by the City or in their possession or control,
such as the following:

e vehicles

52



equipment

keys

manuals

pagers

protective equipment
tools

cell phones

uniforms

e o o @& @ @ @ @

Employees must return all the City property immediately upon request or upon termination of
employment. Where permitted by applicable laws, the City may withhold from the employee's
check or final paycheck the cost of any items that are not returned when required. The City may
also take all action deemed appropriate to recover or protect its property.

708 Resignation

Resignation is a voluntary act initiated by the employee to terminate employment with the City.
Although advance notice is not required, the City requests at least two (2) weeks' written notice
of resignation from nonexempt employees and four (4) weeks' notice from exempt employees.
Such resignation notice shall be submitted to the City Manager in writing.

Prior to an employee's departure, an exit interview may be scheduled to discuss the reasons for
resignation and the effort of the resignation on benefits.

709 Security Inspection

The City wishes to maintain a work environment that is free of illegal drugs, alcohol, firearms,
explosives, or other improper materials. To this end, the City prohibits the possession, transfer,
sale, or use of such materials on its premises. The City requires the cooperation of all employees
in administering this policy.

Desks, lockers, and other storage devices may be provided for the convenience of employees
but remains the sole property of the City. Accordingly, they, as well as any articles found within
them, can be inspected by any agent or representative for the City at any time, either with or
without prior notice. Personal locks are not to be used on any City property.

The City likewise wishes to discourage theft or unauthorized possession of the property of
employees, the City, visitors, and customers. To facilitate enforcement of this policy, the City or
its representative may inspect the desk and City vehicle assigned for use by an employee. . Any
employee who wishes to avoid inspection of any articles or materials should not bring such items
onto the City's premises.

710 Solicitation

In an effort to ensure a productive and harmonious work environment, persons not employed by
the City may not solicit or distribute literature in the workplace at any time for any purpose.

53



The City recognizes that employees may have interests in events and organizations outside the
workplace. However, employees may not solicit or distribute literature concerning these activities
during working time. Working time does not include lunch periods, work breaks, or other periods
in which employees are not on duty.

Examples of impermissible forms of solicitation include:

The collection of money, goods, or gifts for community groups

The collection of money, goods, or gifts for religious groups

The collection of money, goods, or gifts for political groups

The collection of money, goods, or gifts for charitable groups

The sale of goods, services, or subscriptions outside the scope of official organization
business

The circulation of petitions

The distribution of literature not approved by the employer

The solicitation of memberships, fees, or dues

In addition, the posting of written solicitations on company bulletin boards is prohibited. Bulletin
boards are reserved for official organization communications on such items as:

City Commission Agenda and announcements
Public Hearing and meeting notices

Employee announcements

Internal memoranda

Job openings

Organization Announcements

Worker's compensation insurance information
Unemployment insurance information

711 Counseling and Corrective Action

The purpose of this policy is to state the City's position on administering equitable and consistent
discipline for unsatisfactory performance and/or conduct in the workplace. The best disciplinary
measure is the one that does not have to be enforced and comes from good leadership and fair
supervision at all employment levels.

Although employment with the City is based on mutual consent and both the employee and the
City have the right to terminate employment at will, with or without cause or advance notice, the
City may impose corrective action at its discretion. Violations of City policies and/or engaging in
unacceptable performance and/or conduct may result in counseling and/or corrective action, up
to and including termination. When counseling and/or corrective action becomes necessary, the
City will address each situation on a case-by-case basis and will assess the seriousness of the
infraction, the past record of the employee, and the circumstances surrounding the matter.
Nothing in this section shall be construed as altering the “at will” nature of employment with the
City.

Corrective action may call for any of four steps - verbal warning, written warning, suspension with
or without pay, or termination of employment - depending on the severity of the problem and the
number of occurrences. There may be circumstances when one or more steps are bypassed. A
table of infractions is attached to this handbook as Appendix B and is a part of this handbook.

54



The table intends to give examples of infractions and the City recognizes that not every
circumstance can be covered here.

The City recognizes that there are certain types of employee problems that are serious enough
to justify either a suspension, or, in extreme situations, terminations of employment, without going
through the usual corrective action steps.

By using a corrective action process, we hope that most employee problems can be corrected at
an early stage, benefiting both the employee and the City.

712 Problem Resolution

The City is committed to providing the best possible working conditions for its employees. Part
of this commitment is encouraging an open and frank atmosphere in which employees receive a
timely response from the City supervisors and management in response to job-related questions,
problems and suggestions.

The City recognizes that its employees, from time to time, may have concerns and even problems
which they feel should be addressed. Employees deserve the opportunity to express themselves
on these matters and be heard by someone with the authority to take appropriate action in a fair
and unbiased fashion. Supervisors, managers, and employees are expected to treat each other
with mutual respect. Employees are encouraged to offer positive and constructive criticism.

If an employee has a concern, they can express their concern through the problem resolution
procedure. No employee will be penalized, formally or informally, for voicing a concern with the
City in a reasonable, business-like manner, or for using the problem resolution procedure.

If a situation occurs when employees believe that a condition of employment or decision affecting
them is unjust or inequitable, they are encouraged to make use of the following steps. The
employee may discontinue the procedure at any step.

1. Employee presents problem to the immediate supervisor within seven (7) calendar days, after
incident occurs. If supervisor is unavailable or employee believes it would be inappropriate to
contact that person, employee may present problem to the City Manager.

2. Supervisor responds to problem during discussion or within seven (7) calendar days, after
consulting with appropriate management, when necessary. Supervisor documents discussion.

3. Employee presents problem to the City Manager within seven (7) calendar days, if problem is
unresolved.

4. Employee presents problem to the City Manager in writing. The City Manager has full authority
to make any adjustment deemed appropriate to resolve the problem.

5. City Manager reviews and considers the problem. The City Manager informs employee of
decision within seven (7) calendar days, and forwards copy of written response to Human
Resources for the employee's file.

Not every problem can be resolved to everyone's total satisfaction, but only through

understanding and discussion of mutual problems can employees and management develop
confidence in each other. This confidence is important to the operation of an efficient and

55



harmonious work environment.

This policy is not to be used to address complaints that fall under the policy addressing
Discrimination, Sexual and Other Unlawful Harassment, and Retaliation. If the matter involves
conduct that is of a discriminatory, harassing or retaliatory manner the complaint must be reported
under the policy addressing Discrimination, Sexual and Other Unlawful Harassment, and
Retaliation.

56



901 Appendix A - COMMERCIAL DRIVER'S LICENSE (CDL) HOLDER FEDERAL DRUG-
FREE WORKPLACE POLICY

This policy outlines the City's U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) mandated-policy
regarding federal law and rules governing drug and alcohol testing for employees in safety-
sensitive jobs. Safety-sensitive is defined as duties performed by employeeswho are required to
hold a Commercial Driver's License (CDL). The City also maintains a separate drug testing policy
outlining the rules governing the testing of non-CDL holders and providing foradditional non-DOT
testing of CDL holders. To the extent any information in this policy is not current with DOT
requirements the DOT requirements will govern over this policy.

The policy is consistent with the federal drug testing requirements for operators of Commercial
Motor Vehicles (codified at 49 USC § 31306 and 49 CFR Part 40 and Part 382) which prohibits
the use of alcohol and drugs on the job and prior to reporting to work. It is the intent of this policy
to assure compliance with Federal law and regulations regarding drug and alcohol testing of
certain specified safety-sensitive employees.

Federal law mandates alcohol and drug testing for employees in positions requiring a Commercial
Driver's License (CDL) and defined as safety sensitive. Employees in positions requiring a CDL
and defined as safety-sensitive are subject to this policy and hereafter in this policy will be referred
to as employee and/or employees. These rules require pre-employment, reasonable suspicion,
post-accident, random, follow-up, and return-to-duty drug and alcohol testing.

POLICY:

1. Employees Subject to Testing

Federal regulations provide that safety-sensitive employees who operate vehicles requiring a CDL
must be subject to drug and alcohol testing. A CDL is required of any person who operates a
"commercial motor vehicle" as defined by the DOT.

2. Participation as a Condition of Employment

All employees in, or applicants for, positions defined as safety-sensitive above must participate in
the drug and alcohol testing program prescribed by federal regulations as a condition of
employment. Failure to participate and comply with program requirements may resultin disciplinary
action up to and including termination of employment.

3. Prohibited Behavior

A. No employee shall use, sell, distribute, dispense, possess, or manufacture any
alcoholic beverages or illegal drugs or any other intoxicating substance on a job site
or the City property while on duty; or while in a the City vehicle, a vehicle leased for
the City business, or a privately-owned vehicle being used for the City business during
theemployee's work hours.

B. No employee shall report to work unfit for duty at the beginning of a shift or upon
returning from any break, lunch, or rest period because of consuming alcohol, illegal
drugs, or other intoxicant.

57



Employee in a safety-sensitive position is further prohibited from the use of alcohol four
(4) hours prior to performing job functions. No Supervisor having knowledge that an
employee in such a position has used alcohol within four (4) hours shall permit that
employee to perform job functions.

It is the responsibility of an employee on prescription medication or over-the-counter
medication, which has the potential to impair performance, to consult with his/her
physician regarding its effects on their ability to perform their job functions. An
employee may be required to have his/her physician certify that medication does or
does not adversely affect the employee's fitness for duty. As marijuana remains an
illegal controlled substance under federal law, the City strictly prohibits it, even if
otherwise prescribed for a medical purpose under state law.

Violation of these rules may result in disciplinary action up to and including
termination of employment.

Employees must also fully comply with all prohibitions set forth in the City's non- DOT
drug testing policy, which is applicable to both CDL and non-CDL employees.When
safety-sensitive CDL employees are being tested pursuant to this policy (i.e.,the DOT-
mandated policy), the testing procedures set forth below shall apply. When safety
sensitive CDL employees are being tested pursuant to the non-DOT policy, the
procedures set forth in that policy shall apply.

4. Circumstances for Testing

Federal regulations require that drug and alcohol tests be given to safety-sensitive employees (as
defined above) in specific circumstances: pre-employment, reasonablesuspicion, post-accident,
random, return to duty, and follow-up. For employees to recognize the circumstances which may
initiate these tests, the following definitions are provided:

A

Pre-employment Testing — Federal regulations require that all applicants for
employment in positions requiring a CDL or individuals being transferred into such
positions must be given a pre-employment drug test. Applicants may not be hiredor
assigned to a safety-sensitive function unless they complete and pass the test.Prior to
conducting the test, departments must inform the applicant or employee ofthe testing
requirements. Vacancy announcements and job postings must stipulate that passing a
drug test is a condition of employment. Further, applicants may berequired to sign a
document acknowledging that they know they are subject to testing.

CDL Acquisition — Employees who acquire a CDL license while currently employed
with the City will be tested prior to being transferred into a safety-sensitive position.

Reasonable Suspicion Testing — Federal regulations require that an employee ina
safety-sensitive position must be directed to undergo alcohol and/or drug testingwhen
the City has reasonable suspicion to believe that the employee has used a prohibited
drug or has misused alcohol in violation of federal law. The request to undergo a
reasonable suspicion test must be based on specific, contemporaneous, articulable,
observations concerning the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odor of the
employee.

Post-Accident Testing — Federal regulations provide that as soon as practicable

58



following an accident, tests for alcohol and controlled substances shall be
administered to employees performing safety-sensitive functions if (i) the accident
involved the loss of human life; or (i) the driver receives a citation under State or local
law for a moving traffic violation arising from the accident, and the accident involved
either bodily injury to any person who receives medical treatment away from the
accident or disabling damage to one or more motor vehicles occurred asa result of the
accident. Drug tests must be performed within thirty-two (32) hoursfollowing the
accident. Alcohol tests must be performed within eight (8) hours. If an alcohol test is
not administered within two (2) hours following the accident, thedepartment must still
attempt to administer the test and must also prepare and maintain a record stating the
reason(s) the test was not promptly administered. If an alcohol test is still not
administered within eight (8) hours following the accident,the department shall cease
attempts to administer an alcohol test and shall maintain the same record.

A safety-sensitive employee shall not use alcohol for eight (8) hours following an
accident or until the employee undergoes a post-accident alcohol test, whichever
occurs first.

The requirement to test for alcohol and drugs following an accident shall in no waydelay
necessary medical attention for injured people or prohibit a safety-sensitiveemployee
from leaving the scene of an accident to obtain assistance in respondingto the accident
or to obtain necessary emergency medical care. However, an employee who is subject
to post-accident testing shall remain readily available forsuch testing or may be
deemed to have refused to submit to testing.

Random Testing — Federal regulations require that safety-sensitive employees be
subject to random drug and alcohol testing. The selection of employees for random
alcohol and drug testing shall be made by a scientifically valid random number
selection method. The selection process shall assure that each employee shall have
an equal chance of being tested each time selections are made. The minimum
annual percentage rate for random alcohol testing shall be 10% of the average number
of CDL safety-sensitive positions and, for controlled substances testing, 50% of the
average number of CDL safety-sensitive positions, or the then current rate established
by the DOT. Selection shall be determined by the third-party organization employed to
administer the alcohol and drug testing program.

The test dates shall be spread reasonably throughout the year with no established
pattern. Testing will be unannounced as well as random.

Once the employee has been notified that he/she has been selected for random
testing, the employee shall report immediately to the collection site. Employees shall
be individually and discretely notified to report to the collection site, and theyshall be
assured that they have been selected for a routine test. Schedules shall be adjusted
so that additional personnel may be available to substitute for employees being tested.

Return-to-Duty Testing — Before any employee is allowed to return to duty to perform
a safety-sensitive function following a verified positive drug test result, analcohol result
of 0.04 or greater, or a refusal to submit to a test, that employee must undergo a return-
to-duty test. The return-to-duty alcohol test result must indicate an alcohol
concentration of less than 0.02. The return-to-duty drug test result must indicate a

59



verified negative result for controlled substance use.

Before a return-to-duty test is performed, the employee must be evaluated by a
substance abuse professional who shall determine what assistance, if any, the
employee may need and shall determine whether the employee has followed
recommendations by a substance abuse professional (SAP), including participation in
any rehabilitation program.

Federal regulations require that all return-to-duty tests be conducted under direct
observation.

Follow-up Testing — Once allowed to return-to-duty, an employee shall be subjectto
unannounced follow-up testing for at least twelve (12) but not more than sixty (60)
months. The frequency and duration of the follow-up testing will be determinedby a
substance abuse professional (SAP) as long as a minimum of six (6) tests are
performed during the first twelve (12) months after the employee has returned to duty.
Employees subject to follow-up testing must also remain in the standard random pool.

Federal rules require that all follow-up tests be conducted under direct observation.

5. Behavior that Constitutes a Refusal to Submit to a Test

The following actions or behaviors shall constitute a refusal to submit to a required test:

A

B.

F.

G.

Refusal to take the test.

Inability to provide sufficient quantities of breath or urine to be tested without a valid
medical explanation.

Tampering with or attempting to adulterate the specimen or collection procedure oris
reported by the MRO as having a verified adulterated or substituted test result.

Failure to report to the collection site in the time allotted, or the failure to remain atthe
testing site until the testing process is complete.

Failure to remain readily available for post-accident testing for eight (8) hours or until
theemployee undergoes testing, whichever occurs first.

Failure to permit a direct observation test where such test is required.

Failure to cooperate with any part of the testing process.

6. Testing Procedures

A.

Drug Testing - Drug testing is conducted by analyzing the employee's urine
specimen. Specimens are collected in an off-site facility which must meet the
"Procedures for Transportation Drug and Alcohol Testing Program” (49 CFR Part 40)
requirements to assure privacy and the integrity of specimen collection. The employee
provides a urine specimen, which is sealed and labeled by an authorizedagent of the
testing organization. A chain of custody document is completed, andthe specimen is
shipped to a certified laboratory. The specimen collection procedures and chain of

60



custody ensure that the specimen's security, proper identification, and integrity are not
compromised.

Federal law requires that drug testing procedures for safety sensitive employees
include split specimen techniques. Each urine specimen is sub-divided into two
containers labeled as primary and split specimens. Both specimens are forwardedto a
laboratory certified by the US Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS).
Only the primary specimen is used in the urinalysis. The split specimen remains sealed
and stored unless and until it is required for confirmation of a positive test.

An initial screening test is performed. If the test is positive for one or more drugs, a
confirmation test is performed for each identified drug using gas
chromatography/mass spectrometry (GC/MS) analysis. GC/MS confirmation ensures
that over-the-counter medications are not reported as positive resuilts.

Iif the analysis of the primary specimen confirms the presence of controlledsubstances,
the employee has seventy- two (72) hours to request that the split specimen be sent
to another DHHS certified laboratory for analysis. The split specimen procedure
provides the employee with an opportunity for a second opinion.

All drug test results are reviewed and interpreted by a physician, Medical Review
Officer (MRO) before they are reported. If the laboratory reports a positive result to the
MRO, the MRO contacts the employee and conducts an interview to determine if there
is an alternative medical explanation for the presence of a controlled substance in the
specimen.

If the employee provides appropriate documentation, and the MRO determines that
there is a legitimate medical use of the prohibited drug, the test result is reported as
negative. The MRO may not verify a drug test as negative based uponinformation that
a physician recommended that the employee use "medical marijuana.”

Employees will be subject to drug testing for the detection of illegal drugs/drug groups,
including but not limited to those listed below as well as others that may from time to
time be declared illegal by state or federal law:

e Marijuana (THC metabolite)

e Cocaine

e Amphetamines and methamphetamines

e Opiates (opium and codeine derivatives including heroin)

e Phencyclidine (PCP)
Alcohol Testing - Federal regulations provide that alcohol testing is conducted using
evidential breath testing (EBT) devices approved by the National Highway Traffic
Safety Administration (NHTSA). The breath test must be performed by a breath alcohol

technician (BAT) trained in the operation of the EBT and in the alcohol testing
procedures prescribed by the rules.

61



Two breath tests are required to determine if a person has a prohibited alcohol
concentration. Any result from the screening test is considered negative if the alcohol
concentration is less than 0.02. If the alcohol concentration is 0.02 or greater, a
confirmation test must be conducted. The employee and the BAT complete the alcohol
testing form to ensure that results are properly recorded. Theconfirmation test must be
conducted using an EBT that prints the results, date, time, in sequential test numbers,
and the name and the serial number of the EBT to ensure the reliability of the results.

The EBT shall be conducted by BAT's employed by a drug and alcohol testing
organization under contract with the City. The City employees shall not perform the
breath alcohol test. Law enforcement officers will not conduct the tests as part of
roadside inspections. Under certain circumstances, post-accident tests conductedby
law enforcement personnel will be acceptable.

Confidentiality of Test Results - Employee alcohol and drug testing results and
records are maintained under strict confidentiality by the City, the drug testing
laboratory, the alcohol testing facility, and the MRO. The results cannot bereleased to
any other party except a substance abuse professional without the written consent of
the employee.

Exceptions to these confidentiality provisions are limited to a decision maker in
arbitration, litigation, or administrative proceedings arising from a positive drug testor
other violation of these rules.

Reports are maintained by the City and its alcohol and drug testing provider.

7. Consequences of the Use of Drugs and the Misuse of Alcohol

A

Consequences of Alcohol Misuse - Employees who engage in prohibited alcohol
conduct must be immediately removed from safety-sensitive functions. The following
circumstances constitute prohibited behaviors.

1. Employee has an alcohol concentration of 0.02 or greater, but less than 0.04, as
determined by EBT results, when tested just before, during, or just after performing
safety-sensitive functions.

2. Employee has used alcohol within four (4) hours of performing safety-sensitive
functions.

3. Employee has used alcohol while performing safety-sensitive functions

4. Employee has used alcohol during the eight (8) hours following an accident or until
the employee has undergone a post-accident alcohol test.

5. Employee refused to submit to a required alcohol test.
6. Employee has an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater, as determined by EBT

results when tested just before, during, or just after performing safety-sensitive
functions.

62



An employee found to have violated any of these provisions shall be immediately removed from
safety-sensitive duty for at least twenty-four (24) hours, and the incident shall be recorded.
Further, the employee will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment.

No employee who has engaged in any prohibited alcohol conduct shall be allowed to perform
safety-sensitive functions until the employee has been evaluated by a substance abuse
professional. Before an employee returns to duty performing a safety- sensitive function, the
employee must undergo a return-to-duty alcohol test with a result indicating an alcohol
concentration of less than 0.02. The employee shall be subject to the provisions for follow-up
testing. Further, the employee will be subject to disciplinaryaction up to and including termination
of employment.

B. Consequences of Use of Controlled Substances - An employee who has a verified
positive drug test result must be immediately removed from safety-sensitive functions.
The employee who has a verified positive drug test result shall not be allowed to
perform safety-sensitive functions until the employee has been evaluated by a
substance abuse professional. Before an employee returns to duty performing safety-
sensitive functions, the employee must undergo a return-to-duty substance test with a
verified negative result. This test will be conducted under direct observation. The
employee shall be subject to the provisions for follow-up testing.

An employee who has an initial verified positive drug test result will be subject to
disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.

C. Refusal to Submit to a Required Alcohol or Drug Test - Refusal or failure to submit
to a required alcohol or drug test constitutes a failed test resulting in immediate
removal from safety-sensitive duty and appropriate disciplinaryaction as prescribed
herein. The employee shall not be allowedto perform safety-sensitive functions until
the employee has been evaluated by a substance abuse professional. Before an
employee returns to duty performing safety-sensitive functions, the employee must
undergo a return-to-duty substance test with averified negative result. This test will be
conducted under direct observation. The employee shall be subject to the provisions
for follow-up testing.

8. Training for Supervisors

The City shall ensure that all supervisors and other persons designated to determine whether
reasonable suspicion exists to require an employee to undergo testing must receive a minimum
of sixty (60) minutes of training on alcohol misuse and a minimum of sixty (60) minutes of training
on controlled substances use. The training shall include the physical, behavioral, speech, and
performance indicators of probable alcohol misuse and use of controlled substances. The training shall
include an overview of the program requirements, disciplinary procedures, confrontation and
documentation procedures, and rehabilitation and treatment options which are available.

9. Training for Safety-Sensitive Employees

A. Each department participating in the CDL Drug and Alcohol Testing Program shall

63



ensure that all employees performing job functions deemed safety-sensitive shall
receive a copy of this policy.

B. Each department participating in the CDL Drug and Alcohol Testing Program shall
ensure that all new employees performing job functions deemed safety-sensitive hired
after the date of this policy being adopted shall receive a copy of this policy and the
educational materials listed below:

1. The identity of the person designated by the employer (DER) to answer driver
questions about the materials.

2. Specific information concerning driver conduct that is prohibited by federal
regulation and this policy.

3. The circumstances under which a driver will be tested for alcohol and/or controlled
substances under federal regulation and this policy, including post-accident testing
under 49 CFR 382.303(d).

4. The procedures that will be used to test for the presence of alcohol and controlled
substances, protect the driver and the integrity of the testing processes, safeguard
the validity of the test results, and ensure that those results are attributed to the
correct driver, including post-accident information, procedures, and instructions
required by this policy and 49 CFR 382.303.

5. The requirement that a driver submit to alcohol and controlled substances tests
administered in accordance with this policy and federal regulations.

6. An explanation of what constitutes a refusal to submit to an alcohol or controlled
substances test and the attendant consequences.

7. The consequences for drivers found to have violated this policy and the federal
regulations, including the requirement that the driver be removed immediately from
safety-sensitive functions, and the procedures that can follow such removal.

8. The consequences for drivers found to have an alcohol concentration of 0.02 or
greater but less than 0.04.

9. Information concerning the effects of alcohol and controlled substances use on an
individual's health, work, and personal life; signs and symptoms of an alcohol or a
controlled substances problem (the driver's or a co-worker's), and available
methods of intervening when alcohol or a controlled substances problem is
suspected, including confrontation, referral to any employee assistance program
and or referral to management.

C. Each department shall ensure that each driver is required to sign a statement certifying
that he or she has received a copy of these materials described in this section. Each
department shall maintain the original of the signed certificate and may provide a copy
of the certificate to the driver.

10. Supervisory Responsibilities

64



A. Supervisors are responsible for determining through direct observation whether an
employee can perform his or her assigned duties. Determinations shall be based on
specific, contemporaneous, articulable, reliable observations concerning the
appearance, behavior, speech, or body odor of the employee.

B. Employees who are suspected of being unfit for duty because of alcohol or drug use
will be required to undergo reasonable suspicion drug and/or alcohol testing in
accordance with federal regulations and this policy. Supervisors should immediately
bring their observations to the attention of their managers in order that arrangements
for testing can be implemented as soon as practicable.

C. Employees who are suspected of being impaired and unfit for duty may not remain at
the workplace. Incidents and behavior described herein should be witnessed and
documented immediately. The Supervisor's manager should be consulted and advised
of the incident. An employee who is impaired should not be allowed to drive home from
the workplace.

D. Anemployee who has engaged in prohibited behavior and was not allowed to remain
at work or was removed from safety-sensitive duties will not be considered to have a
disciplinary suspension. After the employee is removed from safety-sensitive duties or
removed from the workplace, supervisors and managers should discuss the specifics
of the situation with Human Resources to review appropriate disciplinary action. Each
situation will be evaluated on a case-by- case basis.

11. Responsibilities

A. A drug and alcohol-free workplace shall be maintained through the efforts and
personal example of management.

B. Subordinate managers and supervisors who fail to perform their duties and
responsibilities as outlined in this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and
including termination of employment.

C. Managers and supervisors are encouraged to discuss with employees any behavior
or job performance factors that may indicate the use of drugs, alcohol, or other
violations of this policy and to suggest, when appropriate, that employees seek
assistance through the Employee Assistance Program (EAP).

D. Managers shall direct employees in designated safety-sensitive positions to comply
with the provisions for pre-employment, reasonable suspicion, random, post-accident,
return-to-duty, and follow- up testing in accordance with federal regulations.

E. Supervisors who make reasonable suspicion determinations must receive training on
the physical, behavioral, and performance indicators of probable drug use and alcohol
misuse. Supervisors shall be instructed on the principle of the "reasonable prudent
individual" in reasonable suspicion decisions.

12. Random Pool Database Updating

65



Each department participating in the City Drug-Free Workplace Policy for CommercialMotor
Vehicle Operators agrees to provide to the Designated Employer Representative (DER) ona
quarterly basis, if necessary, any changes in CDL driving status.

13. Contact Information

The City's Designated Employer Representative (DER) is Human Resources. Questions
regarding the drug and alcohol testing program and the policies and procedures required for
compliance with federal law and rules shall be directed to the DER, the Supervisor or the City

Manager.

14. Querying the FMCSA Clearinghouse and Reporting Violations

In accordance with federal regulations (49 CFR § 382.701), the City will query the FMCSA Drug
and Alcohol Clearinghouse for any drug or alcohol information pertaining to CDL drivers and
applicants, as follows:

A.  Full pre-employment queries will be conducted on applicants for any position which
requires a CDL license. As a condition of consideration for employment, applicants will
be required to provide the Clearinghouse with consent to allow the City to conduct a

full query.

B. For current employees who are employed in a position requiring a CDL, a limited query
of the Clearinghouse will be conducted annually. As a condition of continued
employment, employees are required to execute the required consent form permitting
the limited query. If the limited query reveals that information about the CDL driver
exists in the Clearinghouse, the City will conduct a full query within 24 hours. As a
condition of continued employment, the CDL driver will be required to provide the
Clearinghouse with consent allowing the City to conduct a full query.

In accordance with federal regulations (49 CFR § 382.705), the City (or it is Service Agent if the
City uses a Third-Party Administrator to administer its DOT drug testing policy) will report the
following drug/alcohol information regarding CDL drivers/applicants to the FMCSA:

Reporting entity  [When information will be reported to Clearinghouse

The City e An alcohol confirmation test with a concentration of 0.04 or higher.
e Refusal to test (alcohol) as specified in 49 CFR § 40.261.

¢ Refusal to test (drug) not requiring a determination by the MRO
asspecified in 49 CFR § 40.191.

e Actual knowledge, as defined in 49 CFR § 382.107, that a driver
has usedalcohol on duty, used alcohol within four hours of coming
on duty, used alcohol prior to post-accident testing, or has used a
controlled substance.

66



e Negative return-to-duty test results (drug and alcohol testing, as
applicable)

e Completion of follow-up testing.

Service Agent e An alcohol confirmation test with a concentration of 0.04 or higher.

acting on behalf of . =
the Gity (if the City Refusal to test (alcohol) as specified in 49 CFR § 40.261.

uses a TPA)

e Refusal to test (drug) not requiring a determination by the MRO
asspecified in 49 CFR § 40.191.

e Actual knowledge, as defined in 49 CFR § 382.107, that a driver
has usedalcohol on duty, used alcohol within four hours of coming
on duty, used alcohol prior to post-accident testing, or has used a
controlled substance.

e Negative return-to-dutytest results (drug and alcohol testing, as
applicable)

e Completion of follow-up testing.

Human Resources is responsible for reviewing and updating this Policy. Any questions on the
application or interpretation of this Policy should be directed to Human Resources. Compliance
with this Policy will be monitored on an on-going basis.

Any questions, please contact the Human Resources Department.

15. Medical Marijuana

If an applicant or employee with a legal referral for marijuana (for the treatment of a medical
condition) tests positive based on the substance limits for the drug test, it will be reported by the
lab as a “positive drug test” and will be treated in accordance with all other positive drug tests.

Employees and applicants shall be given an opportunity to provide any information relevant to the
test, including identification of currently or recently used prescription or non-prescription
medications as well as any legal referral for marijuana use for the treatment of a medical condition.

There are no additional exceptions for applicants or employees with legal referrals for marijuana.

16. CDL Suspension for DU| Arrest or Conviction

A safety sensitive employee must notify the City Manager immediately (within 24 hours) of
receiving a DWI/DUI. Any safety sensitive employee who has been arrested for DWI/DUI will be
suspended or may be re-assigned to a non-safety-sensitive position, if available, for a maximum

67




period of 90 days and will not be permitted to operate any City vehicle, under any circumstances.
If the employees CDL has not been reinstated at the end of the 90 days the employee will be

terminated.

68



902 Appendix B - DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY PER FLORIDA LAW

This policy outlines the City's Drug Free Workplace in accordance with workers’ compensation
provisions (Florida Statutes 440.101-440.102) and the Rules established by the State of Florida,
Agency for Health Care Administration for Drug Testing (currently 59A-24 of the Florida
Administrative Code). The City recognizes that an employee's health affects personal job
performance as well as the performance and job safety of other employees. This policy was
created to maintain a safe and healthy work environment for all employees and the public. To
the extent this policy is inconsistent with any changes that are made to the referenced statutes,
rules or subsequent court decisions, the City will follow the current legal requirements.

It is a condition of employment for employees to refrain from the abuse, illegal use or misuse of
drugs, including prescription or non-prescription medications, controlled substances, or any illegal
drugs, or being impaired by illegal drugs or alcohol, on the job. Possession of any illegal drugs
and alcohol is also prohibited at all sites at which employees are providing services. All
employees must report to work in appropriate mental and physical condition without any illegal
drugs, controlled substances (except for medication prescribed for and being properly used by
the employee) or detectable levels of alcohol in their bodies. As marijuana remains an illegal
controlled substance under federal law, the City strictly prohibits it, even if otherwise referred for
use for a medical purpose under state law.

SCOPE:

This policy applies to all employees of the City (including those who hold a CDL license) and for
those applicants who are being considered for a mandatory-testing position. This policy will be
made available to all employees and job applicants to review during regular business hours.

TYPES OF TESTING:
The City conducts the following types of drug testing:

1. Job Applicant. All job applicants seeking a mandatory-testing position (as defined
in Section 440.102, Florida Statutes) who are given a conditional offer of employment must submit
to a drug test. Refusal to submit to a drug test or a positive, confirmed drug test may be used by
the City as a basis for refusal to hire the job applicant.

2. Reasonable Suspicion. All employees must submit to a drug test when requested
by the City based on a belief that an employee is using or has used drugs in violation of the City's
policy, drawn from specific objective and articulable facts and reasonable inferences drawn from
those facts in light of experience. Among other things, such facts and inferences may be based
upon:

a) Observable phenomena while at work, such as direct observation of drug
use or of the physical symptoms or manifestations of being impaired by an illegal drug.

b) Abnormal conduct or erratic behavior while at work or a significant
deterioration in work performance.

c) A report of drug use, provided by a reliable and credible source.

d) Evidence that an individual has tampered with a drug test during

employment with the City.

69



e) Information that an employee has caused, contributed to, or been involved
in an accident while working, if the accident results in lost time, personal injury requiring medical
attention, or injury to property. This is the case whether not the employee was operating
equipment or operating a City vehicle, or a personal vehicle for work purposes.

f) Evidence that an employee has used, possessed, sold, solicited or
transferred drugs while working or while on the City's premises or while operating the City's
vehicle, machinery, or equipment.

3. Routine Fitness for Duty. An employee must submit to a test for drugs if the test
is conducted as part of a routinely scheduled employee fitness-for-duty medical examination that
is part of the City's established policy or that is scheduled for all members of an employment
classification or group.

4. Follow-up. If an employee in the course of employment enters an employee
assistance program for drug-related problems, or an alcohol/drug rehabilitation program, the
employee must submit to a drug test as a follow-up to such program (unless the employee
voluntarily entered the program), on a quarterly, semi-annual, or annual basis for two years after
completion of the program. Advance notice of a follow-up testing date will not be given to the
employee to be tested.

5. Random Testing. The City has the right to require random drug testing for illegal
drugs (includes illegally using lawful drugs) (excluding alcohol). These tests will be unannounced
and may be given at any time. Each employee will have an equal chance to be selected each time
a random test is performed.

COST OF TESTING:

The City will pay the cost of all drug tests, initial and confirmation, which the City requires of all
employees and applicants. The applicant or employee shali pay the costs of any additional drug
tests not required by the City.

REFUSAL TO TEST/CONFIRMED POSITIVE TESTS:

1. Refusal to Test. If a job applicant or an employee refuses to submit to a test for
drugs or alcohol, he/she forfeits his/her eligibility for all medical and indemnity benefits and may
be terminated from employment, not hired, or otherwise disciplined by the City.

2. Injury. If an employee is injured in the course and scope of their employment, and
has a positive confirmation of a drug at a level described below, such an injured employee may
forfeit their eligibility for medical and indemnity benefits under the Workers' Compensation Act
upon exhaustion of the procedures provided in this policy titled "EXPLANATIONS/CHALLENGES
TO DRUG TEST RESULTS,"” and may be terminated from employment.

3. Positive Drug Test and Employee Assistance. If an employee has a positive,
confirmed drug test required by the City for Reasonable Suspicion, Routine Fitness for Duty,
Random Testing (if implemented) or Follow-up testing, the employee will be considered to be in
violation of this City policy. The City may (but is not required to) request or require the employee
to seek help or rehabilitation from an employee assistance program or a community resource. A
list of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of employee assistance programs and local
alcohol and drug rehabilitation programs is contained at the end of the policy. An employee who
has a confirmed positive drug test will be disciplined up to and including termination from

70



employment.
CONFIDENTIALITY:

All information, interviews, reports, statement memoranda, and drug test results, written or
otherwise, received by the City or produced through the drug testing program are confidential
communications, exempt from the provisions of section 119.07, Florida Statutes and section 24(a)
Article | of the Florida Constitution, and may not be used or received in evidence, obtained in
discovery, or disclosed in any public or private proceedings, except in accordance with applicable
state statutes and rules or in determining compensability under Florida Statutes, Chapter 440.

Employers, laboratories, medical review officers, employee assistance programs, drug and
alcohol rehabilitation programs, and their agents who receive or have access to information
concerning drug test results must keep all information confidential. Release of such information
under any other circumstance shall be solely pursuant to a written consent form signed voluntarily
by the person tested, unless such release is compelled by a hearing officer or a court of competent
jurisdiction pursuant to an appeal taken under Chapter 440, or unless deemed appropriate by a
professional or occupational licensing board in a related disciplinary proceeding. The consent
form must contain, at a minimum:

a) The name of the person who is authorized to obtain the information.
b) The purpose of the disclosure.

c) The precise information to be disclosed.

d) The duration of the consent.

e) The signature of the person authorizing release of the information.

Information on drug test results is not be released or used in any criminal proceeding against the
employee or job applicant except as permitted under the Florida Drug Free Workplace provisions
in Chapter 440 of Florida Statutes and the implementing rules and interpretations. Information
released contrary to the provision of section 440.102 is inadmissible as evidence in any such
criminal proceeding.

Nothing shall be construed to prohibit the City, agent of the City, or laboratory conducting a drug
test from having access to employee drug test information when consulting legal counsel in
connection with actions brought under or related to state statute or rule or when information is
relevant to its defense in a civil or administrative matter.

LABORATORY PROCEDURES/DRUGS FOR WHICH THE CITY MAY TEST:

The collection of specimens and the performance of the drug tests are to be in accordance with
the Florida Agency for Health Care Administration’s Drug Testing Rules. The laboratory will be
licensed by the Agency for Health Care Administration and is to comply with the provisions of
Chapter 483, Part | of the Florida Statutes.

The City may test for any or all of the following drugs at the cut-off levels established by the United
States Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services. All drug/alcohol tests are to be initially
screened using an immunoassay except that the initial screen for alcohol shall be an enzyme
oxidation methodology. All specimens identified as positive on the initial screen are to be
confirmed using the Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry methodology (GC/MS) or an

71



equivalent or more accurate scientifically accepted method approved by the Agency for Health
Care Administration or the United States Drug Administration, except that alcohol will be
confirmed using gas chromatography. The cut-off levels for the drug-free workplace program for

initially screened urine' specimens are:?

Initial cut-off

Confirmation

cut-off

Alcohol - (booze, hootch, drink, beer, liquor, wine, moonshine). All liquid
medications containing ethyl alcohol (ethanol). Please read label for alcohol
content. As an example, Vick’s Nyquil is 25% (50 proof) ethyl alcohol.
Comtrex is 20% (40 proof). Contact Severe Cold Formula Night Strength is
25% (50 proof) and Listerine is 26.9% (54 proof).

0.04 g/dL%

0.04 g/dL%

**Amphetamines - (bennies, black beauties, crystal, speed, uppers, crank)
Obetrol, Biphetamine, Desoxyn, Dexedrine, Didrex, lonamine, Fastin.

1,000
ng/mL

500 ng/mL

**Cannabinoids - 11 - nor - Delta - 9 tetrahydrocannabinol - 9 carboxylic acid)
(marijuana, hashish, maryjane, grass, reefer, pot, dope, etc.) Marinol
(Dronabinol, THC).

50 ng/mL

15 ng/mL

**Cocaine - (benzoylecgonine) (coke, crack, blow, nose candy, toot, snow)
Cocaine HCI topical solution (Roxanne).

300 ng/mL

150 ng/mbL

*~+Phencylidine - (PCP, angel dust). Not legal by prescription.

25 ng/mL

25 ng/mL

Methaqualone - (ludes, quaalude, optimil, parest, somnafac, sopor). Not
legal by prescription.

300 ng/mL

150 ng/mL

**Opiates - (heroin, horse, smack, powder) Paregoric, Parepectolin,
Donnagel PG, Morphine, Tylenol with Codeine, Empirin with Codeine, APAP
with Codeine, Aspirin with Codeine, Robitussin AC, Guiatuss AC,
Novahistine DH, Novahistine Expectorant, Dilaudid (Hydromorphone), M-8
Contin and Roxanol (morphine sulfate) Percodan, Vicodin, Tussi-organidin
etc.

2,000
ng/mL

Morphine

2000 ng/mL

6-Acetylmorphine

10 ng/mL

Codeine

10 ng/mL

Barbiturates - (barbs, rainbows, downers, goofballs, reds, yellows, blues)
Phenobarbital, Tuinal, Amytal, Nembutal, Seconal, Lotusate, Fiorinal,
Fioricet, Esgic, Butisol, Mebaral, Butabarbital, Butalbital, Phrenilin, Triad, etc.

300 ng/mL

150 ng/mL

Benzodiazepines - Ativan, Azene, Clonopin, Dalmane, Diazepam, Librium,
Xanax, Serax, Tranxene, Valium, Verstran, Halcion, Paxipam, Restoril,
Centrax.

300 ng/mL

150 ng/mL

1 |nitial cut off levels and confirmation levels for hair specimens differ from urine specimens but the drugs

to be tested remain the same. Alcohol testing is performed via a blood specimen.
2 See Fla. Admin. Code R. 59A-24,006, http://firules.elaws.us/fac/59a-24.006.

72




Initial cut-off | Confirmation
cut-off
Methadone - Dolophine, Metadose. 300 ng/mL 150 ng/mL
Propoxyphene - Darvocet, Darvon N, Dolene, etc. 300 ng/mL 150 ng/mL

*These substances are the only drugs to be included in federally regulated Drug Testing Programs (for example, DOT (NIDA) testing).
If testing is required for additional substances another separate sample is to be collected.

**The initial cut-off for these substances is pursuant to the initial cut-off for Opiates.

All levels equal to or exceeding the Confirmation cut-off levels will be reported as positive to the Medical Review Officer (MRO).
Laboratories are to report all quantitative alcohol results above 0.02% level to the MRO who shall be responsible for reporting results
to the City, if appropriate.

MEDICAL REVIEW OFFICER WILL REVIEW RESULTS:

Results of all drug tests performed by the laboratory are to be sent directly to the City’s Medical
Review Officer for final verification and determination of the drug test. A list of "OVER-THE-
COUNTER AND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS WHICH COULD ALTER OR AFFECT THE
OUTCOME OF A DRUG TEST" is provided at the end of this policy and will be given to each
employeel/job applicant subject to testing during the collection process. The employeeljob
applicant providing a specimen for testing should list any medications taken within the past 30
days on this form and should retain this form to be used as a "memory jogger" should the Medical
Review Officer need to discuss the results of the test with the employee/job applicant. THIS
FORM IS NOT TO BE GIVEN TO THE CITY. The City’s designated Medical Review Officer will
use the information provided to interpret any positive confirmed results.

An employee or job applicant who receives a positive confirmed test result may contest or explain
the result to the Medical Review Officer within five (5) working days after receiving written
notification of the test result. If an employee’s or job applicant's explanation or challenge is
unsatisfactory to the Medical Review Officer, the Medical Review Officer must report a positive
test result back to the City. The employee or job applicant may contest the drug test result
pursuant to law or to rules adopted by the Agency for Health Care Administration.

EXPLANATIONS/CHALLENGES TO DRUG TEST RESULTS:

Within five (5) working days after receipt of a positive confirmed test result from the Medical
Review Officer, the City will inform the applicant or employee in writing of the positive test results,
the consequences of such results, and the options available to the employee/applicant, including
the right to file an administrative or legal challenge.

The City will provide to the employee or job applicant, upon request, a copy of the test results.

Within 5 working days after receiving notice of a positive confirmed test result, the applicant or
employee will be allowed to submit information to the City explaining or contesting the test results.
During the period following the positive confirmed test, the employee will be suspended without
pay. If the explanation or challenge of the positive test results is unsatisfactory to the City, a
written explanation as to why the applicant or employee's explanation is unsatisfactory, along with
the report of the test results, will be provided by the City to the applicant or employee. All such
documentation will be kept confidential by the City and will be retained by the City for at least one
(1) year.

1. Documentation Based on Reasonable Suspicion. After testing based on

73



reasonable suspicion, the City will promptly detail in writing the circumstances which formed the
basis of the determination that reasonable suspicion existed to warrant the testing. A copy of this
documentation will be given to the employee upon request. The original documentation will be
kept confidentially by the City and retained for at least one (1) year, or as otherwise required by
the public records law, if applicable.

2. Additional Rights and Responsibilities of Employees and Applicants. During the
180-day period after written notification of a positive test result, the employee/applicant who has
provided the specimen will be permitted by the City to have a portion of the specimen retested, at
the employee's/applicant’'s expense. Such retesting is to be done as specified in the applicable
Workers' Compensation Statute and Rules.

It is the responsibility of the applicant or employee to notify the laboratory of any
administrative or civil actions brought pursuant to Chapter 440, Florida Statutes, Drug Free
Workplace requirements.

Employees and job applicants have the right to consult the testing laboratory for
technical information regarding prescription and non-prescription medication.

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM:

In addition to resources which may be available under the City's Employee Assistance Program (EAP), local telephone
directories “Yellow Pages” and similar on-line resources (www.yellowpages.com) under “Drug Abuse and Addiction
Information and Treatment,” lists the names and locations of treatment centers. Also, the United Way, listed in the
telephone directory White Pages (as well as www.whitepages.com), offers many confidential services at no charge.
Any costs of outside services are the Employee’s responsibility. This list is not exhaustive but provides some local
resources for the employee to assess.

National Hotline numbers and national assistance groups.

Assistance/information provider Contact number
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 1.800.662.4357
Alcoholics Anonymous 1.800.252-6465
National Cocaine Hot Line 1.800.262.2463
Veteran's Crisis Line 1.800.273.8255
Local assistance groups
Assistance/information provider Address Contact number
A New Start - Florida 1514 S Alexander St #202, Plant City, FL 33563 813-441-4757
WhiteSands Treatment, Lakeland 5135 US 98 North, Lakeland, FL 33809 863-209-7451
TriCounty Human Services, Inc. — 2725 Hwy 60 East, Bartow, FL 33830 863-701-7373

Lakeland Outpatient Clinic

74



OVER-THE-COUNTER AND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS WHICH COULD ALTER OR AFFECT
THE OUTCOME OF A DRUG TEST

(THIS LIST IS NOT INTENDED TO BE AN ALL-INCLUSIVE LIST)

ALCOHOL

Al liquid medications containing ethyl alcohol (ethanol). Please read the label for alcohol content. As an
example, Vick's Nyquil is 25% (50 proof) ethyl aicohol, Comtrex is 20% (40 proof), Contac Severe Cold Formula
Night Strength is 25% (50 proof) and Listerine is 26.9% (54 proof).

AMPHETAMINES

Obetrol, Biphetamine, Desoxyn, Dexedrine, Didrex, lonamine, Fastin

CANNABINOIDS
Marinol (Dronabinol, THC)

COCAINE

Cocaine HCI topical solution (Roxanne)

PHENCYCLIDINE

Not legal by prescription.

METHAQUALONE

Not legal by prescription.

OPIATES

Paregoric, Parepectolin, Donnagel PG, Morphine, Tylenol with Codeine, Empirin with Codeine, APAP with Codeine,
Aspirin with Codeine, Robitussin AC, Guiatuss AC, Novahistine DH, Novahistine Expectorant, Dilaudid
(Hydromorphone), M-S Contin and Roxanol (morphine sulfate), Percodan, Vicodin, Tussi-organidin, etc.

BARBITURATES

Phenobarbital, Tuinal, Amytal, Nembutal, Seconal, Lotusate, Fiorinal, Fioricet, Esgic, Butisol, Mebaral, Butabarbital,
Butabital, Phrenilin, Triad, etc.

BENZODIAZEPINES

Ativan, Azene, Clonopin, Dalmane, Diazepam, Librium, Xanax, Serax, Tranxene, Valium, Verstran, Halcion,
Paxipam, Restoril, Centrax.

METHADONE

Dolophine, Metadose

PROPOXYPHENE

Darvocet, Darvon N, Dolene, etc.

75




List prescription drugs taken within the past thirty (30) days. Provide any other information that
you want the medical review officer to know in connection with this drug test. This is for your use
only at this time. It should be given to the medical review officer if there is a positive confirmed
test result. DO NOT GIVE THIS FORM TO THE CITY. In the case of a positive test result, this
information should be provided to the medical review officer.

BY:
PRINT NAME: DATE:

76



903 Appendix C - Table of Infractions

Table of Infractions

The list of infractions serves as a guideline. This list is not exhaustive. The City at all times
has the right to determine the appropriate action to be taken for any infraction(s) that may
arise. All employees remain employed on an at-will basis and the City may terminate the
employment relationship at any time, with or without cause, or advanced notice,

No. Infraction 1st Offense | 2nd Offense
1. Incompetence or inefficiency in performance of duty. S-1 DD
2. Carelessness or neglect in performance of duty S-1 DD
3 Bribery of, or acceptance of bribes from employees, DD

board members, commissioners, contract agencies
or members of the public for any reason whatsoever
or attempts thereof

4. Being impaired by illegal drugs or alcohol while on DD —
duty

5. Use of political pressure in connection with S-3 DD
examinations, appointments, or other personal
actions.

6. Failure to report absences of subordinates or self DD [ -

7. Outside employment or business activity which is S-3 DD

incompatible with the duties and responsibilities or
the position held with the City

8. Failure to report outside employment or business S-1 DD
activity to Supervisor
9. Improper political activities as defined in the Charter, S-5 DD

these rules or departmental regulations

10. | Use of City equipment, supplies, or personnel S-3 DD
without proper authority

11. | Accepting gifts or remuneration from members of S-3 DD
the public in connection with an employee's duties

12. | Failure to make reasonable settlement of personal S-1 DD
debts, reflecting adversely on the City

13. | Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor, considered DD | -
to make the employee's continued employment
contrary to the best interest of the City

14. | Failure or unreasonable delay in carrying out any S-1 DD
order, regulation or directive required by supervisor

15. | Damage to City owned property, waste of City S-3 DD
owned supplies, through negligence, deliberate
action, misconduct, or other culpable action

77



16. | Conduct unbecoming an employee of the City on or S-3 DD
off duty

17. | Absence from duty without permission S-1 DD

18. | Refusal to obey a lawful order of a supervisor S-1 DD

19. | Refusal to produce City records or other data S-3 DD
lawfully requested by City Commission

20. | Insubordination S-5 DD

21. | Conspiring to overthrow the Government of the City, bbb | -
County, State or the United States

22. | Arrest and conviction on charges considered to be S- DD
contrary to the best interests of the City

23. | Failure to report to work without notifying supervisor, S-1 DD
or without reason acceptable to supervisor

24. | Intoxication on duty or off duty in such a manner as S-1 DD
to reflect adversely upon the City

25. | Involvement in or causing a scandal public or S- DD
private, reflecting adversely on City

26. | Any action contributing to the lowering of employee S-3 DD
morale

27. | Unexcused or habitual tardiness S-3 DD

28. | Failure to report damage or loss of City property S-1 DD

29. | Failure to report injuries on duty S-1 DD

30. | Gambling on duty S-1 DD

31. | Striking a City employee, or contributing to any [0
disturbance or fracas on duty

32. | Offending, orally, by gesture, or by physical bbb | e
violence, any member of the public while on duty

33. | Concealing or attempting to conceal defective work, DD | e
damaged equipment, or wasted supplies, or
removing or destroying same without permission

34. | Unauthorized destruction or removal of official DD ———
records, documents, supplies or equipment

35. | Sleeping while on duty S-1 DD

36. | Making false or unfounded charges or statements S-5 DD

78




which slander or defame other employees or
officials or the City Government, or which reflect
adversely on the honesty, integrity, motives,
character, or efficiency of such person
37. | Theft, embezzlement, or unauthorized taking of City bbb | -
equipment, supplies, funds, or personnel
38. | Disrespectful conduct, use of insuiting abusive, DD | -
profane, obscene, or vulgar language to or about
members of the City Government or the public while
on duty
39. | Falsification of employment application or any DD | e
official record of the City
40. | Soliciting or accepting remuneration of any kind in bbp | -
connection with appointments, examinations, or
other personnel actions
41. | lllegal contract or financial interest as defined in the DD e
Charter
42. | Violation of any departmental regulation or lawful S-3 DD
order from a supervisor
43. | Unsatisfactory performance SD DG
44. | Falsification of records b | -
45. | Personal use of a City vehicle or any other violation bbb |
of the policy on use of City equipment or vehicles
Types of Disciplinary Actions Symbols
Dismissal from duty. DD
Suspension from duty without pay. S-(Days)
Demotion in grade, title or work. DG
Demotion within range, by lowering salary step. SD
Written reprimand, duly recorded. WR
Oral reprimand, duly recorded. OR

79




Addendum 1 - Employee Rights and Responsibilities Under the Family and Medical Leave Act -
(WHD Publication 1420)

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

UNDER THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION

LEAVE
ENTITLEMENTS

BENEFITS &
PROTECTIONS

ELIGIBILITY
REQUIREMENTS

REQUESTING
LEAVE

EMPLOYER
RESPONSIBILITIES

ENFORCEMENT

Bigiblc cmployces who work for a covored employer can take up to 12 wecks of unpaid. job-protected lcave in a 12-month perod
for the following reasons:

e The birth of a child or placement of a child for adoption or foster carc:
e To bond with a child (lcave must be taken within onc year of the child's birth or placemeont);
e To caro for the employce’'s spouse, child. or parent who has a qualifying scrious hcalth condition:
e For theocmployece's own qualifying serious health condition that makes the employoe unable to perform the employce’s jotx
e Forqualifying exigencies related to the foreign deployment of a military member who is the employee’s spouse,
child, or parent
An cligible employee who is a covered servicemomber's spouse, child, parent. or next of kin may also take up to 26 weoks
of FMLA lcave in asingle 12-month period to care for the servicemember with a serous injury or iliness.

An employce does not need to use leave in one block. When it s modically necessary or otherwiso pemmitted. employees
may take lcave Intermittently oron a reduced schedulo.

Employccs may choose. or an empioyer may roquire. use of accrucd paid lcave while taking FMLA leave. If an employee
substitutes accrued paid lcave for FMLA lcave. the employce must comply with the employer's normal paid lcave policics.

while employces are on FMLA 1cave. employers must cotinue health insurance coverage as if the employoes were not on leave.

Upon return from FMLA Icave, most employces must be testored to the samae job or one ncarly identical to it with
cquivalent pay. benefits. and other employment terms and conditions.

An employer may not intertere with an individual's FMLA rights or retatiate against somoone for using or trying to use FMLA lcawe.
opposing any proctice made unlawful by the FMLA. or being involed in any proceceding under or relatod to tho FMULA.

An cmployce who works for a covered employer must moet three aiteria in order to be eligible for FMLA lcave. The employee must

. Have worked for the employer for at least 12 months;
. Have at lcast 1.250 hours of service in the 12 months before taking leave:” and
e Work at a location where the employer has at icast 50 employoes within 75 milcs of the employoe's worksite.

*Spocial “hours of service™ requirements apply to aidine flight crew employces.

Generally, employecs must give 30-days’ advance notice of the need for FMLA Icave. If it is not possibdle to give 30-days’ notice.
an employee must notify the employer as soon as peossible and. generally, follow the employcr's usual procedures.

Employecs do not have to share a medical diagnosis. but must provide enough information to the employer so it can determine
if the lcave quallfies for FMLA protection. Sufficient information coutd include informing an employcr that the cmployee ks or

will be unable to perform his or her job functions. that a family member cannot perform daily activitics. or that hospltalization or
continuing medical treatment ks nccessary. Employecs must inform the employer if the nced foricave is for a recason for which
FMLA lcave was proviously taken or certified

Employers can require a certification or periodic rocenification supporting the need for lcave. it the employer determinos that the
cortification is incomplete. it must provide a written notice indicating what additional information is required.

Once an employer becomes aware that an employce’s noed for leave is for a reason that may qualify under the FMLA. the
employer must notity the employce if he or she is cligible for FMLA lcave and. it ciigible. must also provide a notice of rights and
responsibilitics under the FMLA. If the employec is not cligible, the employer must provide a reason tor incligbility.

Employers must notify its employees i leave will be designated as FMLA lcave. and if so. how much lcave will be designated as
FMLA leave.

Employees may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division, or may bring a private lawsuit
against an cmployer.

The FMLA docs not affect any federal or state law prohibiting discrimination or supersede any state or local law or collective
bargaining agrocment that provides greater family or medical leave rights.

For additional information or to file a complaint: |31l

1-866-4-USWAGE e

{1-866-487-9243) TTY: 1-877-889-5627

www.dol.gov/whd =\NHB

U.S. Department of Labor | Wage and Hour Division WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION

&

=
FARRY




City Commission Meeting
February 21, 2023

AGENDA ITEM #6: City Commission Vacancy — District #2

INFORMATION ONLY
X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Polk City Commission Vacancy — District #2

ATTACHMENT:

Randy Carroll Letter of Resignation
ANALYSIS:

Commissioner Randy Carroll submitted his letter of resignation effective February 2, 2023. This leaves
a vacancy for District #2.

Staff is requesting approval to advertise a public notice for this vacancy. The advertisement for letters
of interest will be placed on the City’s website, in the newsletter and mailed to registered voters in

District #2.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

City Commission approval to advertise a Public Notice for the District #2 vacancy.



| —2/1—=J3

To +1’W« HH’emﬂfl o Q‘P

- _- mﬁ}/pr ) \/}Ce_, m-ﬁ)(oﬂ !@“ W aomn’;lsﬁl'ﬁﬁe-“:&:-_
- C\i‘}:r. my\nmq“&-{ Asst 1o +ha ¢, %y M%*nc\,eim{‘

RQfocl'Q.ﬂﬂﬁﬂj O\p IPG))< Q«\l“y

ON a. Job A m':m,q,'t‘*b\; _

IO 1’1‘7‘5 aucleaj Sf)ﬁ OJLVEW Q
g T hrs Cto gt

] _ J_.. &_,M Q—OV"P-Q,V\T}'t
Q_xoUnT?r UOngm

—— WQT‘M]& L‘i’____f&zk‘e.aj G-N‘“oﬁut} )
B __l/ﬂ)mb QJ_b Y')Hilw*‘ _&_Tb-u_ 'ﬁDUT.S L-uor\[(\-r?,_ Q.V\d ‘b’h%
- chrive, tlows er,tenl w Toll . T ‘nmzét "rc

loe mﬁ"‘f\ m}) u}\‘?‘b oY \’\\ct\/ﬁll‘ bac aws SJ‘RJ ‘J

6?53/_192*':.-&} UJ\"H\ W’l S s W\y Voip'c.- N s PO oo
+‘O Y}'\“vl(‘% __l 1‘@*-@___

 loougkk & hone N ematis
S— k’ﬂﬁ*‘-"“ Q'av- ﬁ\hw. +9~JO o S,
) ___#__II- htx% E..n\)ogm aumc\ r.a._.m L‘\ﬂﬁ‘vw;, ‘}"O;__
SO __Jowm E_MMJ w-—\/ '6°Mmuz‘\v \/ ‘b“}\:QaSQ qe—f
£o w vnn_-(kn“s . _L)t“l'h & hq_,ouxﬁ)\/ If)e,ovwf' _ﬂ:m )
Paﬂ(\ Q —l"b,.

N _“____”i___ _______ as co rmﬂl&d':@m @l .
,H a,lwmy.s 'a-«., hom«u +f} m, Q ¢ R =

f‘eﬁigwlq ______

G Blass an P _
T God /5/€9z o lk Cf‘}“y



